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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM (“GEM"”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Orient
Securities International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM (the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shiu Shu Ming

Ms. Lee Nga Ching (duties suspended)
Mr. Cao Weimin'

Ms. Suen Tin Yan?

Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol?

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siu Kin Wai

Ms. Chan Man Yi*

Mr. Cheng Ching Fu®

Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire®

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Lee Nga Ching
Mr. Huen, Felix Ting Cheung

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Mr. Siu Kin Wai (Chairman)
Ms. Chan Man Yi#

Mr. Cheng Ching Fu®

Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire®

NOMINATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Mr. Siu Kin Wai (Chairman)
Ms. Chan Man Yi4

Mr. Cheng Ching Fu®

Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire®

Appointed as an executive director with effect from 19 April 2024.

Resigned as an executive director with effect from 31 March 2024.

Retired as an executive director with effect from 31 August 2023.

Resigned as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit

committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect

from 25 June 2024

2 Appointed as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect
from 30 November 2023.

6 Retired as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit

committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect

from 31 August 2023.
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Corporate Information
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Hong Kong
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Executive Director’s Statement
HITESZHE

Dear Shareholders,

The three-year COVID-19 pandemic concluded last year, marking a pivotal
moment for global business recovery. In 2023, Hong Kong’s capital market
entered a recovery phase, and our Group focused on transforming our
core operations from retail-oriented clientele to institutional clients in the
PRC. We expanded our China team, enabling swift and decisive action to
enhance our securities distribution operations in the debt capital market.
This expansion has yielded fruitful results, strengthening both our core and
new business segments. | am proud of the progress our team has made,
especially amid such challenging global financial conditions.

However, the recovery in Hong Kong has not yet returned to pre-pandemic
levels. While we have no direct exposure to the conflicts in Russia and
Ukraine, Hong Kong’s status as an open economy means that the ongoing
war may have indirect effects. Political tensions have made businesses and
institutions more cautious in selecting locations for fundraising.

Historically, Hong Kong has been a leader in IPOs, but 2023 witnessed a
significant slowdown in fundraising activities. Total fundraising amounted
to only HK$46.3 billion, a 56% decrease year-on-year. There were 73 IPOs,
reflecting a 19% decline compared to the previous year. Among these,
two companies were listed by introduction on the Main Board, while three
GEM Board listings transitioned to the Main Board without raising any
funds. Our core businesses are closely tied to capital market activities, and
in 2023, mergers and acquisitions dropped to a ten-year low.

These challenging times have compelled us to adapt and persevere.
As we enter 2024, we will continue to focus on securities distribution
(both bonds and equities) and asset management, which remain our
core businesses where we have demonstrated a strong track record.
The increasing demand for China’s offshore urban development bond
distribution will continue to be a key driver for our Group. By synergizing
our clientele, we look forward to expanding our asset management
services. Concurrently, we are diligently enhancing our money lending
profile and managing associated risks.
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I would like to express my gratitude to our Hong Kong and China team
members, who have explored excellent opportunities and faced challenges
alongside the Group. We are proud to have such a well-equipped team
supporting our development for 2024 and beyond. We remain committed
to executing our focused strategy, delivering professional, value-added
services to our clients, and creating value for our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board,

Shiu Shu Ming
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S T DT

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to the “Group”)
is an integrated financial services provider licensed to (i) conduct Type 1
(dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (collectively,
the “License Business”) and (ii) money lending business, through its
subsidiaries. Over the years, the Group aims to establish an integrated
platform for providing a wide range of financial services to its clients.
During the year ended 31 March 2024 (“FY2023/24"), the principal
activities of the Group mainly include (a) brokerage services and relevant
service income; (b) underwriting and placing services; (c) securities, initial
public offering financing services; (d) money lending services; and (e) asset
management services.

During the FY2023/24, the increasing complexity of the global situation,
the political instability between Russia and Ukraine and the tightening
of monetary policy have posed challenges to the global investment
environment, leading to a downturn in market sentiment and a certain
impact on the performance of capital markets in Hong Kong. Against
the backdrop of geopolitical tensions, continued volatility in the
macroeconomic and market environment, and the worldwide high interest
rates, the Hong Kong stock market continued to experience volatility in
2023 but the overall trend was weak. Although the Hang Seng Index
rose to 22,700 points in January 2023 amidst the relaxation of epidemic
control measures and expectations of recovery, the upward trend was
unsustainable thereafter. The average daily turnover of the Hong Kong
securities market in 2023 was HK$105 billion, representing a decrease of
15.9% from the average of HK$124.9 billion in 2022.

THE UNDERWRITING AND PLACING BUSINESS

The Group’s management and execution team have been working hard to
diversify its services and increase its income source despite the challenging
industry environment. This has been achieved by placing offshore urban
investment bonds, which are debt instruments issued by local Chinese
government financing vehicles (the “LGFVs"), in offshore listed bond and
interbank bond markets. The LGFVs are separate legal entities established
by local governments and their affiliates to raise financing for public
welfare investment or infrastructure projects. These projects have been
initiated since the fourth quarter of 2023 and have accomplished 10 bond
issuances and contributed approximately HK$68 million to the Group’s
revenue for FY2023/24. The services provided are similar to the traditional
placement services offered by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors have observed the changes and challenges of the initial
public offering (“IPO") market environment in Hong Kong, and to
address them, they pursued diversifying the Group’s focus on offshore
urban construction bonds. This strategic move helped the Group expand
its network to include institutional clients, thereby reducing reliance on
individual clients, which is not considered sustainable over the long term.
Furthermore, the Directors have expressed confidence in the placing
and underwriting business as a viable and sustainable venture that can
contribute significantly to the Group’s long-term growth and success.
Currently, the Chinese government has implemented measures to facilitate
the return of corporate foreign debt funds, fund use, and financing
leverage ratios. Therefore, the funds raised through overseas debt are
less restricted in their use and return. It is expected that there will be
high market demand for subscription of urban investment bonds and the
Directors are confident that the underwriting and placing business will
continue to grow.

Apart from developing the License Business, the Group has also explored
other business opportunities to expand and diversify its existing business.
The Group has been developing its Type 9 (asset management) license
business since 2019 by offering investment advisory services to established
funds and investors on both a discretionary and non-discretionary basis.
Additionally, the Group is considering expanding the corporate finance
advisory business through acquisition, with particular focus on those Type
6 licensed corporations under the SFO that have an established network
of clients and active deals in the pipeline; the horizontal expansion into
corporate finance advisory aspect not only enhances the Group’s service
scope but also enable the Company to provide a one-stop service for the
clients, and as a result creates client stickiness benefits in establishing long
term client relationship. The Board is confident that expanding the scope
of professional services will increase market share by capturing the needs
of high-net-worth and corporate clients and offering a diversified range
of professional advisory, brokerage, corporate finance, investment, and
financing services within a one-stop platform.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S T DT

THE MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

The business model

The Group has operated its money lending business through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Orient Securities Finance Limited (“OSFL") is a licensed
money lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

Based on the existing business model of OSFL, OSFL offers loan financing
to private companies and/or individuals provided with collaterals or
securities which are mainly real estate assets located in Hong Kong or the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). OSFL also offers unsecured personal
loans which are not secured against any asset or properties.

As at 31 March 2024, OSFL had 41 individual customers, which 33 of
them were property mortgage loan customers and 8 of them were term
loan customers.

All of the Group’s customers are introduced to the directors of OSFL
through business/personal networks or are referred to OSFL by its existing
or former customers. There is no specific target loan size but each
application would be dealt on its own merit. The Group finances this
money lending business mainly by internal resources.

The internal control procedures in place

The internal control procedures of OSFL could be simply classified into (i)
assessment and approval; and (ii) monitoring and recovery.

Assessment and approval

Prior to entering into of a loan agreement, the Group shall complete credit
assessment for applicants for its money lending services. In assessing their
creditworthiness, the Group primary focus on the collateral and security
(if any) offered as well as the applicant’s background. In respect of the
secured loans, the size of loans offered to its customers is dependent upon
the type of property to be secured (i.e. residential, commercial or other)
with reference to the value of the underlying security, or the residual value
of the underlying security once any prior securities have been valued and
assessed. In majority of cases, the Group grants secured loans with a loan-
to-value ratio of no more than 60% of the value in the valuation report of
the property.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

When a loan agreement is signed and before the drawdown of the
secured loan, OSFL is required to report to the State Administration of
Foreign Exchange (“SAFE") of the PRC of the amount of the loan and the
terms of the relevant loan agreement, and obtain the necessary approval
from SAFE. In respect of the unsecured loans, the Group should conduct
annual review on each unsecured loan which remains outstanding and if
the Group notices that there is a material deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position, the Group may require repayment from its client after
reporting to its management who monitor the risk level. The Group
evaluates collateral according to various matrices, such as their liquidity,
market value volatility and type. In addition to the collateral, the Group’s
credit assessment department takes into account the client’s occupation,
reputation, investment purpose, securities concentration, asset proof
and credit history, which facilitate the Group’s assessment on the client’s
repayment ability. Where insufficient information is provided, the Group
may conduct credit search with external agencies to obtain background
information and credit history of its client.

The approval process for granting loans include the completion of account
opening form (for new customer) and know-your-customer assessment.
The finance department would verify the information obtained (including
identity, business background information and collateral information),
check against supporting documents (including identity documents,
address proof, securities statements, documents by conducting public
searches and financial statements (for corporate borrowers)) and initiate
credit assessment form for further processing. The board of directors of
OSFL would be responsible for approving the grant of the loan.

The approval process for extending the loans include (i) the borrower is
required to sign an irrevocably undertaking in favour of OSFL that he/she
will cooperate with OSFL to complete all rectification procedures, if any; (ii)
appraise the value of the collateral and demonstrate the conditions of the
collateral as if it is ready for disposal; (iii) during the extension period, the
borrower is obliged to repay the outstanding interest during the term of
extension, and the loans are repayable on demand; and (iv) OSFL reserves
the right to take legal action against the borrower in the event of default.
The board of directors of OSFL would be responsible for approving the
extension of the loan.

The accounting and finance department maintains a record of customer’s
loan and the repayment dates. The accounts team will also work with the
credit administration team to monitor repayment and issue reminders and
alerts for overdue instalments, where necessary, and when the loan is near

expiry
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R am B AT

Ongoing monitoring and loan recovery

During the monitoring stage, the Group’s credit risk management
department monitors the repayment status of each loan on a monthly
basis and is required to report to those charged with governance.

The board of directors of OSFL meets once a month to review the status of
all customers, discuss necessary actions required and serves as an input for
loan classification in assessing the impairment loss on loan receivables for
financial reporting purpose. The board of directors of OSFL would report to
the Board the latest status of loan receivables monthly, and the Board will
give necessary instruction to the board of directors of OSFL to enhance the
efficiency in implementation of the necessary actions required.

The actions taken for recovering delinquent loans would include
examination and evaluation of the relevant loan status, discussion
with the customer and internal discussion about formulating possible
action plan. Recovery strategy involve a wide range of actions including
revision of repayment terms, addition of collaterals/guarantee, execution
of settlement agreement, foreclosure of collaterals/enforcement of
guarantees and commencement of legal proceedings.

The Group strives to strike a successful balance in its business operations
and risk management by adhering to its credit policies in order to
control the quality of its loan portfolio. The Group has also appointed an
independent internal control advisor to conduct independent review on
adequacy and effective of internal control systems of the Group’s money
lending business.

Major terms of the loans granted

As at 31 March 2024, there are 42 outstanding loan accounts maintained
in the Group's loan portfolio, and the average principal amount of the loan
ranges from approximately HK$38,000 to HK$14,000,000. The loan term
of the said loan portfolio ranges from 12 months to 60 months.

Based on the outstanding Group’s loan portfolio, approximately 91.7%
of the total amount of the outstanding loans are secured by collaterals
with annual interest rate ranging from 8% to 14.5% per annum. For
those unsecured loans, which account for approximately 8.3% of the total
amount of the outstanding loans, the annual interest rate charged ranging
from 10% to 24% per annum.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The impairment assessment and recognition for the year ended 31
March 2024

The Group, based on the applicable accounting standards, applies the
general approach, which is generally referred to as the “three-stage”
model under the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 9 “Financial
Instrument”, in with the expected credit losses (“ECL") of the loan and
interest receivables are determined based on (i) the changes in credit
quality of the loan and interest receivables since initial recognition; and
(i) the estimated expectation of an economic loss of the loan and interest
receivables under consideration.

Under the general approach, there are two measurement bases for
allowance of ECL: (a) 12-month ECL, which are the ECL that result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date and are calculated as the allowance for ECL on a loan receivable
weighted by the probability of default accumulated over the 12 months
after the reporting date; (b) lifetime ECL, which are the ECL that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of a loan receivable
and are calculated as the allowance for ECL on a loan receivable weighted
by the probability of default accumulated over the entire life of the loan
receivable.

The allowance for ECL on loan and interest receivables are derived from
gross credit exposure, recovery rate and probability of default. The Group
uses the following ECL formula to calculate the allowance for ECL on its
loan and interest receivables:

Discount factor x probability of default x loss given default x exposure at
default

For ECL assessment, the Group’s loan and interest receivables are classified
as follows:

(i)  Stage 1 (Performing) includes loan receivables that have not had
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that
have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these loan receivables,
12-month ECL are recognised.

(i)  Stage 2 (Underperforming) includes loan receivables that have had
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition (unless
they have low credit risk at the reporting date) but that do not have
objective evidence of impairment. For these loan receivables, lifetime
ECL are recognised.
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B E R WA

(i) Stage 3 (Non-performing) includes loan receivables that have
objective evidence of impairment and are considered as credit-
impaired financial assets at the reporting date. For these loan
receivables, lifetime ECL are recognised.

As at 31 March 2024, an aggregate amount of impairment for the ECL
of approximately HK$181,116,000 was recognised in stage 3 for the year
ended 31 March 2024.

The Group engaged Win Bailey Valuation and Advisory Limited (“Win
Bailey"”), as the independent professional valuer to carry out an
assessment of the ECL.

To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the Directors
having made all reasonable enquiry, Win Bailey and its ultimate beneficial
owners are independent third parties and not connected with the
Company and its connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules).

Events leading to the impairment
The Group had engaged Beijing Jincheng Tongda & Neal (Guangzhou) Law

Firm* (db &R (EIN) R EHFT) (“Beijing Jincheng”) to review,

in particular the followings:

the PRC rules and regulations that is applicable to the Group on
cross-border security and guarantee arrangements;

- the necessary reporting and/or filing procedures that is required to
carry out before making a cross-border financing transaction;

- the rectification measures for issues arising from deficiencies in the
Group’s policies and procedures; and

- the enforcement process in the PRC and a preliminary estimation

on the successful rate, cost and timing of liquidating or realising the
value of collateral of borrowers in the PRC.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Base on the legal opinion of Beijing Jincheng, the Board realised that the
situation for the abovementioned matters have not material changes since
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023. The procedures for liquidating
or otherwise realising the value of collateral of borrowers in the PRC may
be protracted or ultimately unsuccessful, and the enforcement process in
the PRC may be difficult for legal and practical reasons. Moreover, there is
no assurance that the Group will be able to realise the value of collateral in
a timely matter.

Win Bailey had considered the legal opinion obtained by the Board, and
considered that the enforcement application for assets and liquidating or
realising the value of such assets may be time consuming or ultimately
unsuccessful. Also, Win Bailey had conducted assessment on the value
of the collateral which indicated a significant decline due to a downturn
in the PRC real estate market in FY2023/24. Based on this, Win Bailey
was of the view that the Group are exposed to risk of losing a significant
outstanding amount of such loans. Therefore, a significant loss ratio
with a range of 25.9% to 99.5% were applied by the Win Bailey after
considering the external credit rating, repayment history, past due and
default status of the debtors, as well as the progress of legal actions taken
by the Company for the recovery of the loan and interest receivables.

In order to ensure the adequacy of allowance for ECL on loan and interest
receivables for the year ended 31 March 2024, after considering the
valuation basis adopted, value of inputs used and the key assumptions
applied by the Win Bailey, the Board considered that the amount of
impairment for the ECL allowances is consistent with updated legal view
on the Group’s loan recoverability and also the deteriorating market
environment and expectation.
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Set out below is the table showing details of customers where material

UTEHINBE_T_MFE=A=+—HILF

recognition on ECL allowances were noted during the year ended 31 ERTIEFAEAEHEEBERERIAZE

March 2024. P25 -
Loan and
interest
Relationship receivables Recognition of
with the (before ECL reversal ~ ECL allowance
Company accumulated  Accumulated  onloanand  fortheyear  Accumulated
and its ECL allowance)  ECL allowance interest ended ECLallowance Type of The Group's
No. of connected Maturity asat31March  asat1April receivables for 31 March asat31March guarantee/ assessment on
Category  No.of loans customers persons Interestrate  period 2024 2023 the year 2024 2024 security credit risk
RZZ-mE
ZA=t+-8
HEWER S gz
kHE  =B=ZE “EIME  RIBC@E
(W%  HmA-BH =A=t-R =HA=t+-H
BARFR it ZitRA  FAERER LEE  WEHRS rEEY
HBEAL FEER FEER RASHES  BREHE EEFR BR/EA FERR
5 EXHUE RFUE WHAE Gilk:S HBHR A B GEFERE  SFERR B =22 R
HK$ million HKS million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million
BEET BEAT BBAET BEET BEAET
Secured 34 33 Independent Ranging from  0to 16 346.5 1339 24 39.1 1706  Secured by Considered
loans third parties 8% t0 14.5%  months collateral which ~ manageable
per annum are mainly real
estate assets
located in the
PRC
HERER BUE=T  FHNENT8% 0Z16EA FEUR BrEE
Z145% PENELE
RERREER
Unsecured 8 8 Independent Ranging from  0t0 18 314 15 - (1.0) 105 Personal Considered
loans third parties  10%t024%  months quarantee manageable
per annum
BERER BUE=T FHNENT  0Z18fEA BARR BrEE
10% % 24%
Total 2 ] 3719 1454 (2.4) 38.1 181.1
@t

ORIENT SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2023/24



Management Discussion and Analysis

During the FY2023/24, the overall management oversight is provided by
Ms. Lee Nga Ching, who is the execute Director. She has over ten years of
experience in the industry and is primarily responsible for, among others,
carry out, supervising and monitoring the daily money lending activities,
reviewing and implementing the company’s internal procedure and
handling recoverability of all outstanding debts.

Maturity profile of loan receivables

The following table sets forth the distribution of the remaining maturity as
at 31 March 2024:

B E S W B AT

KRB = /" EF  BREREBEHANT
EEPHELTRE - REBBBTENTE
RE TREE (RPEE)RFA HBEREE
BENEED s RAITARZAERERF A
FREMEAREBEBZAIKEEEE -

BWERNEHER

TREINR —Z-_ME=A=+—BHFIERET
HIE e 2 -

As at 31 March

R=B=+-—8H
2024 2023
—E-{mEF —E-=F

Net amount % Net amount %
R % HER %

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT
Within one year —FR 182,833 93 207,220 93
1 year to 5 years 16 ZE54 13,899 7 15,404 7
196,732 100 222,624 100
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31 March 2024 (the “FY2023/24" or the
“Year"), the Group’s principal business remained to act as an integrated
financial service provider licensed to (i) conduct Type 1 (dealing in
securities) regulated activity under the SFO; (ii) conduct Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activity under the SFO; and (iii) money lending
business, through its subsidiaries.

Revenue

Over the years, the Group aims to establish a full-service platform for its
clients with integrated financial services tailored to their varying needs.
During the Year, the Group operates its business through its main
operating subsidiaries, namely Orient Securities Limited (“OSL") and
OSFL and its income mainly generated from (a) brokerage services and
relevant service income; (b) underwriting and placing services; (c) asset
management services; and (d) money lending services.

Set out below is the breakdown of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2024:

5t %5 1o R

BHE_ZT-_NMF=A=1+—HLEHERFE (=
BE=/—OBEIRAEE]) c AEEN
FEEBNAEREECRIRIGHIER B
EMB AR BRI () ETESLBAEKRAIET
F1HE(BHFRZ)ZHETY  (VETEHFK
HERBIIETEI B (REEEEE) XHEE
B RV EHREER -

L0§

BEZF  AEBEEARERFPEY—EEZFA
URETFE  HEEETENERIERGES
ﬂ%% RAFE  ANEBBEBEFBLEN

RARHETFEFSFER AR ([RAEME
#Dﬁiﬁﬁwwﬁwﬁﬁiﬁ mHE A E
TR E () 42 IR 7S R ARSI A ¢ (b) 2
NEERE : (QBEBERY  Xd)HER
ﬁ%o

ATEHINAEEHE T _NF=A=+—H
IFFEmMEN A -

For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-—Z_mF #HE-ZT-_=F
=A + = =A=+—H
ILEE IE+EM@EA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx F&T
Revenue recognised under HKFRS 9 RIBE B HREERFEIRERZ
Wz
— Interest income from margin financing — & B & R 2 7 2K A
services 2,033 3,905
— Interest income from money lending —ERRS 2 F 2 A
services 21,241 43,237
Revenue recognised at a point in time BIEB B R E LR E 155
under HKFRS 15 RE— K E R 2 W
— Commission income from brokerage — 840 RS 2 A M A
services 567 1,119
— Underwriting and placement income — B REEKRA 70,349 714
— Service income —BRF WA 688 150
Total st 94,878 49,125
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(i)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Brokerage and related financial services

During the Year, there was no significant improvement was seen in
the domestic economy and investment sentiment remained bleak.
According to the statistics released by the Stock Exchange, the
average daily turnover on the main board and GEM of the Stock
Exchange dropped by approximately 15.9% from HK$124.9 billion
in 2022 to HK$105 billion in 2023 and the Hang Seng Index finally
closed at 17,047 points at the end of 2023, representing cumulative
decline of 2,734 points, or 13.8%, for the year, indicating that both
stock market performance and trading incentive were still sluggish.
Suffering from the aforementioned factors, the Group’s securities
brokerage income, which represented approximately 0.6% of the
Group’s total income, has dropped to approximately HK$567,000
(For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023: approximately
HK$1,119,000).

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had 595 active securities accounts
as reported pursuant to SFO (31 March 2023: 617 active securities
accounts).

Underwriting and placing services

For the Year, the Group recorded approximately HK$70,349,000
placing commission income (For the fifteen months ended 31 March
2023: approximately HK$714,000), which represented an increase
of approximately HK$69,635,000 or 9,753% compared with the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2023. The increase is mainly due
to the Group’s management developing a new business stream,
provide placement service for offshore urban investment bonds,
which are debt instruments issued by LGFVs, in offshore listed
bond and interbank bond markets. These projects contributed
approximately HK$68 million to the Group’s revenue for FY2023/24.
However, given the sluggish market conditions, the Group adheres
to its prudent business strategies and stringent risk management
measures and therefore no underwriting services had been offered
during the Year.
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B E R WA

(iii) Asset management services

(iv)

During the Year, the Group recognised an asset management fee of
approximately HK$688,000 (For the fifteen months ended 31 March
2023: approximately HK$150,000).

Money lending business

The money lending business is conducted by the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiary, OSFL, which is a licensed money lender under the
Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the laws of Hong Kong).

As disclosed in the annual report of the Group for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2023, the Board had resolved to scale
down its money lending business by no longer approving new
loan applications. Instead, it will focus solely on the extension and
recovery of existing loans.

For the Year, the interest income from money lending services
amounted to approximately HK$21,241,000 (For the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2023: approximately HK$43,237,000).
The decrease is mainly due to calculate the interest income based
on the credit risk assessment of the Group’s loan portfolio which
had been changed from stage 2 to stage 3 in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting standards, the interest income from
money lending services for the Year was recognised and calculated
based on the net carrying amount (that is, the gross carrying amount
less the expected credit loss allowance). Comparatively, the interest
income from money lending services for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2023 was recognised and calculated based on the loan’s
gross carrying amount (that is, without deduction for the expected
credit loss allowance).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employee costs

The total employee costs for the Year was approximately HK$5.9 million
(For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023: approximately HK$10.2
million). The decrease is mainly due to the absent of recognition of equity-
settled share based expense approximately HK$1,987,000 during the
Year.

B E S W B AT

BIEA

RNFE B TR B EE 4 /45,900,000 7T (&
EE_ZFZA=FT—HIETHREA: L
10,200,000/ 7) - A EERBHRAFE
WEBRAARELEEUARDAEEROBAILD
1,987,000 7T °

For the
For the year fifteen months
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
BZE HZE
—E-_ME —Eo=F
=A=+-—A8 =A=+—H
LEE IE+R@EA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Commission paid to staff MEIXNz/AE 62 227
Directors’ emoluments and staff salaries, ZEMMESANE TH& -
bonus and allowances TEAT N B, 5,601 7,339
Equity-settled share based expense ARRBEAE B LARR (0 A E TR B SZ - 1,987
Other staff costs including MPF and HMEIRA(BiERES
insurance RARBR) 230 622
5,893 10,175
Administrative and other operating expenses THERHEMEEEA

The total administrative and other operating expenses for the Year was
approximately HK$22.6 million (For the fifteen months ended 31 March
2023: approximately HK$11.5 million). Such increase was mainly due to (i)
the marketing and business development expenses rendering to the new
business stream, provide placement service for offshore urban investment
bonds for the Year approximately HK$8.5 million; and (ii) during the Year,
the Group appointed a debt collection agency for recovery of certain
outstanding interest receivables. Up to 31 March 2024, the Group has
successfully recovered approximately HK$5 million interest receivables and
base on the agreement entered into between the Group and the debt
collection agent, the Group settled a fee of HK$2 million as an agreed
reward (For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023: Nil).
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Impairment for trade receivables, net

There was a recognition of net impairment losses for trade receivables of
approximately HK$19.7 million for the Year (For the fifteen months ended
31 March 2023: approximately HK$6.5 million), which was mainly due
to (i) the assessment of the ECL carry out by Win Bailey, the independent
professional valuer, for the trade receivables of cash and margin clients;
and (ii) to the best of knowledge, information and belief of the Directors
having made all reasonable enquiry, a margin client was passed away.

Loss on disposal of loan receivables

During the Year, the Group had assigned three loans receivables
approximately HK$4 million (net carrying amount) in total and in return,
the Group had received approximately HK$1.9 million. As a result, the
Group incurred approximately HK$2.1 million loss on disposal of loan
and interest receivables during the Year (For the fifteen months ended 31
March 2023: Nil).

Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses for the Year was approximately HK$4.2 million
(For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023: Nil). Such increase was
because of the increase of assessable profits of a subsidiary under Hong
Kong profits tax.

Profit for the year

The Group recorded a net profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$3.4 million for the Year (For the fifteen months ended
31 March 2023: approximately loss of HK$125.7 million).

Such turnaround was primarily attributable to an increase in revenue from
the placement services generated through the placement of offshore
urban investment bonds, generating approximately HK$68 million during
FY2023/24.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING OF NEW
SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 1
November 2022 and 16 November 2022 respectively in relation to, among
other things, the allotment and issuance of an aggregate of 20,736,000
new ordinary shares of the Company to not less than 6 placees under the
general mandate at a placing price of HK$0.22 per placing share.

The net proceeds from the placing of the placing shares at the time of its
completion on 16 November 2022 were approximately HK$4,250,000. As
at 31 March 2024, the net proceeds from the placing shares had been fully
utilised as intended as follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E R WA

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$224.1 million (2023: approximately HK$218.4 million), including cash
and bank balances of approximately HK$41.7 million (2023: approximately
HK$5.8 million). The current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to
current liabilities, was approximately 7.5 times as at 31 March 2024 (2023:
approximately 10.41 times). The gearing ratio, which is calculated by
dividing total interest-bearing debt (that is, debentures) by total equity. As
at 31 March 2024, the Group did not have any interest-bearing debt and
hence, no gearing ratio is computed for the end of the Year. (2023: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares. As at
31 March 2024, total equity attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$239.2 million as at 31 March 2024 (2023:
approximately HK$235.8 million).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

Total employee costs for the Year was approximately HK$5.9 million
(For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023: approximately HK$10.2
million). The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis
of performance, qualifications and experience of individual employee and
make reference to the prevailing market conditions. Our remuneration
packages comprise monthly fixed salaries and discretionary year-end
bonuses based on individual performance, which are paid to employees as
recognition of, and reward for, their contributions.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group did not have any charge arranged with any financial institution
in Hong Kong as at 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The revenue and business costs of the Group were principally denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and Renminbi (“RMB"), while most of
the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities were denominated in HKD and
RMB. The Group’s financial statements are prepared in HKD. As the RMB
is not a freely convertible currency, any fluctuation in the exchange rate
of HKD against RMB may have impact on the Group’s results. Although
foreign currency exposure does not pose a significant risk on the Group
and currently, the Group does not have hedging measures against such
exchange risks, the Group will continue to take proactive measures and
monitor closely the risk arising from such currency movement.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 March 2024, the Group did
not have any significant capital commitments (2023: nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 March 2024, the Group did
not have a plan for material investments or capital assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S T DT

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 22 September 2022, OSL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as a defendant received a writ of summons (the “Writ A”) issued in
the Court of First Instance of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region by a solicitor acting for Ms. Dong Yun as a plaintiff
(the “Plaintiff A”) against OSL. As stated in the statement of claim
attached to the Writ A, Plaintiff A, who was a client of OSL, claim (the
“Claim A") against, OSL, for (i) damages for unlawful means conspiracy;
(i) interest; (iii) costs; and (iv) further and/other relief in connection with a
series of alleged unlawful acts carried out by OSL with other defendants as
stated in the Writ A.

After seeking professional advice from the legal advisor engaged by
the Company (the “Legal Advisor”), and to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
the Board believes that the Claim A for conspiracy and/or fraud against
OSL is weak to the extreme and could hardly stand up to an argument for
overcoming the hurdle of time barred. By reason of the facts and analysis
conducted by the Legal Advisor, the Board is of the view that the Claim A
will not have any material impact on the Group’s financial position.

A mediation was held on 9 May 2024 and the parties are unable to resolve
the dispute. Now Claim A is under the Court’s direction for the Plaintiff to
set the case down for a trial and as at the date of this annual report, OSL
is waiting for further information from the Plaintiff A regarding the trial.
Further announcement(s) will be made to update on the progress of Claim
A and when appropriate.

On 6 July 2023, OSL as a defendant received a writ of summons (the “Writ
B”) issued in the Court of First Instance of the High Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region by a solicitor acting for Ms. Tian Juan
as a plaintiff (the “Plaintiff B”) against the OSL. As stated in the statement
of claim attached to the Writ B, Plaintiff B, who was a client of OSL, claim
(the “Claim B"”) against, OSL, for (i) restitution of the sum of HK$10
million; (ii) damages for fraudulent misrepresentation and deceit; (iii) pay
over any assets held on trust for Plaintiff B; (iv) damages for negligence;
and (v) damages for breach of the cash client agreement with Plaintiff B.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

After seeking professional advice from the Legal Advisor, and to the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, the Board believes that Claim B against OSL is weak. By reason
of the facts and analysis conducted by the Legal Advisor, the Board is of
the view that Claim B will not have any material impact on the Group’s
financial position. According to the Court’s order on 21 May 2024, Plaintiff
B, OSL and the other defendants are to attempt to resolve the dispute by
mean of mediation and provide an update to the Court by 31 July 2024.
As of the date of this annual report, the date of mediation has not been
fixed between the parties. Further announcement(s) will be made to
update on the progress of Claim B as and when appropriate.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Application for a review by the GEM listing review committee

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 21 March 2024
in relation to, among other things, the GEM Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange had decided to uphold the decision (the “GEM Listing
Committee Decision”) of the listing division of the Stock Exchange
to suspend trading in the Company’s shares under Rule 9.04(3) of the
GEM Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule 4.06(2) of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has the right to have the GEM Listing Committee Decision
referred to the GEM Listing Review Committee of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM Listing Review Committee”) for a further and final review.
On 3 April 2024, the Company filed an application for a review by the
GEM Listing Review Committee in relation to the GEM Listing Committee
Decision. For more details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 21 March 2024 and 3 April 2024.

Subscription of fund

On 3 May 2024, the Company entered into the subscription agreement
with Orient Global Master SPC (the “Fund”), an exempted company
incorporated with limited liability and registered as a segregated portfolio
company under the laws of Cayman Islands. Pursuant to which the
Company agreed to subscribe for the participating shares attributable to
the segregated portfolio in the capital of the Fund, at a total subscription
amount of US$300,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2.34 million). For
more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 3
May 2024 and 7 May 2024.
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BIRE S T DT

Suspension of duties and powers of an executive director

After conduct a comprehensive assessment throughout the year regarding
the internal control, ongoing monitoring, and loan recovery of the Group’s
money lending business (the “Money Lending Business”) by the Board.
The findings of the said assessment reveal an oversight in registering
loan collaterals in China and limited progress in the management’s loan
recovery efforts. Consequently, the Group continues to bear impairment
losses on the loan receivables.

After careful consideration of the above circumstances and with the aim of
addressing any concerns that the Company’s management, shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”), or potential investors may have
regarding the responsibilities of Ms. Lee Nga Ching (“Ms. Lee”), an
executive Director overseeing the Money Lending Business, the Board has
resolved the decision to suspend Ms. Lee’s duties with effect from 18 June
2024 until further notice (the “Suspension”).

The Board considers that the Suspension would not affect the daily
operation of the Group in any material respects and the current operation
of the Group is normal and stable. The Company will closely monitor
any further information relating to Ms. Lee and will make further
announcement(s) in accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules as and when appropriate.

Discloseable transaction and major transaction in relation to the
extension of loans

Due to an inadvertent oversight, the Company has failed to promptly
comply with the notification, announcement, and shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules regarding the transactions
contemplated under the loan extension agreement(s) entered into
between OSFL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and thirty-
four (34) borrowers in relation to the extension of the maturity date of
the respective loan facility from 3 April 2023 to 6 April 2023 (the “Loan
Extension Agreement(s)”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In fact, the Company would like to stress that having not regarded the
transactions contemplated under the Loan Extension Agreements as
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules was unintentional since it was a
genuine belief held by the then Board at the material time that the loan
extension exercise did not fall under the notification transactions specified
in Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules.

With the total 34 Loan Extension Agreements, of which twenty-three
(23) loans exceeded 5% but was less than 25% based on the applicable
percentage ratios as defined under the GEM Listing Rules (the “Loan
Portfolio A"). Therefore, each of the loans under Loan Portfolio A
constituted disclosable transaction of the Company and was subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 19 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

In addition, of which the eleven (11) loans exceeded 25% but was less
than 100% based on the applicable percentage ratios as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules (the “Loan Portfolio B”). Accordingly, each
of the loans under Loan Portfolio B constituted major transactions of
the Company and was subject to the reporting, announcement, and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

An extraordinary general meeting will be convened and held for the
Shareholders to consider and, if they think fit, approve the relevant
resolutions regarding the extension of loans in Loan Portfolio B. For more
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20 June
2024.
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Corporate Governance Report
PERERRSE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of Orient
Securities International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present this corporate
governance report of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining high standard
of corporate governance. The Directors believe that good and effective
corporate governance practices are essential for the growth of the Group
and for safeguarding the interests of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and the Group’s assets.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) in Appendix C1 of the GEM Listing Rules. Throughout the
year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this report, to the
best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied with all the
applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code, save for the deviation
from code provision C.1.6 as explained below and the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 as mentioned in the section headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” in this report.

Pursuant to C.1.6 of CG Code, the independent non-executive Directors,
as equal board members, should attend general meetings to gain and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of Shareholders. Due
to other unavoidable engagements, two independent non-executive
Directors was unable to attend annual general meeting of the Company
held on 31 August 2023.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors (the “Required Standard of Dealing”). Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, each of them has confirmed that he/she
has complied with the Required Standard of Dealing throughout the year
ended 31 March 2024. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the
Company during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five Directors,

including three executive Directors and two independent non-executive

Directors. Details of their composition by category are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shiu Shu Ming

Ms. Lee Nga Ching (duties suspended)
Mr. Cao Weimin'

Ms. Suen Tin Yan?

Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol?

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Siu Kin Wai

Ms. Chan Man Yi*

Mr. Cheng Ching Fu®

Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire®

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the section

headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this

report.

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are

published at the Stock Exchange website and the Company’s website

(www.orientsec.com.hk).

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance in respect of

legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed

on an annual basis.

58w oN o

Appointed as an executive director with effect from 19 April 2024.

Resigned as an executive director with effect from 31 March 2024.

Retired as an executive director with effect from 31 August 2023.

Resigned as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect
from 25 June 2024.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect
from 30 November 2023.

Retired as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect
from 31 August 2023.
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Non-compliance with rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM listing rules
and terms of reference of committees

On 25 June 2024, Ms. Chan Man Yi (“Ms. Chan") has tendered
her resignation as an independent non-executive Director due to her
commitments to other business engagements, which requires greater
allocation of her time and dedication. Following the resignation of Ms.
Chan and up to the date of this report, no independent non-executive
Director has been appointed in place of Ms. Chan and therefore as at the
date of this report:

(i)  the number of independent non-executive Directors fell below
the minimum number as required under Rule 5.05(1) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the "GEM Listing Rules”);

(i) the number of members of the audit committee of the Board (the
“Audit Committee”) fell below the minimum number as required
under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules; and

(i)  the number of members of each of the Audit Committee,
the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the remuneration committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) fell below the minimum number
as required under the respective terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.

As at the date of this report, the Company is still in the process of
identifying suitable candidates to fill up the vacancies and will endeavour
to appoint any suitable candidates so as to fulfill the minimum
requirements under Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
within three months from 25 June 2024. The Company will make
further announcement(s) in relation to such appointment(s) as and when
appropriate in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.

For more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
25 June 2024.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the board of directors of
an issuer must include at least three independent non-executive directors
("INED(s)"”). Pursuant to Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the audit
committee of an issuer must comprise a minimum of three members.
Following the retirement of Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire (“Ms. Luk”), the
then INED of the Company with effect from 31 August 2023, the number
of INEDs and composition of the Audit Committee have failed to meet the
relevant requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

Following the appointment of Mr. Cheng Ching Fu as an INED of the
Company on 30 November 2023, the number of INEDs and composition
of the Audit Committee have complied with the relevant requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with Rules
5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules during the Year.
The Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board, and with at least one of
them possessing the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The independent non-executive
Directors, together with the executive Directors, ensure that the Board
prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict compliance with
the relevant standards. The Company has received an annual confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors
and believes that their independence is in compliance with the Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group. They are collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Groups’ affairs. The Board is
accountable to Shareholders for the strategic development of the Group
with the goal of maximising long-term shareholder value, while balancing
broader stakeholder interests. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
responsibility to the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company who meet on a regular basis to review the financial results and
performance of the Group and make financial and operational decisions
for the implementation of strategies and plans approved by the Board.
The Board also communicates with Shareholders and regulatory bodies
and makes recommendations to Shareholders on final dividends and the
declaration of any interim dividend.
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Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication to determine overall strategic direction and objectives and
approve quarterly (if any), interim and annual results, and other significant
matters. The Board held 7 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2024. Individual attendance records of each Director at the respective
Board and committee meetings are set out in the table on page 42 of this
report.

The Board meets regularly on a quarterly basis. Notice of at least 14
days is given to all Directors for a regular Board meeting. Apart from
the regular Board meetings of the year, the Board also meets on other
occasions when a Board level decision on a particular matter is required.
For such, reasonable notice is generally given. All Directors have full
and timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice and
services of the company secretary, senior management and compliance
officer of the Company who are responsible for ensuring the compliance
of the Company with the GEM Listing Rules and advising the Board
on compliance matters. Directors are also provided with access to
independent professional advice, where necessary, in carrying out their
obligations as Directors. Any Directors and their associates who are
considered to have conflict of interests or material interests in the proposed
transactions or issues to be discussed in the Board meetings shall abstain
from voting on the relevant resolutions and are not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings.

At least 3 days (or such other period as agreed in advance) before each
Board meeting, a draft agenda is sent out to all Directors in order to allow
the Directors to include any other matters in the agenda that are required
for discussion and resolution in the meeting. To enable the Directors to
make informed decisions, Board papers together with all appropriate and
relevant information in relation to the matters of the meeting are sent
to all Directors 3 days or such other period as agreed before each Board
meeting such that the Directors have sufficient time to review the related
documents and be adequately prepared for the meeting.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
is responsible to keep minutes of all Board meetings and committees
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to all Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
versions are available for inspection by the Directors.
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Relationships between the Board

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report, none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with
any other Director and chief executives of the Company.

Confirmation by the Directors Pursuant to Rule 5.02D of the GEM
Listing Rules

Rule 5.02D of the GEM Listing Rules, which became effective from 31
December 2023, stipulates that every director of a listed issuer must
obtain legal advice from a firm of solicitors qualified to advise on Hong
Kong law as regards the requirements under the GEM Listing Rules that
are applicable to him as a director of a listed issuer and the possible
consequences of making a false declaration or giving false information to
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Cao Weimin (“Mr. Cao"”) were appointed as an executive Director
on 19 April 2024. Mr. Cao obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule
5.02D on 10 April 2024 and confirmed he understood his obligations as a
director of a listed issuer.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development Programme

Each Director receives comprehensive and formal induction and orientation
to ensure he/she adequately understand the operations and business of
the Group. The Company also provided detailed director’s responsibilities
and obligations statement pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules for the
Directors to review and study. In addition, materials in relation to regularly
update on latest development in relation to the GEM Listing Rules,
other applicable regulatory requirements and the Group’s business and
governance policies (the “Reading Materials in relation to Continuous
Professional Developments”) were circulated to the Directors.
Continuing briefings and seminars for the directors will be arranged as
necessary. The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional developments to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills periodically. The Company will continue to arrange training to the
Directors in accordance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code.
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During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Directors participated in the
continuous professional developments in the following manner:

REBEE-_FT_NME-_A=1T—HLEFE E=F
BEREZFEEXEERNT

Attending
seminars/
Reading courses/
Materials in conferences
relation to in relation to
Continuous Continuous
Professional Professional
Developments Developments
HEEBRFESHE
FRBESERRE BRERCERSE
Name HE Z B A R RE 88
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Shiu Shu Ming AR A v =
Ms. Lee Nga Ching (duties suspended) WAL (EEEE) v/ =
Mr. Cao Weimin' EREREE = -
Ms. Suen Tin Yan? PN v -
Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol? ERREE? -
Independent non-executive Directors BN IEHITES
Mr. Siu Kin Wai mRELEE v v
Ms. Chan Man Yi# PRE|EZ T v v
Mr. Cheng Ching Fu® B EH e e A v 4
Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire® BoE & % 2L+ 6 v -
1 Appointed as an executive director with effect from 19 April 2024. : BT -_NFNAT+NBEREZETRNITES -
2 Resigned as an executive director with effect from 31 March 2024. 2 BT -_WFE=A=1+—HEFHEINTES -
3 Retired as an executive director with effect from 31 August 2023. E BT -_=FN\A=T+—HEBRENTES -
2 Resigned as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit ¢ B _NENA-TRRREEBIIFRITES
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect EZZEEG REZESRFMNEZESZTEAKE -

from 25 June 2024.

2 Appointed as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect
from 30 November 2023.

6 Retired as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect
from 31 August 2023.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(IICEO")

The Company has not yet adopted C.2.1 of the CG Code. Pursuant
to C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and CEO should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company currently has no Chairman or CEO. The daily operation and
management of the Company is monitored by the executive Directors
as well as the senior management of the Company (the “Senior
Management”).

The Board is of the view that although there is no Chairman or CEO, the
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board,
which comprises experienced individuals who would meet from time to
time to discuss issues affecting operation of the Company and the Group.
This arrangement can still enable the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives efficiently
and effectively in response to the changing environment.

The Company will, at the appropriate time, arrange for the election of the
new Chairman of the Board.

APPOINTMENT, RESIGNATION AND RE-ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles”). The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Board composition and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning for
Directors and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)").

Under the code provision B.2.2 and in accordance with the Articles,
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board or as an addition to the Board should be subject to re-election by
Shareholders at the next annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM") after their appointment.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) which set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises the importance and the benefit of having a diverse
Board that fits its own business model and needs in order to achieve its
corporate goals and strategies. In designing the Board’s composition,
board diversity has been considered from a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Company also sees diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage. The Company does not
discriminate on the grounds of race, gender, disability, age, religions or any
other factor. The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy
and the measurable objectives at least annually to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Diversity Policy and review the Board composition under diversified
perspectives annually to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the
businesses of the Company. The Nomination Committee would receive
nominations from Shareholders or Directors when such are tendered and
make recommendations to the Board on the candidacy of the nominees,
having regard to the Board’s compositional requirements and suitability
of the nominees. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five
Directors. Two of them are INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Company targets to maintain
a Board with female representation, and gender diversity is achieved in
respect of the Board. The Board currently has one female Director and as
such has achieved gender diversity in respect of the Board. The Company is
conscious of gender diversity when considering potential successors to the
Board to achieve gender diversity, all appointments are ultimately made
on a merit basis taking into account available and suitable candidates. The
Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in
terms of gender, nationality, professional background and skills.

Our diversity philosophy including gender diversity was generally followed
in the workforce throughout the Group for the Year. As at 31 March
2024, the Group has 71% of male in the workforce while 29% of female
in the workforce. The Group is striving for gender equality in our workforce
and hire our employee only basis on their abilities.

The Diversity Policy is available on the website of the Company for public
information.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee (collectively “Board
Committees”), with defined written terms of reference which are in
line with the code provisions of the CG Code describing their respective
authority and duties and for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are
published on the websites of the Company (www.orientsec.com.hk) and
the Stock Exchange (www. hkexnews.hk). All the members of the Board
Committees are INEDs. All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, and upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense. Minutes of the Board Committees meetings
recorded sufficient detail of matters and the decisions reached were kept
by the Company Secretary and available for inspection by the respective
members of Board Committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code
provision D.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit Committee currently comprises
two independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Siu Kin
Wai. The other member is Mr. Cheng Ching Fu.

The primary duty of the Audit Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor, to approve their remuneration and terms of
engagement, to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards, to review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting; and oversee financial reporting
system, compliance procedures, internal control, environmental, social and
governance matters, risk management systems, audit plan and relationship
with external auditor and arrangements to enable employees of the Group
to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company and monitor
continuing connected transactions. All members of the Audit Committee
are appointed by the Board.
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The Audit Committee has met its responsibilities to review the Group’s
quarterly reports for the three months ended 30 June 2023, interim
report for the six months ended 30 September 2023 and the Group’s
audited annual results for the year ended 31 March 2024 and provided
advice and comments thereon. The Audit Committee also has made
recommendations to the Board and the management of the Company in
respect of the Group’s financial reporting and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2024. Individual attendance records of each member of the Audit
Committee are set out in the table on page 42 of this report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established with written terms
of reference in compliance with code provision B.3.1 of the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises two independent non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Siu Kin Wai. The other member is
Mr. Cheng Ching Fu.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on regular basis; identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; to access the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and to make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning
for Directors. All members of the Nomination Committee are appointed by
the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Nomination Committee
reviewed and discussed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and determined the policy for the nomination of Directors. In
recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee considers candidates on merit against objective criteria and
with due regards to the benefits of diversity to the Board. In designing
the Board's composition, the Board diversity is considered from a number
of perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, industry experience, technical and professional
skills and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be
devoted as a director. The Company will also take into account factors
relating to its own business model and specific needs from time to time.
The Nomination Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2024. Individual attendance records of each member of the
Nomination Committee are set out in the table on page 42 of this report.

ORIENT SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2023/24

EVZBQCETHERE  ERNAKEREC
E=FRNA=ZTHLE=EAZEERE &
ECT_—FAA=ZTRHERNEAZHHERE
EAGEEBEEZE-_FT_MF=A=+—HLFE
REGEFEES YR REER NS -
BEZR BB AEE MM 5 B R AR R
BFAARRIZEZSGNEEBHELERZ

A
2%
=

BREZEENHE_T_WF=A=+—HIt
FELETIRNEH BERLZEBEEKBZE
B ERERHINAREF 42 A 2RI -

REEES

AARBKILIEREZE S  WERGEERST
Az sFAMEXEB3 1 GHI EEMmBEEHE -
REZEBSHENAMBB Y IERTESHEN -
YHEBEREEEETIIRE HEKEASSE
FE o

REZBEZIZRERTHRINEFTEZIR
B HARRAEK  MERBERKAESTEKE
ZNE FHEBMFRITESR 2B kR
ERESZEREENREFTUIFEZEER
EFEoRMER REAZESERENETHRE
FER{T-

REBEE-_T-_NF=A=+—HAILFE  EH
ZESORIRTRESS 22E - AERA
B WEEETREEFIHE MEZGHER
ZEREEAR  REZEeRERBIZEEZE
EEANKRE THEBRESSZTENE
HoERTEFTGZHARE ARBIRZERN
AEZREFTEZ Lt BEETRAMR - F
B XERBEER  TELR  RNMEREXE

Bek, /AWK NF - REBEFREEAES
—BORRE c RARMEZER BB E FEBE
AR TROABTRKNAR -BHE_T_UF
“A=1+—HLLFE REEESRITINEG
& BIRBZE SN E ZEREEEEFHNA
HEFA2HZRE -



Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established with written terms
of reference in compliance with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two independent non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Siu Kin Wai. The other member is
Mr. Cheng Ching Fu.

The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration structure and
policy, determining the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and the Senior Management as well as making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives of the Board. The
Remuneration Committee is also to review and approve compensation
payable to executive Directors and Senior Management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; to review and
approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with contractual
terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate and to review and/
or approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 23 of the
GEM Listing Rules. No Director takes part in any discussion on his/her own
remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Remuneration Committee
determined the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors,
assessed the performance of executive Directors and approved the terms
of executive Director’s services contracts. The Group aims to provide our
employees with fair and equitable remuneration and benefits based on
individual performance, experience and the market benchmarks. The
Group have formulated our employee performance appraisal mechanisms
and makes appropriate salary adjustments in accordance with employee
performance and the employment market situation to reduce the loss
of talent. The Remuneration Committee adopted the model which is
described in the code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code, it makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and Senior Management. The Remuneration
Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31 March 2024.
Individual attendance records of each member of the Remuneration
committee are set out in the table on page 42 of this report.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings EEgREERSE

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the meetings of the Boardand EHZE-Z-_FE=ZA=+—HIFE B=RN
BEEEBURBRRAREG 2 HEF

its respective committees and general meeting during the year ended 31 EZEEFEKEZEZEE
March 2024 are as follows: BT

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to

attend attend attend attend attend
ENZES REZEE FMzES

Ezges = a3 Ef BREAE

BiiE/ B/ Bt/ Bitig/ BitifE/

Name of Director EEnS REREE AEKRLE SERLEE SERHE  AEKHE

Executive Directors iﬂl"%?

Mr. Shiu Shu Ming FRRLE 7/7 N/A 13 A N/A i N/A R EH 1/1

Ms. Lee Nga Ching FRERT

(duties suspended) (TEEH) /7 N/A i N/A i N/A i 11

Mr. Cao Weimin' BERREELE - N/A N iE A N/A N iE A NA @R -

Ms. Suen Tin Yan? BRI L2 5/7 N/A NER N/A i NA T @A 17

Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol? BRRAE? 13 N/A 7~ N/A 7~ i N/A & 0/1

Independent non-executive BYFHITES

Directors

Mr. Siu Kin Wai RRERE " 33 33 33 0/1

Ms. Chan Man Y ReE L Vi 33 33 33 17

Mr. Cheng Ching Fu® HEFEhEs 1/1 = = = =

Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire® BEEELLS 03 02 012 02 0/1

L Appointed as an executive director with effect from 19 April 2024. 0 BT _WFENATNBREZERNITES

2 Resigned as an executive director with effect from 31 March 2024. 2 BT _WF=RA=1+—HEHENTES-

3 Retired as an executive director with effect from 31 August 2023. E BT -_=FN\A=1+—HEBRENTES -

4 Resigned as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit  * BT -_NFAA-+RAREEBEYIERNTES
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect EXLZEE IREZESRFMEESSENKE -
from 25 June 2024.

5 Appointed as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit ~ °® B _=F1+—-A=THREZERBILIFNT
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect BEE ERZES REZEGRFIMNZESRE
from 30 November 2023. Eoj2 4=

6 Retired as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit  °© BT -_=F N \A=1+—BREEBIERTES
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee with effect EXLZEE IREZESRFMEESSENKE -

from 31 August 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties in
accordance with code provision A.2.1 to the CG Code which are included
to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board and report to the
Board on such matters; to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and Senior Management; to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and to review and monitor
the Company’s compliance with the Company’s whistleblowing policy.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties stated in code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code.

AUDITOR AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, remuneration paid and payable to the
auditor of the Group (the “Auditor”) are approximately HK$600,000 (For
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023: HK$540,000) and nil (For the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2023: nil) for audit services and non-audit
services respectively.

Director's Acknowledgement

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditor’s Statement
The statement of the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the

Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 is set
out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this report.
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Financial Reporting

The management of the Company (the “Management”) has provided
to all Directors quarterly updates with quarterly consolidated financial
statements of the Company’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient details during the regular Board meetings. In addition, the
Management has provided all members of the Board, in a timely manner,
updates on any material changes to the performance, position and
prospects of the Company and sufficient information for matters brought
before the Board. The Management will spare no effort to provide all
members of the Board with more detailed and promptly monthly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail in coming future.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with relevant requirements
could lead to adverse impact on business operation and financial position
of the Group.

The Board as a whole is responsible to ensure the Group is in compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group. To the best of knowledge of the Board, the Group has complied
with relevant laws and regulations during the year ended 31 March 2024.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for the establishment and
maintenance of an adequate and effective risk management and internal
control system to safeguard the Group’s assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, to ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
and compliance with relevant legislation and regulations and to protect the
interests of the Shareholders.

The risk management and internal control is also related to our
environmental, social and governance (“ESG"”). Our risk management and
internal control system ensure the Company adheres closely to principles
of sustainable development, seeking to achieve required standards in the
areas of environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operations practices and community service.

ORIENT SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2023/24

Bt %5 R 3R

ARREEE((EEE ) RENEFE SR
BRFALBEZRHEFER  UBHAR
FAHAEIBRARRNKRER  KAKATRHNE
SIRAEMIEHE - WH BEEEBEERBAE
SERKEBRHABARTRE AR KA
SENEMNEAZHNSHEN URPESS
ERNEFRECHES - BEEBETANSK
KeTERNRAEFTE2RKEBIRMEFA
KBz AREH - AR RRR iR R
AIRELRAFZRAOEHAZTME -

BFHEBEGI R ER

4 4 B3 P B B B T B T A
R A A SR 7 0 KB B OR A T
FE 22 m -

EEeRBARRRASEEETHARERE
AR EZHBEDINOER - MESERA
HE-_Z-_WNF=RA=1T—BILFE £&H
BEETHEBED SRR -

[ B % 3 I 0 R B 4

ERRBABREYNERERT D ARNARE
BRAMEIERG  AREAREEERT R
REENERNRE  ERFEEE @5tk
KRBT RBADIFOER - WARERIR A& o

R EE R NEREE R R MIRIRE - g &
R ([RRE -dHERER]) HEE - RN ER
IR K NPT R REIR AN R B AR B ST A £
BERRORA - DRERRRE  RBERST
B EEBOI R ERFREERAER
HYRZE



The Group has engaged an external professional consultant to conduct
independent internal control review and report directly to the Audit
Committee. The review covering the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit, financial reporting functions, as well
as those relating to the Company’s ESG performance and reporting, is also
conducted annually. The Board and the Audit Committee have conducted
an annual review on the need of setting up an internal audit function
and having taken into account the scale of the Group, the Board and
the Audit Committee have considered that the setting up of an internal
audit function was not necessary for the time being and the Board might
consider engaging external services provider to perform the internal audit
function in future.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted an annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system, including, in
particular, financial, operational, compliance control and risk management
functions, environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operations practices and community service for the year ended 31 March
2024 by considering written reports prepared by the external professional
consultant, covering the material financial, operational and compliance
controls, which are considered effective and adequate. The Group's
system of internal controls includes a defined management structure
with limits of authority and the system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives. The Board will continue to assess
the effectiveness of internal controls by considering reviews performed by
the Audit Committee and the Management.

During the review, the Board also considered the resources, qualification/
experience of staffs of the Group’s internal control, accounting and
financial reporting function as well as those relating to the Group’s ESG
performance and reporting, their training and budget to be adequate.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Group has adopted its own information disclosure policy aiming
to provide a general guide to the Directors and Senior Management in
handling of confidential information and/or monitoring of information
disclosure pursuant to applicable laws and regulations, particularly the
GEM Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"). The
Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information and has a system of internal procedures for processing and
publication of information in order to ensure the timely, accurate and
appropriate disclosure of relevant information to the public and regulatory
authorities. The Board authorised only the authorised representatives
registered in the Stock Exchange for responding on behalf of the
Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Huen Felix Ting Cheung (“Mr. Huen"), the Company Secretary, is
employee of the Company and accessible by all Directors for advice and
services with a view of ensuring that Board procedures are followed. He
supports the Board and Board Committees by ensuring good information
flow and report to the Board and assist the Board in functioning effectively
and efficiently.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, Mr. Huen has duly complied with
the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The biographical details of Mr. Huen are set out under the
section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting (the “EGM") to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business or resolution specified in such requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for the Shareholders to put their enquiries to the board

The Company endeavours to maintain two way communications with the
Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders are encouraged
to send their enquiries about the Group to the Company’s email at
info@orientsec.com.hk or by mail to the principal place of business of the
Company at 8/F., Hip Shing Hong Centre, 55 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong. All the enquiries are dealt with in a timely manner. The
Shareholders are also encouraged to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM") and EGM and to put their enquiries to
the Board directly. Notices are duly being circulated to the Shareholders
in order to ensure each Shareholder is informed to attend the AGM
and the EGM. The Directors, chairmen of each of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and the Senior
Management attend the aforesaid meetings and respond proactively to
the Shareholders’ enquiries. The detailed procedures for conducting a poll
are set out in the proxy forms and will be explained by the chairmen of the
AGM and EGM orally in the beginning of the aforesaid meetings.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company will only declare and/or recommend the payment of
dividends to Shareholders after considering the Company’s ability to pay
dividends. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Directors intend to strike a balance between
maintaining sufficient capital to grow our business and rewarding our
Shareholders. The declaration of dividends will be subject to the Directors’
decision and will depend on, among other things, our earnings, financial
condition, cash requirements and availability, and any other factors the
Directors may consider relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with applicable laws
and regulations including the law of Cayman Islands and the Articles.

The Board will continually review this policy from time to time and there
can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
given year.
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BOARD INDEPENDENCE EVALUATION
MECHANISM

The Company has adopted the board independence evaluation
mechanism during the Year. The details are as follows:

Obijective

Continuing improvement and development of the Board and its committee
processes and procedures through Board independence evaluation
provides a powerful and valuable feedback mechanism for improving
Board effectiveness, maximising strengths, and identifying the areas that
need improvement or further development.

The evaluation process also clarifies what actions of the Company needs
to be taken to maintain and improve the Board performance, for instance,
addressing individual training and development needs of each Director.

This mechanism is designed to ensure a strong independent element on
the Board, which allows the Board to effectively exercise independent
judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

Mechanism

o Nomination Committee is established with clear terms of reference
to identify suitable candidates, including independent non-executive
Directors, for appointment as Directors.

o Nomination policy is in place with details of the process and criteria
of identifying, selecting, recommending, cultivating and integrating
new directorship.

. For independent non-executive Directors (“INED(s)"):
»  Every INED is required to confirm in writing to the Company
his/her independence upon his/her appointment as Director

with reference to such criteria as stipulated in the nomination
policy as well as the GEM Listing Rules;
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»  Each INED has to declare his/her past or present financial or
other interests in the Group’s business as soon as practicable,
or his/her connection with any of the Company’s connected
persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules), if any; and

»  Each INED is required to inform the Company as soon as
practicable if there is any change in his/her own personal
particulars that may affect his/her independence.

The Nomination Committee will assess annually the independence
of all INEDs and to affirm if each of them still satisfies the criteria
of independence as set out in the GEM Listing Rules and is free
from any relationships and circumstances which are likely to affect,
or could appear to affect, their independent judgement. Every
Nomination Committee member should abstain from assessing his/
her own independence.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an INED at the general meeting, it will set out in the circular to
Shareholders the reasons it believes he/she should be elected and the
reasons it considers him/her to be independent.

A mechanism is in place for Directors to seek independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the Company's
expense.

Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the Senior
Management independently, if necessary.

An annual review on Board independence (the “Board
Independence Evaluation”) will be conducted, with an
intention to ensure that it remains independent in judgement, and
continues to present an objective and constructive challenge to the
assumptions and viewpoints presented by the Management.

The Board Independence Evaluation may take in the form of a
questionnaire to all Directors individually and may be supplemented
by individual interview with each Director, if necessary, and/or in any
other manners which the Board considers fit and necessary.
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The Board Independence Evaluation report will be presented to the
Board which will collectively discuss the results and the action plan
for improvement, if appropriate.

o The results of the Board Independence Evaluation or a summary of
the findings of the said evaluation will be disclosed in the CG Report
contained in the annual report of the Company or on the Company’s
website for accountability and transparency purposes.

o The aforesaid Board Independence Evaluation will be regarded as
an ongoing exercise of the Company while the Company may seek
assistance from external consultant if an external evaluation on the
same subject is needed.

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and as at the date of this report, the
Board Independence Evaluation had been conducted by way of completing
a questionnaire by all Directors. The results of the Board Independence
Evaluation are summarised as follows:

1. The Board as a whole possessed the skills and range of experience
needed to adequately fulfill its fiduciary responsibilities, more reliably
hold management to account, and better safeguard Shareholders’
interests.

2. Board meetings were conducted in a manner that allowed open
communication, meaningful participation (including in-depth
discussion and resolutions of issues).

3. All INEDs brought independent judgement to bear on the Board’s
deliberations.

4. AllINEDs have actively participated in all Board meetings and Board

Committees” meetings; and raised governance and ethical issues to
the Board.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a whistleblowing policy during the Year. It provides employees
and the relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers,
contractors and suppliers) with guidance and reporting channels on
reporting any suspected improprieties in any matters related to the Group
directly addressed to the designated person.

An email account (wb@orientsec.com.hk) has been set up for this
purpose. All reported matters will be investigated independently and, in
the meantime, all information received from a whistleblower and his/her
identity will be kept confidential.

The Audit Committee will regularly review the whistleblowing policy to
improve its effectiveness and employee confidence in the process and to
encourage a “speak up” culture across the Company.

The whistleblowing policy is available on the website of the Company for
public information.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

In compliance with the code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted an anti-corruption policy during the Year. It outlines
guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all applicable laws
and regulations in relation to anti-corruption and anti-bribery, the
responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help the Group defend
against corrupt practices and to report any reasonably suspected case
of fraud and corruption or any attempts thereof to the management or
through an appropriate reporting channel. The Group would not tolerate
any forms of fraud and corruption among all employees and those acting
in an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its
business dealing with third parties.

The Board will review the anti-corruption policy to ensure its effectiveness
and enforce the commitment of the Group to the prevention, deterrence,
detection and investigation of all forms of fraud and corruption.

The anti-corruption policy is available on the website of the Company for
public information.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a
key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and
timely disclosure of corporate information to its the Shareholders and
investment public.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has adopted
a shareholders’ communication policy. The Company’s policy on
shareholders’” communication is to strengthen its communications with
the Shareholders and investors through various channels including
publication of quarterly (if any), interim and annual reports, press releases
and announcements regarding the latest developments of the Company
in its corporate website at www.orientsec.com.hk at a timely manner. The
Company is also welcome the Shareholders to express their view on the
Company by email to sh@orientsec.com.hk.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of shareholders’ communication policy
and considered it to be effective.

The shareholders’ communication policy is available on the website of the
Company for public information.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 17.102 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company up to date consolidated version of its memorandum and articles
of association.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company amended and
restated the Articles, among other things, to (i) comply with the
requirements set out in Appendix A1 to the GEM Listing Rules for
listed issuers to adopt a uniform set of 14 “Core Standards” for the
Shareholder protections; (i) bring the Articles in line with certain corporate
governance requirements of the GEM Listing Rules and the applicable
law in the Cayman Islands; and (iii) incorporate various consequential and
housekeeping changes. The amendments to the Articles were considered
and approved by a special resolution passed at the annual general meeting
of the Company on 31 August 2023. For details of the amendments,
please refer to the circular of the Company dated 30 June 2023.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

Orient Securities International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group” or “we") are pleased to present our
Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG"”) Report (“Report”)
for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 (“Reporting
Period”) which discusses the Group’s long-term commitment
to economic, social and environmental sustainability at all levels.
The Report showcases the Group’s commitment to addressing
environmental and social impacts. It outlines the policies and
initiatives implemented by the Group to demonstrate its long-term
dedication to ensuring that its activities at all levels are economically,
socially, and environmentally sustainable for stakeholders. Additional
information about the Group’s corporate governance and financial
performance can be found in the annual report for the Reporting
Period.

1.1 Scope and Reporting Boundary

The Group is an integrated financial service provider licensed
to (i) conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising
on securities), and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) and (i) money lending
business, through its subsidiaries. Over the years, the Group
aims to establish an integrated platform for providing a wide
range of financial services to its clients. During the Reporting
Period, the principal activities of the Group mainly include
(a) brokerage services; (b) underwriting and placing services;
(c) securities, initial public offering financing services; and (d)
money lending services.

The scope of the ESG Report covers the environmental and
social performances of the Group’s principal businesses. The
“Reporting Period” or “FY2024" is spanning over the period
from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024.
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1.2

1.3

HEREARE

While we seek to establish a consistent boundary for
reporting ESG aspects across the Group’s structure, the
reporting boundary of the ESG Report is hence established
based on the criteria that all operations and entities reported
are substantially owned by the Group and are under our
management. As a result, we do not report entities which are
outside of the Group’s structure, where we do not own the
assets and do not directly engage or employ the workforce,
and where we do not operate the asset under a contractual
obligation. In addition, we do not report entities which were
sold or acquired during the Reporting Period.

Part of the content may look back upon the performance of
the Group in past years with a view to presenting the report
in a more informative and comparable manner. The reporting
boundary includes the operating entities in Hong Kong.

Reporting Guidelines

The Group is in compliance with the mandatory disclosure
requirements and “comply or explain” provisions set forth in
Appendix 20 Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (“ESG Reporting Guide”) to the GEM Listing Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on HKEX. In addition, we
also made reference to key reporting frameworks such as
the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (“SASB”) and
publications made by global ESG ratings agencies such as
Sustainalytics, MSCI and ISS during the reporting process to
ensure our actions aligned with accepted standards.

Reporting Principles

The reporting principles of this ESG Report are governed by
“materiality”, “quantitative”, “balances” and “consistency”.

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify
material ESG issues during the Reporting Period, thereby
adopting the confirmed material ESG issues as the focus for
the preparation of the Report. The materiality of ESG issues
was reviewed and confirmed by the Board and the senior
management of the Group.
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Quantitative: The standards, methodologies and applicable
assumptions used in the calculation of key performance
indicators (“KPIs"”) data were supplemented by explanatory
notes.

Balance: Both positive and negative sides of our performance
have been presented in a transparent manner. The ESG
report should provide an unbiased picture of the issuer’s
performance. The report should avoid selections, omissions,
or presentation formats that may inappropriately influence a
decision or judgment by the report reader.

Consistency: The preparation approach of this Report was
substantially consistent with the ESG report of the previous
reporting period and explanations were provided regarding
data with changes in the scope of disclosure and calculation
methodologies.

Reporting Framework

With reference to the ESG Reporting Guide and the Group's
business operation, the presentation of our ESG Report
divides the relevant aspects and KPI, which are considered
to be relevant and material to the Group, into four subject
areas: Environmental Performance, Our People, Operating
Responsibly and Engagement with our Community.

A complete index in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide
is also available at the end of this report for reference. Except
for provisions that the Group considers are inapplicable to its
operations, for which explanations have been given on the
rightmost column in the said index, this report is compliant
with all the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide.

Data Collection

Data in this report are extracted from the Group’s internal
management system and statistics, and part of the data
collected in previous years. Unless otherwise stated, HKD is
used in this report as its functional currency.

Report Availability

This report is also accessible in electronic version from
http://www.orientsec.com.hk
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Contact

We welcome all sorts of comments and suggestions from
our stakeholders with respect to this ESG Report or our
sustainability performance. Comments or views can be sent to
cs@orientsec.com.hk

2. OUR APPROACH TO ESG

2.1

Our ESG Board Statement

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group does not
perceive ESG management as a mere cost, but rather as a
critical component in ensuring the long-term success and
sustainability of its business operations. In recent years,
the Group has proactively taken steps to further enhance
its approach to managing ESG performance. This includes
initiatives to more seamlessly integrate ESG considerations into
the Group’s investment processes, as well as practical measures
to formalize and advance its ambitions in the fight against
climate change, create sustainable value, and continuously
develop its ESG capabilities across the organization.

The Group is acutely mindful of its environmental
responsibilities and is firmly committed to preserving the
natural environment in which it operates. In the course of
its daily operations and business development, the Group’s
energy and resource consumption remains relatively low, and
its environmental impact is not considered significant.

To support the Group’s overarching objective of creating
sustainable value through a repeatable and robust value
creation approach, the Group is committed to integrating ESG
factors into all of its investment strategies. This strategic focus
aims to help the Group consider and address relevant risk
factors, ultimately strengthening its ability to deliver long-term,
sustainable growth and value for its stakeholders.

The Group firmly believes that by mainstreaming ESG
considerations throughout its investment and operational
decision-making, the Group is positioning itself to create
enduring value while contributing to a more sustainable
future. Moving forward, the Group will build on these
strengths to pursue and achieve our ESG goals, including our
aspiration to become an ESG responsible business.
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ESG Strategy and Management

Firmly grounded in the Group’s overarching business strategy
and the distinctive characteristics of its industry, the Group
draws upon domestic and international ESG policies and
standards to meticulously identify, evaluate, and analyze
material ESG-related issues.

The Group has put in place a holistic ESG management
approach and strategy that serves to guide and facilitate the
creation of positive ESG impact while simultaneously delivering
value to our diverse stakeholders. This framework also enables
the organization to proactively anticipate and respond to
emerging ESG risks and opportunities.

Committed to continuous improvement, the Group
continues to optimize its ESG management and operating
mechanisms, seamlessly integrating ESG factors into its
corporate governance, risk management, and business
strategy development processes. In doing so, the Group
actively identifies and closely monitors ESG-related risks and
opportunities that have the potential to significantly influence
its overall business performance, ensuring that it remains well-
positioned to navigate the evolving sustainability landscape.

Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder engagement is a key component for the Group
to listen and respond to their requests and suggestions,
consolidate close relationships and cooperation, and promote
sustainable development with win-win results. Attaching great
importance to stakeholder expectations and demands, the
Group carried out a stakeholder engagement exercise during
the Reporting Period by establishing multiple engagement
channels to ensure stakeholders are well-informed about
its ESG performance. We believe that the interests of our
stakeholders must be taken into account in order to strengthen
our relationship with them. We engage with internal and
external stakeholders including shareholders and investors,
employees, government, customers and community through
communication channels listed below.
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Table 1: ESG Management Approach and Strategy

Stakeholders Group

K2 EAR

Major Concerned Issues

FEFEEE

x1. RE HERELEZEL
g

Major Communication Channels

FTEBBERE

Shareholders and Investors

BRREEZEE

Employees

7l
il

Government

1295}

Customers

P

Community

o

Financial stability and profitability
Business operations

Information disclosure

B IR TE M R B A B
XBEE

BRI E

Remuneration packages
Training and development
Healthy and safe working
environment

HN B

Bl R ERE
RS TIERE

Compliance operation
Environmental protection
Employee protection

Tax compliance
BREE

RERE

EERE

MBER

Personal data privacy
Customer satisfaction

(EPN=REN
BEFMEER

Contribution to the community

B E B
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Financial reports

Company website
Announcements and press releases
S

N a4 uh

NERIER

Face-to-face meetings
Training
Complaints system

EHEE
23

R ES

Written or electronic
correspondences
Consultation and enquiry

ERXREFEE
A NEH

Company website
Feedback from frontline
employees

Company hotline

N a4k
B4R B TREE
UNGIESE T

Charitable and volunteering
activity
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2.4 Materiality Assessment

By conducting a comprehensive materiality assessment with its
stakeholders, the Group has been able to effectively identify
and prioritize the most material ESG issues. This process
has allowed the Group to gain a deeper understanding of
stakeholders’ opinions and expectations regarding its ESG
performance. The Group considers an issue to be “material”
when it has the potential to significantly impact the
organization’s long-term commercial and operational viability,
as well as its ability to integrate sustainability into its business
development strategy. Our materiality assessment involves the
following procedures:

Table 2: Materiality Assessment

BEARFNEETEEERZMEN
it AEEREEMBEN RBLEER
REENRE HERERME -
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HHERE HERERRANER
NEAE o & — {8 A] e A R HY
RHREE R EER TR AR
BERBAERGEREMRARE
EREATER  AREKZEE
BRIEE] - HRMNEREFEE
BIATRER

%2 EEMIFE

Phase Procedure
P BR BF
Preparation Study the sustainability issues relevant to the Group’s business

4

|dentification

55

Prioritisation

BEER

Validation

Feedback of internal and external stakeholders is collected
MR EREEEBAEN A FESREE
Uk £ B R INER 5 1 & O I B

Identify a comprehensive set of ESG topics that are deemed
important and relevant for disclosure in line with reporting
guidelines

B -ERRREEY BREREENHWERBO2ER

B dHekEREE

Leveraging comprehensive stakeholder engagement, the Group
has prioritized a refined set of material ESG topics that reflect the
level of interest and importance to the organization and its key
stakeholders

BHEIZEANFNHEZ2E AEEBEEE—ERMOERHEE
ERNENRREEKFNTEERARE HERhEREE

Review and validate the material sustainability topics to ensure
their relevance and significance for comprehensive disclosure
EHRBRBEENAIFHEERZE  UERES 2 ERENE
AMEREENL
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2.5 ESG Performance

Reduced
A

Greenhouse Gas Emission
BE RPN

Zero

Environmental and Social
Non-Compliance

Orient Securities
International Holdings

2.5

BE HERERRR

Zero
E

=

Fatalities and Injuries

 RERHETAR Limited EHREE
- R E R 3% 5 B BRI AR
BRAT
Rgduced Decreased
"D "D
Electricity and Paper Employee Turnover Rate
Consumptions EEnk=
B RAREFE
3. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE 3. RIFEEX
3.1 Climate Change Management 3.1 RIERB(EE

Climate change is one of the most severe global challenges of
the modern era. The escalating risks and disruptions posed by
climate change to the world economy could potentially impact
the Group’s financial performance and business operations. In
response, the Group has implemented a comprehensive policy
to proactively manage the major impacts of climate change.
The Group’s management team regularly convenes to identify,
assess, and evaluate the climate-related risks and opportunities
relevant to the business, with a view to developing strategic
responses.
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The Group’s business, by nature, does not generate
greenhouse gas (GHG) directly. However, our daily office
administration inevitably involves indirect consumption of
fossil fuel which releases Carbon Dioxide (CO,) into the air.
The Group is highly aware that such GHG emission is one of
the major sources of global warming. Therefore, we strive to
reduce our carbon and ecological footprint and adopt practices
that are sustainable to the environment and minimize our
impact on the environment.

The Group has set a clear goal of achieving net zero
emissions by 2050, underscoring its unwavering commitment
to reducing its environmental footprint and mitigating
its exposure to climate transition risks. To prepare for
comprehensive climate-related disclosures, the Group has
dedicated human and financial resources to continuously
evaluate the impacts of climate change on its business and
operations. This assessment process aims to identify the most
material physical and transition risks facing the Group, with
the insights gained to be systematically integrated into the
organization’s overarching risk management framework.

The Group implements the recommendations of the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosure (“TCFD"),
providing investors and stakeholders with useful information
on climate-related risks and opportunities that are related to
our business. TCFD is a market-driven initiative that is set up to
develop a set of recommendations for voluntary and consistent
climate-related financial risk disclosures in mainstream filings.
Moreover, responding to climate change can enhance our
business resilience and enable us to take advantage of any
opportunities it may offer.

Climate risks are typically classified into two major categories
faced by the Group include transition and physical risks.
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Transition Risks

Transition risks refer to those associated with the shift towards
a low-carbon economy, which may arise from evolving policies,
technologies, and market dynamics. As the world transitions
to a more sustainable future, these transitional risks have the
potential to significantly reshape investment and consumption
patterns, posing both challenges and opportunities for the
Group.

The Group anticipates the enactment of increasingly stringent
climate-related legislations, regulations, and policies in the
years ahead. For instance, the HKEX has already mandated
enhanced climate-related disclosures in listed companies’
ESG reports. Moreover, the Hong Kong Government has
established its own carbon neutrality targets, signaling that
policy actions on climate change and environmental protection
will continue to evolve and intensify. Under this landscape of
more aggressive policies and regulations, the Group may face
higher operating and compliance costs to fulfill the relevant
legal requirements. Failure to meet the escalating climate
change-related compliance standards could potentially expose
the Group to litigation and reputational risks. Cognizant of
these transition risks, the Group is proactively preparing to
ensure it can adapt to the changing regulatory environment
and uphold its climate commitments, thereby mitigating any
adverse impacts on its operations and public standing.

In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the
reputation risks, the Group regularly monitors existing and
emerging trends, policies and regulations relevant to climate
and be prepared to alert the top management where necessary
to avoid cost increments, non-compliance fines or reputational
risks due to delayed response.
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Physical Risks

Physical risks reflect how changes to the frequency and
intensity of extreme and ongoing weather can impact, disrupt
and damage business operations, assets and supply chains,
as well as lead to broader impacts such as environmental
stress, food and water security and trends in migration.
Physical impacts from climate change are inevitable. The rate
and extent of change will depend on global decarbonization
efforts.

To address the physical risks (e.g. acute risks) posed by climate
change, the Group has developed an emergency plan that
is regularly reviewed. This plan outlines clear procedures
for responding to events such as typhoons and heavy
rainstorms, which are detailed in the Group’s Employment
Handbook. Whenever extreme weather conditions occur or
are anticipated, the senior management team activates the
emergency plan and promptly communicates the necessary
work arrangements to employees. This ensures the safety of
staff and the continuity of operations during these disruptive
events.

By maintaining a well-defined emergency response framework
and actively updating it, the Group is better equipped to
mitigate the impacts of physical climate risks on its business.
It allows the organization to safeguard its workforce and
operational resilience in the face of increasing climate-related
threats.

Optimizing Energy Efficiency and Resources
Consumption

Committed to environmental protection, the Group prioritizes
efficient and effective use of energy and resources in its
operations. Energy conservation is a key focus under the
Group’s environmental strategy, with the implementation of
energy-saving devices to reduce power consumption wherever
applicable. Through this proactive approach, the Group aims
to minimize its environmental footprint and contribute to
broader sustainability efforts. By optimizing its energy usage,
the organization demonstrates its corporate responsibility and
leadership in environmental stewardship.
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To enhance environmental awareness and encourage daily
participation among the staff, there are recommendations to
them to reduce energy wastage including, but not limited to:

o Turn off lights and electronic appliances in office
premises when not in use;

o Advocate remote video conferencing to reduce business
travel,

o Maintaining indoor temperature at an optimal level for
comfort; and

o Turn off the power for computers, photocopy machines,
printers and facsimile machines when not in use.

The Group is highly aware that such GHG emission is one
of the major sources of global warming. As such, the Group
advocates green office and actively minimises material
consumption in the workplace. The business operation of the
Group consumes certain amount of paper and the Group has
adopted a series of initiatives to reduce paper consumption
and advocated paperless office mode. The sustainable
measures adopted by the Group includes:

o Paperless office by developing our own internal
administration system to reduce the use of paper in all
level of our management;

o Selection of working partners which provide paperless
operating procedures whenever feasible;

o Encourage use of electronic means of communication to
manage daily process; and

o Use duplex printing and reuse single-side printed papers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not violate any
environmental protection laws or regulations of the region
where we operate, nor was it subject to significant fines, non-
monetary penalties and litigation relating to environmental
protection.
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3.3 Exhaust Gas and GHG Emissions

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Our Group’s business inevitably involves consumption of
fossil fuel and releases Carbon Dioxide (CO,) into the air. In
accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out by HKEX,
our environmental performance of “Emissions”
Reporting Period and the comparative period from 1 January

2022 to 31 March 2023 (“PY2023") is tabulated below.

during the

R - g RERmE

33 BRRBERBHER

AN ER B K FE 55T 0l e i 3 SROB FE
B BER R A 2 JmBE R = |t bk
(CO,) ° 1R 15 2 8 Bk 22 P Il E B0 BR
B HekERmEIES NS
HARZZ-_—F—A—HZZ=%
== A=+—HREHE(=
—=FE8))  BARHERy ]
FEARBEERIIN TR -

Table 3: Emissions *3 . HHY
PY2023
FY2024 Intensity
Unit FY2024 Intensity PY2023 (Annualized)
(Per no. of (Per no. of
Employees) Employees)
—EB-=fF
—%F-mn —2o@m —2-E=F G 5 % B
By 723 MERE Eip:t (REFH)
(lEE A1) (lEEA1)
GHG Emissions COe (kg) 8,036.4 574.0 40,162.5 1,890.0
BERBE K “EREE
(F5)
Direct GHG Emissions COse (kg)
(Scope 1) N/A N/A N/A N/A
HEAZERBEHERK —EtiRE=E
(23 [E—) (F3=) AN A AN A i i
Indirect GHG Emissions COse (kg)
(Scope 2) 6,922.7 4945 36,857.4 1,734.5
EHEAERBEHEN(EE=-) —S/kE=
(F5=)
All other Indirect GHG COse (kg)
Emissions (Scope 3) 1,113.7 79.5 3,305.1 155.5
FEHEMEEAERREHEN —StikEs
(BEE=) (F5=)
Nitrogen Oxides g N/A N/A N/A N/A
AEY 7 i A A5 A 38 A 38 A
Sulphur Oxides g N/A N/A N/A N/A
FREty = A3 A 3 A 38 A A
Particulate Matter g N/A N/A N/A N/A
ERY = T iE A i A i i
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e RERRE

Note:

GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent and
are based on, including but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol:
A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
“Greenhouse Gas Inventory Guidance Direct Emissions from Mobile Combustion
Sources” issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency, the latest
emission factors published by the power plant and “How to prepare an ESG
Report? — Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by
HKEX.

During the Reporting Period, there were no non-compliance
cases reported in relation to GHG emission within the Group.

Waste Management
Waste Management Policy

Waste reduction is the focus of the Group’s emission
control efforts, with its principal waste management policy
endeavoring to achieve a green and paperless operation
by minimizing waste generation throughout its operations,
wherever possible and practical. Guided by the 4-R principles —
Reduce, Reuse, Replace, and Recycle — the Group strives
to reduce waste at the source, and its waste management
practices adhere to all relevant environmental protection laws
and regulations in the regions where it operates. Additionally,
the Group prioritizes strengthening its employees’ awareness
and skills in environmental management, waste reduction,
and recycling, encouraging them to be equipped with the
appropriate knowledge and expertise to contribute to the
organization’s sustainable development practices.

Hazardous Waste

Given our business nature, the Group does not directly
produce hazardous waste throughout the operation. The
Group only generated a small amount of used toner cartridges
and the Group has collected the used toner cartridges and
passed them to the printer company for handling. In case there
is any hazardous waste produced, the Group must engage a
qualified chemical waste collector to handle such waste and
comply with relevant environmental rules and regulations.
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Non-hazardous Waste

The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group are
mainly office waste including stationery and paper from
our operation. The Group recognizes the importance of
implementing responsible waste management practices to
minimize its environmental impact.

Wastewater Discharge

The Group's operations do not consume a significant amount
of water. During the Reporting Period, there were no non-
compliance cases reported in relation to discharge into water
and land, and generation of waste within the Group. During
the Reporting Period, there were no non-compliance cases
reported in relation to discharge into water and land, and
generation of waste within the Group.

Use of Resources

As natural resources are depleted, sustainability becomes
essential throughout the entire process of business, the
Group is working to optimize and reduce the overall amount
of natural resources we consume. In line with relevant
regulations on energy conservation and emission reduction,
we continuously drove energy savings and consumption
reductions in daily resource use such as water, electricity, and
consumables, built awareness of saving electricity and water,
and implemented a strict waste recycling and disposal process.
In consideration of its actual operations, the Group continued
to strive for resource-efficient and clean development and
reduce adverse impact of its activities on the environment.

Water Consumption

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the Group does not
consume material amount of water. The water consumption
of the Group was minimal and was included in the property
management fee and therefore the figures for the Group’s
water consumption were not available. Despite the minimal
water consumption, the Group still strive to engage all
employees to develop a habit of conserving water consciously.
Pantry is posted with environmental messages to remind
employee the importance and urgency of water conservation.

3.5
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Environmental Performance

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out by HKEX,
our environmental performance of “Energy and Resources
Use” during the Reporting Period and the PY2023 is tabulated
below.

Table 4: Energy and Resources Use

REEN

REBBEBMIPAAEIIRE HE
RERWERES - BPANBFEHRA

RZZF RN ERERRE

BRIZERBEMFRETR -

x4 ZAEFRER

PY2023

FY2024 Intensity

Unit FY2024 Intensity PY2023 (Annualized)

(Per no. of (Per no. of

Employees) Employees)

—E-=

S 1| —E-m —E-= EHZRE

By 723 MERE Eip:t (REFH)

(lEE A1) (lEEAG)

Electricity kWh 18,710.0 1,336.4 54,202.0 2,550.7
£ TR

Purchased Gas kg N/A N/A N/A N/A

NERR ) TE A TE A 38 A A

Unleaded Petrol L N/A N/A N/A N/A

i Dad F A3 A 3 A 3@ A T A

Diesel L N/A N/A N/A N/A

By F A3 A A3 A 38 A T A

Paper kg 232.0 16.6 688.6 324

R T=

Water m?3 N/A N/A N/A N/A

7K SR A5 A A3 A 38 A A

Total Energy Consumption kWh 18,710.0 1,336.4 54,202.0 2,550.7
HEERFEE TR

During the Reporting Period, there were no non-compliance
cases reported in relation to use of resources within the Group.
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OUR PEOPLE

As a people-centric organization, the Group’s success is intrinsically
linked to its ability to attract and retain top talent. The Group firmly
believes that its employees are one of its greatest assets. By treating
its people with the utmost respect, creating ample opportunities
for learning and development, and demonstrating genuine care for
their health and wellbeing, the Group is dedicated to fostering an
environment where its employees can truly thrive and excel. This
holistic approach to people management is pivotal in empowering
the Group’s workforce and enabling them to make valuable
contributions towards the organization’s continued growth and
SuCcess.

4.1 Employment, Health and Safety

The Group has established the Employment Handbook which
builds a holistic system for employment practice, covering
compensation and dismissal, promotion, working hours,
rest periods, and other benefits and welfare. The Group not
only rewards and recognises employees with competitive
remuneration package and promotes career development
and progression by providing opportunities for career
advancement, but also provides support in different areas
for its employees. In addition to other staff welfare, such as
paid annual leave, paid sick leave, compassionate leave and
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF"”) schemes, the Group’s
medical insurance packages are also provided to its staff at no
expense to them.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had 14 employees and all
of them were based in Hong Kong. The Group complied with
the relevant employment laws and regulations throughout
the Reporting Period, including the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance by participating in the Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme for our eligible
employees, Minimum Wage Ordinance, Employment
Ordinance and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance by
offering competitive wages, medical insurance, disability and
invalidity coverage, maternity leave and other compensation to
our employees in Hong Kong.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any REEIA - NREB W ARBRIEMR
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in respect BBEANERERZRBROIHER
of human resources. We strictly prohibit discrimination, EREMH - BME ISR
harassment and bullying at all workplaces. In accordance with AR BEREUE - BIBE B
the ESG Reporting Guide set out by the HKEX, details of the REAFEZIRE - (g REGME
Group's workforce during the Reporting Period are tabulated el RBEHRANREELSH 2
as well as presented in charts below. FERTIEERZ -
Table 6: Our Workforce *6  BHIFIHEE L
FY2024

—E -
Total Number of Full-Time Employees *RESAH 11
Total Number of Part-Time Employees FEESAY 3
Turnover Rate by Gender BRI & D HREAER
Male E:1. 16.7%
Female z 33.3%
Turnover Rate by Age REREDHREE
18-25 Years Old 18E255% N/A i B
26-35 Years Old 26 £355% 100.0%
36-45 Years Old 36 Z455% 25.0%
46-55 Years Old 46 Z555% 1.1%
56 and above 56 5% & E 0.0%
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Total Workforce by Gender as of 31 March 2024
REB-ZMF=ZA=Z+-HRUBNETNE B HEHK

M Male Female

S pogid

Total Workforce by Employment Level as of 31 March 2024
REBZME=ZAZ+-—BHREBRINEINEBD HEK

57%

[ Senior management = Middle management General staff
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Total Workforce by Age Group as of 31 March 2024
R-B-ME=ZA=+—BRFRENEITNEEB DAY

0% 0%

21%

57%

B Age between 18 and 25 years old W Age between 26 and 35 years old

182 255%, 26%355%
I Age between 36 and 45 years old Age between 46 and 55 years old
362455% 46555,

Age 56 years old or above

56753 A

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, by ensuring that
the employees are working in a safe environment in respect
of health, hygiene, ventilation, fire evacuation plans, building
structure and means of escape. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not record any accidents that resulted in
death or serious physical injury. No material non-compliance
with laws and regulations relevant to health and safety of
employees were identified during the Reporting Period.
Summary of work-related fatalities and injuries during the
Reporting Period are shown in the table below.
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Table 5: Health and Safety *5. BERZZE
FY2024
—E_EF
No. of Work-Related Fatalities EET/EMHBAMNEE T AH 0
Rate of Work-Related Fatalities BT EMEBAMET X 0
No. of Injuries at Work TEAH 0
Lost Days due to Injury at Work EIGEBAIERE 0
Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 42 it FERER

Diversity, equity and inclusion (“DEI") is a key focus of our
employee engagement efforts. We expect our stakeholders
to see the Group as a company truly aligned with DEI which
is embedded in our values, and we hope this is evident for
anyone who comes to work with us. During the Reporting
Period, we strictly observed the applicable laws and regulations
and follow our employment policies.

Development and Training

The Group firmly believes that empowering its people through
comprehensive development and training initiatives is the
bedrock of its long-term success. The organization actively
listens to and responds to the needs of its employees, striving
to foster an environment that nurtures continuous learning,
facilitates career development, and equips its workforce
with the necessary knowledge and skills to excel in their
roles and responsibilities. The Group’s training programs are
meticulously designed not only to enhance the sustainable
growth of the organization and provide the requisite skillsets
for its operations, but also to contribute positively to the
wellbeing of the broader society, wherever possible.

4.3

Zlt FERBA ([DE) 2%
Mt e EESME T ENES - K
MBEEZRMAFDEREAEEE R
—ZREIFHEDEI—EA)AF + M DEI
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BHE—(IMARKMAIA T ERRERXA
B X o RIEEA - MRS ESF
HEARERKER  WEBEKMH
ERBUR -

B RIE

AEERE  FREPEEREKLE
RS R E S e = H REK A
BEA - hREGRRIEW MO ERES R
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RV EMZRIREE - LEIFHE
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RHEERRMMEHESERTNSE
B MEREAREEBTEMEAL
EHTER AR ©
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The Group is subject to various ordinances, rules and
guidelines such as, but not limited to, the SFO, Money
Lenders Ordinance of Hong Kong, Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance of Hong Kong, the GEM Listing Rules and the
Guideline on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing by Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong
("SFC"). The Group is aware of the continuous development
and updates of relevant laws and regulations and the needs
for its employees to receive regular training in order to
practise their duties in compliance with the latest laws and
regulations. Each department of the Group is responsible
for determining its training needs for employees in its
department and any suggested applicable training courses
either arranged internally or by external service providers shall
be submitted to the senior management of the Group for
approval. Knowledge, skills and capacities of employees are
vital to continuous business growth and success of the Group.
The Group strives to ensure that all employees can fulfil the
relevant job requirements in terms of education, training,
technical and work experience.

During the Reporting Period, the Group organized a variety
of development and training sessions for employees including
thematic courses such as anti-corruption, ESG training as
summarized in the table below. On average, each employee
received 2.4 hours of development and training.

Table 6: Employee Development and Training

REBEETZEGH - RARIE
3l - flgn (BRERR) B 5 R E K
Bl - FECGREAGHD - BEE
ANE R (FLER) A1) - GEM LR
Al URBABELSRAEEHER
ZEe ((RES)EMOHUTEL
BRRMDTELEEZIES) -
RNEETHREBERRERZIFE
BREBEHIBEL UREETER
E RN E K - ERBRITA
BRERBOIHEENEE - A5H
EEHMEERTEHEDBPIEEEIFR
Sk AL BN RIS IR R 2
FENEEAEIREEARBASE
EERERENE - EEMNME -
BEERBE NE R AR B EBRHEIL
REKNEBREE - RAEBEBBUIHE
RIIBRECHE 53l BTk
TEESHAERFEHEIIERER -

RBEHRN - AEEREEAES
TEHE RFIIRE  BEEERE
(Planf &5 ~ ESGIEF) - #HER
TR -FHEREEEX24/KF
MRS -

%6 ESRERIE

Unit FY2024
Bt —T-NMEF

Average Hours of Training Received per Employee

BREEEIFINFHEH

Average hours of Training per Employee by Employment Level

BERBRANE I NEEEEFIEIEH

Senior Management
EREER

Middle Management
PR EEE
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Unit FY2024
By Z—ZZ-NHE
General Employees hours 2.2
ZBEESR 2N
Average Hours of Training per Employee by Gender
REREDNEEEEFHZIRE
Male hours 24
B AN
Female hours 2.6
i /)N
Percentage of Employees Trained by Employment Level
RERABNESNZINEET DL
Senior Staff % 100.0
SRET %
Middle Management % 100.0
hREEE %
General Employees % 100.0
ZEES %
Percentage of Employees Trained by Gender
RERESHNZIRET DL
Male % 100.0
B %
Female % 100.0
z% %
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4.4 Labour Standards

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied
with the relevant laws and regulations, including the Labour
Law and Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong. In the event
that any irregularities in ages, identities and/or validities of
employment status is subsequently found, employment with
all such concerned candidates will be immediately terminated,
and the Group will report such incident to the relevant
authorities as soon as practicable. No non-compliance case
was reported in relation to labour laws and regulations during
the Reporting Period.

OPERATING RESPONSIBLY

The Group firmly recognizes that managing its business in a
responsible manner is fundamental to delivering sustainable financial
performance and long-term value to its investors, employees, and
the communities it serves. This commitment is underpinned by
the Group’s unwavering dedication to upholding sound corporate
governance principles, fostering a robust culture of ethics and
integrity, and ensuring responsible business operations across its
entire ecosystem. By embodying these core values, the Group is well-
positioned to drive sustainable growth and create lasting positive
impact for all its stakeholders.

5.1 Supply Chain Management

The Group recognises the importance of its suppliers of office
supplies. The Group adopts supplier management policy
in accordance with its internal guidance. Our suppliers are
subjected to screening and evaluation procedures, based on
the quality, price and if they are environmentally friendly. We
compare our suppliers based on their quotations and other
information that we can search publicly or provided by the
suppliers. We also focus on whether the products from the
suppliers are environmentally friendly and will give priorities to
suppliers who provide or promote environmental products or
services in the selection process, for example, we will compare
the electrical applicants and which use the least electricity will
be chosen.
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The Group continuously optimises supply chain management
and works with its business partners and suppliers to promote
sustainable development. Our supply chain management team
not only considers economic and commercial benefits during
the tendering processes, but also evaluates the suppliers’
and contractors’ track record with respect to legal and
regulatory compliance which include environmental, social and
governance aspects.

We developed a vendor and supplier selection mechanism
based on potential vendors’ compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations in relation to the safety, environment,
forced labour, child labour and other social aspects.
Products and services with environmentally friendly and
socially responsible features will be given a higher technical
score during our assessment process. To evaluate the
performance of the selected suppliers as well as to minimize
the environmental and social risks along the supply chain,
regular assessments covering the professional qualification,
services/products quality, financial status, integrity, and social
responsibility will be conducted if deemed necessary. When
the evaluation result of a supplier is not satisfactory, the
supplier will be removed from the approved list.

Every supplier is required to comply with our code of
practice, which prohibits offering of gifts, loans, hospitality,
services or favor in an improper manner. In addition, the
Group encourages our business partners to adopt the best
environmental and social practices and to disseminate the
pursuit of sustainability into the core business, through
develop energy-saving and consumption-reducing policies.
Under the same conditions and principles, we offer priority to
local suppliers with the aim of reducing the negative impact on
the environment caused by long-distance transportation and
driving local economic development.

We believe that, through the above procedure, we can
minimize the potential environmental and social risks
associated with the supply chain management. During the
Reporting Period, there was no significant complaint in service
quality and delivery.
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5.2 Product Responsibility

5.3

As a professional financial services provider, the Group aspires
to provide its customer with the best services quality. In
relation to financial services business, to avoid any loss suffered
by clients due to systems failures or delays in transactions,
the Group has established an emergency plan to ensure
that proper measures are taken should system errors occur
to reduce any potential client losses to a minimum. Our
management will also review our transaction system regularly
and make improvement to our transaction system, including
the internal control and management system or facilities,
where necessary, to avoid occurrence of system failure.

Since we only provide financial services to our clients, due to
the nature of our services, we are not applicable to disclose the
product recall procedure or the percentage of total products
sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

Transparency

The Group is committed to communicating effectively with
its stakeholders. Our annual ESG Report is a key channel for
sharing detailed non-financial information in a public forum
with our stakeholders.

The Group remains steadfast in aligning its ESG performance
with evolving industry best practices and regulatory
requirements. Notably, the Group acknowledges the global
trend of reporting guidelines increasingly integrating the
recommendations of the TCFD into their ESG frameworks.
In step with this development, the Group is proactively
incorporating TCFD recommendations into its own processes,
including through dedicated disclosures within this report.
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Privacy Protection

The Group places the utmost emphasis on safeguarding
personal data against unauthorized access, use, or loss. In full
compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the
Group exercises the highest standards of care when collecting,
processing, and utilizing any personal information. To
rigorously protect individual privacy, the Group takes proactive
steps to ensure that all personal data is securely stored and its
use is strictly limited to the original intended purposes. Robust
measures are implemented to prevent any unauthorized or
accidental access, processing, erasure, or other misuse of the
collected data. Upholding the privacy rights of its stakeholders
is of paramount importance to the Group, underscoring its
unwavering commitment to ethical data governance practices.

During the Reporting Period, there were no non-compliance
cases noted in relation to our data privacy and no material
complaints received that would have significant impact.

Anti-Corruption

The Group is resolutely committed to upholding the highest
standards of business ethics and eradicating all forms of
bribery and corrupt practices. To this end, the Group has
developed a comprehensive suite of policies and a robust code
of conduct pertaining to anti-fraud and anti-bribery, which
are strictly applied across the entire organization. Employees
are required to proactively declare any potential conflicts of
interest and are prohibited from engaging in any such conflicts
with subcontractors or suppliers. Furthermore, the Group
regularly conducts training seminars to educate its workforce
on anti-corruption measures and the avoidance of conflicts
of interest. The Group also actively encourages its business
partners, including suppliers, to adhere to the principles
outlined in its policies and to promptly report any suspected
misconduct. Additionally, employees are empowered to
report any concerns related to accounting controls and audit
matters directly to the Audit Committee, which will thoroughly
investigate each complaint.
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During the reporting period, the Group recorded a total
of 12 hours of anti-corruption and integrity training for
its employees, underscoring its steadfast commitment to
fostering a culture of integrity and ethical business practices.
The Group also observed with related laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, such as the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong. No cases of
anti-corruption were concluded whereas the Audit Committee
identified no complaints from employees during the Reporting
Period.

Anti-Money Laundering (“AML")

The Group fully supports the international community drive
against serious crime, drug trafficking and terrorism and
is committed to assisting the authorities to identify money
laundering and terrorist financing transactions. The Group’s
AML and counter-financing of terrorism (“CFT") policy has
clearly specified that all employees are obliged to comply with
all applicable AML/CFT laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group observed with
related laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, such as the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of
Hong Kong”. No cases of money laundering were concluded
during the Reporting Period.

Whistle-Blowing

To foster a culture of transparency and accountability, the
Group has established a comprehensive whistle-blowing
policy and procedure. This mechanism empowers employees
to confidentially report any instances of illegality, irregularity,
malpractice, unethical conduct, or actions that may potentially
harm the Group's interests. The policy aims to encourage
employees to speak up about any behaviors or practices that
are non-compliant with the Group’s ethical principles, policies,
laws, rules, regulations, or standard financial reporting and
internal control practices.
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The Group is steadfastly committed to addressing all whistle-
blower concerns in a fair and reasonable manner. Each
reasonably substantiated report is handled with the utmost
care, and the Group undertakes a thorough and impartial
investigation. Importantly, all whistle-blowers who report
in good faith are protected from any form of retaliation or
adverse consequences, regardless of whether the allegation is
ultimately substantiated.

The whistle-blowing policy and its associated procedures have
been clearly documented in the employee handbook and are
accessible to all members of the Group. This demonstrates
the Group’s unwavering dedication to upholding the highest
standards of integrity and governance across the organization.

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is dedicated to full compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations pertaining to intellectual property rights.
Recognizing the value of its intellectual assets, during the
Reporting Period, all reasonable measures have been taken
by the Group to prevent any infringement of its own IP rights
and the IP rights of third parties and there was no material
infringement of the IP rights.

ENGAGEMENT WITH OUR COMMUNITY

The Group views contributing to the betterment of society as an
integral part of its core mission. Its business development strategy
is closely aligned with a strong focus on promoting community

welfare. The Group has been devoted to promoting community
development by taking the lead and encouraging employees to care
for the community. By embedding a community-centric ethos into its
operations, the Group reinforces its position as a socially conscious

and purpose-driven organization committed to driving positive
change.

6.1

Charity Donations

During the Reporting Period, the Group donated mooncakes
to a charitable organization. By donating these traditional
festive treats, the Group sought to bring a touch of joy and
celebration to the beneficiaries, while also fostering a spirit of
giving and compassion within the organization. Through such
philanthropic endeavors, the Group aims to set an example of
corporate social responsibility and inspire others to follow suit
in their own capacities.
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7 HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

Aspects, General Description
Disclosures and KPIs

7 BEBBXMRE HERER

ESIRB R

Relevant Sections in Remarks
the ESG Report

BE- - —REERER A RiIE #HBRERREP B
BYER HEEH
A. ENVIRONMENTAL
A B
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT: BB
General Disclosure Information on: Environmental
—REE BHERIRERBEN  MAKKE+T Performance
WEEES AERBEEEEYHNELE RREEN
Fry
(@  the policies; and
BUR &k
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste
BFHETAREATENHEH
ER MR BN E
KPI'AT.1 The types of emissions and respective  Environmental

emissions data

RS AR BURIR AT e iR R AR B EUR

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect
(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity

RS A IR AL.2 B (BE1) kepREE (BE2))RE
REEHNE (AMEGHHE) Rk (WER) &
E
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Aspects, General Description Relevant Sections in Remarks

Disclosures and KPIs the ESG Report

BE- - —REERERE A BE HERERREP FS

BRER HEEE

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced N/A The Group has not
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, identified any hazardous
intensity waste was produced in our

core business
BB E IR A3 FEXAZEEDRE (UEAE) R TER REBE R ARBERZOER

KPI'A1.4

BB IEIEA1.4

KPI'A1.5

BB IEIRALS

KPI'A1.6

RS RIEIR A6

(Em) ==

Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity

FEAREEEMES UEAE) &
(WER)ZE

Description of emissions target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them
I HBERE B R RARERE
Lt B AR FTREEY 2 B

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them
HlEEEEREZEZEMHN L
&mm%ﬂlmﬁfﬁ%&%%ﬂa
Lt B AR P EREX B 25 B

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

Environmental
Performance

RITEM

Environmental
Performance
IRIBEN

Environmental
Performance

IRIBEW

EEERNESEEY
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Relevant Sections in Remarks
the ESG Report

B HERER®MED HE

Aspects, General Description

Disclosures and KPIs

BE —REEREARE HHHA

BRER

B E

EBHEA2: ERER

General Disclosure

Policies on efficient use of resources

Environmental

including energy, water and other raw Performance
materials

— MR R BRERER(BIERER  KEHEHME REER
FE BB

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Environmental
consumption by type in total and Performance
intensity

RSB IR A2 REAZSMNEER SREERLRE REEX

REMEE

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and Environmental
intensity Performance
BASEAEBIEIRA2.2 BEKEREE RIBEX

KPI'A2.3

Description of energy use efficiency

Environmental

target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Performance
them.
RIS RIEIRA23 AT R RERRREERE R REEX
EDE L B RATE AR A o
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue ~ N/A Defined to be irrelevant to
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, the Group’s operation
water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
RS IR A2.4 RSKEGER KR ERT B ERIME - TEA RREREEEERHN
AR FRET S B K M as B IR R R EE
ELRRAREA TR o
KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for N/A Use of packaging material
finished products, and if applicable, with is not applicable to the
reference to per unit produced Group's core operation
RIS E IR IR A2.5 HERFABREMHNEAEN (E TEA BEMHNERTERR

R BLEBRUILE

ORIENT SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2023/24

REBEZLER



Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

BE  —REEREE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B HEREAWE

Description

eL:

Relevant Sections in Remarks
the ESG Report

BE HBRERBEP HF:
HEAEE

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3: RERRARER

General Disclosure

—MRIXEE

KPI'A3.1

AR IR UIEIR A3

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impacts on the environment
and natural resources
WEBETAHRERRAEREKE
R BHBER

Description of the significant impacts

of activities on the environment and

natural resources and the actions taken

to manage them.

R EBEHHRERRAERNE
FENERINEEREBTYENTTE -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BEAL : RIRE

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI A4.1

RASR B IEIZ A1

Policies on identification and mitigation
of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer.
BRI EE R ER AT ER
T AR E X E (548 78 R R A BUR -

Description of the significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
MBS RAIEEHBETAELETE
WEAREEERE  UAREEEA
e P ERER BT 8 -

Environmental
Performance

RIBEM

Environmental
Performance

IRIBEW

Environmental

Performance

IRIBEW

Environmental
Performance

IRIBEW
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - g NERWE

Aspects, General Description Relevant Sections in Remarks
Disclosures and KPIs the ESG Report

BE- - —REERERE A BE HERERREP FS
BRER HEEE

B. SOCIAL

B. #®

Employment and Labour Practices

BERZIER

Aspect B1: Employment

EEB1: EfE

General Disclosure Information on: Environmental

— IR EAHM N RE BEREA I Performance

K2R TEHRE 2ot RE RREEX
A8 LA B B 155 58 K A8 A A9
(@  the policies; and

BE R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and ~ Our People
regulations that have a significant  FfI891& 8
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare
BFHBETARERTENEH
EREEBROINER

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment  Our People
type, age group and geographical
region

RS 4E IETRB1.1 R BEER  FRAMRME HMANES
MBI RAR

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age  Our People
group and geographical region

BASEAE MR 1R B1.2 RER - FRAGI MRS SHNESE KMNESR
TR L =
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
BE  —RIEERBERE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Description

eL:

RIE - g REARE

Relevant Sections in Remarks
the ESG Report
REE - -HERERREY #F

B E

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EMHB2: REHEZE
General Disclosure
— IR

KPI'B2.1

A B AR MR 1R B2.1

KPI'B2.2

A8 45 IE 1R B2.2

KPIB2.3

A B 45 IR 1R B2.3

Information on:

BHAREZ 2 TERRRREES &

RBEMEEN

(@)  the policies; and
BR M

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating
to providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational
hazards
BTFHETAREATENEH
ERRBOIEE

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities occurred in each of the past
three years including the reporting year
BE=F (BEBREFR)BFRIC
M) AN B S b &

Lost days due to work injury

AIBGEAIERE

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored

R PR ER B R R R B 22 2 46 7

AR EEMITRER A

Environmental
Performance

RIEM

Our People
B EE

Our People

#HfFIEEER

Our People

B ES

Our People

#HfFImEER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - g REARE

Aspects, General Description
Disclosures and KPIs

BE - —RIEEREE HHA
BRER

Relevant Sections in Remarks
the ESG Report

BE HSRERBEP HH
HEEH

Aspect B3: Development and Training

fEHEB3 : & RIEFI

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities

—MRIXEE FRARITTEE BT LIER BN ME KR
FREERBUR - BB S

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category

RS FE1EB3.1 RERREEEMNESHOXIEER
palsd

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category

RS2 AE MR 1R B3.2 RERMEERRE D SR EE T
B2 31l < 15 B B2

d
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B EE

Our People

#fFIEEER

Our People

#HfFIEEE



Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

BE  —REEREE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Description

eL:

RIE - g REARE

Relevant Sections in Remarks
the ESG Report
REE - -HERERREY #F

BRER HEEH
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BHEB4 : & T#H|
General Disclosure Information on: Our People
— R BEAP L E T o fl 4 TH) - B EE
(@  the policies; and
BUR &
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and ~ Our People
requlations that have a significant T 9818 &
impact on the issuer relating
to preventing child and forced
labour
BTFHETAREATENEH
EREROINER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Our People
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour
R 4B B 1R B4 iR B ENEEAREET HKMNES
Ko s& il 85 T
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate  N/A No such incidents were
child and forced labour practices when reported during the
discovered Reporting Period
R B 515 B4.2 HAEBRETIRAHBTERARE TEA ¥R 25 HR A I R 2 A L 2R

B2 RIS T SRER Y 2 5

=
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - g NERWE

Aspects, General Description Relevant Sections in Remarks
Disclosures and KPIs the ESG Report

BE- - —REERERE A BE HERERREP FS
BRER HEEE

Operating Practices

&EES

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
fEEBS : tEHEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and  Operating Responsibly
social risks of the supply chain

— AR EE ERHEENRE R G RREBER BEERE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Operating Responsibly
region

Bl B2 48 R 1R B5.1 iR E D e e 2 A BEEKE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating Operating Responsibly

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored

A3 48 R 1R B5.2 Rl EAREAEERNEN REH aFEFELE
TEHEENNHEEEHE  UARIEH
MITRERTA

KPI' B5.3 Description of practices used to identify ~ Operating Responsibly
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored

RS2 4E WIS 1RB5.3 M AEBRHEREERGNIRE AEERLE
EaagREmBEe - A RBEENTR
ERAE

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote  Operating Responsibly

environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored
RIS E IR B5.4 MAETEHERSESSARRE BEELE
m R AR & BB - LA R ABRE 1T IR BS
KA
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
BE  —RIEERBERE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Description

eL:

R - g RERmE

Relevant Sections in Remarks
the ESG Report

BE HSRERBEP HH
HEEH

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EmER
General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI B6.1

RA SR 45 B 1EB6. 1

KPI B6.2

AR 45 512 B6.2

KPI B6.3

RS 45 IE1EB6.3

KPI B6.4

RA S AR MIE1RB6.4

Information on:

MR HERNRGOEEREZ S -

BE BEIMEEFENURBRAE

By

(@)  the policies; and
BR R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress
BTHETARERAZENHES
ERERROINER

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons

EESBREXER %@%&EP H % % B {2
REHmMARNKNE D

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with
EERMNEMK&RENIRFEE AR
FEYI70%

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights

i EEERRENBRERERFANE
5

Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures

Ol E e B E ME mE KR P

Operating Responsibly
BEELE

N/A Not applicable to the
Group’s core operation

TEH NERARAEEHZOE
%

N/A Not applicable to the
Group’s core operation

TEH NERRAEEHZLE
%

Operating Responsibly

BEALE

N/A Not applicable to the
Group’s core operation

@A NERANRAEENZOE
%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - (g LERWE

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

BE  —REEREE

Description

eL:

Relevant Sections in
the ESG Report

Remarks

Rig - HERERABER B

B E

KPI B6.5

A 5 45 1R B6.5

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored

U EE ERRE RALBBR - A
NAABRIT R BRI

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BHEB7: RESS
General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI'B7.1

B AR W IEIZE BT

KPI'B7.2

A B 45 IR 1R BT .2

KPIB7.3

R IE IEIZERT .3

Information on:

BRAD IEFRER R - HGF RS

(@  the policies; and
BUR &k

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering
BTFHETAREATENEH
EREROINER

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases
J‘Eé%&iﬁ;ﬁm%ﬂé’_)\ﬁiﬁiﬁi%ﬂjjt
RHES R AR A KEFA

=+
%u

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored

T L By 045 v M B RAZ P - DA N AR R
MITRERTE

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff

i RESER 8 TIRHNRESHEI
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il
B
m
i3

Operating Responsibly
BEMELE

Operating Responsibly

piny
i
RN
Al
i3

Operating Responsibly

il

BEER

S

No concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices
during the Reporting
Period

RI|BERA - LB RS
VA S



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspects, General Description
Disclosures and KPIs

BE- - —REERER 5
BRER

RIE - g REARE

Relevant Sections in Remarks
the ESG Report

BE HSRERBEP HH
HEEH

Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EHEB8 : HERE

General Disclosure

to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities takes into
consideration communities’ interests

— MR BN ERZER T REITAZER
EMHEFENBRREEBIDEER

IR N &5 B B R

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution

RS2 A 512 B8.1 BT EREE

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus
areas

7 52 45 IR 1R B8.2 ERIHBEMBAER

Policies on community engagement

Engagement with our
Community

ﬁ‘k
B0
W
\|
/|

Engagement with our
Community
HE2

Engagement with our
Community
a2

RTEN FHBIRIERABR AR / F3R 2023/24

93



94

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EELESREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lee Nga Ching (Ms. Lee), aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director on 8 June 2015. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration in Accounting from City University of Hong Kong in
2004. She also obtained certificates of the Insolvency Preparatory | and
Il courses in 2005 and 2007 respectively. Ms. Lee possesses over 17
years of experience in corporate management, finance, financial due
diligence, fraud and bribery investigations, internal control and insolvency
administrations. Ms. Lee is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

Ms. Lee has been appointed as an executive director of Golden Century
International Holdings Group Limited on 17 January 2023, whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 91). Ms.
Lee was employed by different institution, such as Baker Tilly Hong Kong,
BDO McCabe Lo Limited, John Lees & Associates Limited, Kroll Associates
(Asia) Limited and The Red Flag Group. The roles and responsibility of Ms.
Lee are (i) to participate in the formation of corporate strategy and policy of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”); (i) to oversee
business operation and financial performance of the Group; and (iii) to
ensure adequate internal control and risk management procedures and
compliance with relevant legislation, rules and guidelines of the Group.

Mr. Shiu Shu Ming (Mr. Shiu), aged 54, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 10 June 2022 and redesignated as an executive
Director on 5 July 2022. Mr. Shiu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong (formerly known as
City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) in 1993 and is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Shiu has more than 20 years’
experience in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, initial public
offerings and fundraising exercises in various ventures and projects with
a deal portfolio covering private entities, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") state-owned enterprises and publicly listed companies in
Hong Kong, the PRC, Malaysia, Singapore and Indonesia. Mr. Shiu is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Shiu has been appointed as (i) an independent non-executive director
and the chairman of audit committee of Tianjin Construction Development
Group Co. Ltd. (whose shares are listed on main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2515) on 23 April 2024) on 16 August 2023; (ii)
an independent non-executive director of Tianyun International Holdings
Limited (whose shares are listed on main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 6836)) since 6 April 2022; and (iii) a non-executive director of
Oriental Payment Group Holdings Limited (whose shares are listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8613)) since December 2021.

Mr. Shiu was appointed as (i) a non-executive director of Kingkey
Intelligence Culture Holdings Limited (currently known as Allegro Culture
Limited) (whose shares are listed on main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 550)) from January 2023 to September 2023; (ii) an executive
director of Town Health International Medical Group Limited (whose
shares are listed on main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3886))
from November 2022 to June 2023; and (iii) a non-executive director of
Golden Century International Holdings Group Limited, whose shares are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 91) from
March 2020 to October 2021.

Mr. Cao Weimin (Mr. Cao), aged 40, was appointed as an executive
Director on 19 April 2024. Mr. Cao obtained a bachelor’s degree in applied
economics and a master's degree in finance with distinction from Massey
University in New Zealand in 2006 and 2008, respectively. With over
10 years of experience in asset management, Mr. Cao has worked with
fixed income, equities, and managed funds in various asset management
companies in New Zealand and the PRC. Mr. Cao is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

EELSREEERE

BLEOWR-ZE_=FN AT AEZEAX
EEREREERM AR (EBROHR-Z N
FUA-Z+=BEBAMERLET (BRHAK
5% 0 2515)) 2 BUEHITEERERZES
TFER A E-__FNANBEERTAXR
HEBZERAR DA (RO RTER L
m (BRMAER - 6836)) 2BV IEHITEE Kk
(i BT ——F+_AREZETARAIN
SEERARA A (ARG R GEM L
(BRR5% - 8613)) ZIFHITE S -

BLE)VBE-ZE—_=F—B&2-_T_-_=FhA
BZEARETEXLERBRAR BREA
BEXEBRAT) (EROABAMER LT
(R MSE - 550)) 2 EHITEF : (IH=F
ToE+ AR T o= NAEEEAFER
BIpR B E S B AR A A (E AR () FNBSE 2 BT £ AR
(R R5E - 3886)) 2 FTTES ¢ K (i) A
—E-TE-—RAE-_E-—F+AEZTAS
EBEERIEREEER AR (ERORBRTE
RE™ (BRHRSE :91)) ZIERTES -

ERRALE(EELE) 40 R-ZZ-NF
MA+TNBEEBZERITES - BEERN_T
ZRERZET N\FH RIS 78 Massey
University FE RSB E2E2+ 20 RS R+ 2
U(BR) REATFNEEETELR B
ERIERERTENSEEEEREARRER
T BERESEEIEMNIE - BLE
NAASEETHBARZES -
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EELESREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siu Kin Wai (Mr. Siu), aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 29 September 2017. Mr. Siu obtained a
bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong
(formerly known as City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) and is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Siu has
extensive experience in corporate management.

Mr. Siu has been appointed as (i) an executive director of Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited (“Beijing Properties”), whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 925), in July 2009 and
the chief executive officer of Beijing Properties in July 2017. Following
the reform of the internal management structure of Beijing Properties,
Mr. Siu’s title was changed from the chief executive officer to the general
manager of Beijing Properties in February 2023 without substantial
alteration in duties and responsibilities; (ii) a director of Brilliant Bright
Holdings Limited, which is a controlling shareholder of Beijing Properties.
Mr. Siu is the non-executive director of CAQ Holdings Limited, whose
shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (stock code: CAQ)
since April 2015; (iii) an executive director of Beijing Health (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 2389) since May 2017; (iv) a director of MillenMin
Ventures Inc., a company listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSXV
stock code: MVM) since July 2017.

Mr. Siu was appointed as an independent non-executive director,
chairman of audit committee and member of each of nomination
committee and remuneration committee of Golden Century International
Holdings Group Limited from 22 March 2023 to 18 March 2024, whose
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 91).
From 24 August 2010 to 9 June 2021, Mr. Siu served as an independent
non-executive director of Agritrade Resources Limited (formerly listed on
main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1131)).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Cheng Ching Fu (Mr. Cheng), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 November 2023. Mr. Cheng
graduated from Curtin University, Perth, Western Australia with a
Degree of Bachelor of Commerce Accounting and Finance, majoring
in Accounting and Finance. He then obtained a Master of Business
Administration from the University of South Australia and a Master of
Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the CPA Australia, the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and
the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators), respectively. Mr. Cheng has
over 20 years of extensive experience in the field of accounting, financial
management and company secretary duties.

Mr. Cheng has been appointed as (i) an executive director and chief
financial officer of Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (”Beijing
Properties”), whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 925) in July 2017, and the company secretary
of Beijing Properties in June 2016; and (ii) an executive director, chief
financial officer and company secretary of MillenMin Ventures Inc., a
company listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSXV stock code: MVM)
since April 2018.

Mr. Cheng was appointed as a non-executive director of CAQ Holdings
Limited, whose shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange
(stock code: CAQ) from November 2017 to February 2024.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EELESREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Wai Man (Mr. Lau), aged 59, joined the Group in 2008 and is
currently a Responsible Officer of Orient Securities Limited. He is a licensed
person since August 1995. Mr. Lau is responsible for supervising in-house
account executives in carrying out regulated activities. Mr. Lau possesses
over 23 years of experience in the securities brokerage industry and his
work experience includes acting as a sales representative, floor trader and
account executive in various securities brokerage companies since 1995.

Mr. Huen, Felix Ting Cheung (Mr. Huen), aged 38, was appointed
as joint company secretary of the Company on 30 November 2021 and
redesignated as the sole company secretary on 15 June 2022 following the
resignation of another joint company secretary of the Company, Mr. Yip
Yat Sing. Mr. Huen obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts (Accounting) from
Edinburgh Napier University in United Kingdom in January 2010 and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Huen is a licensed person registered under the SFO to carry out Type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activity. Mr. Huen has extensive
experience in the areas of accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Huen is
currently the director and responsible officer of Diligent Capital Limited, a
licensed corporation registered under the SFO to carry out Type 6 (advising
on corporate finance) regulated activity.

Mr. Huen has been appointed as (i) an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of audit committee and a member of remuneration
committee of 1957 & Co. (Hospitality) Limited since 19 August 2022,
whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8495); and (ii) a joint company secretary of Oriental Payment Group
Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8613) since March 2022.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2024 (“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted company
with limited liability on 5 January 2009 under the Companies Act of the
Cayman Islands. The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
its (i) brokerage services; (i) underwriting and placing services; (iii) margin
financing services; (iv) money lending services; and (v) asset management
services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the Year and a discussion on the
Group’s future development are set out in the section “Executive Director’s
Statement”. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year
and a description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may
be facing can be found under section of “Management Discussion and
Analysis”. Also, the financial risk factors and capital management of the
Group can be found in note 36 and note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively. Discussions on the Group’s key relationships
with its customers and suppliers are contained under the section “Major
Customers and Suppliers” in the Report of Directors. Discussions on the
Group’s policies and compliance with laws and regulations in respect
of environmental and social aspects which have a significant impact on
the Group are contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report. In addition, the Group’s principal corporate governance practices
adopted which have a significant impact on the Group are contained in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, as far as the Directors are aware, there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that
has a significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the financial
position of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements from pages 119 to 207 of this annual report. The Directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2024.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five years is set out in the section headed “Financial Summary”
on page 208 of this annual report. The summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during
the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2024 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to the Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$109,366,000 (2023:
HK$106,800,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 and
up to the date of the report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shiu Shu Ming
Ms. Lee Nga Ching (duties suspended)
Mr. Cao Weimin

(appointed with effective from 19 April 2024)
Ms. Suen Tin Yan

(resigned with effective from 31 March 2024)
Mr. Chung Kar Ho Carol

(retired with effective from 31 August 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chan Man Yi
(resigned with effect from 25 June 2024)
Mr. Siu Kin Wai
Mr. Cheng Ching Fu
(appointed with effective from 30 November 2023)
Ms. Luk Huen Ling Claire
(retired with effective from 31 August 2023)

In accordance with articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles, Mr. Shiu Shu
Ming and Ms. Lee Nga Ching will retire as Directors and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM").

Pursuant to articles 83(3) of the Articles, Mr. Cao Weimin and Mr. Cheng
Ching Fu will retire as Directors and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

As at 31 March 2024, Ms. Lee Nga Ching and Mr. Shiu Shu Ming were
also directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Shiu Shu Ming
was the responsible officer of an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Orient Securities Limited, a licensed corporation registered
under the SFO to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising
on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. Other
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries included Mr. Fong Man Him, Mr.
Au Kwong Hoi and Mr. Su Boping (118 ).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical information of Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out from pages 94 to 98 of this annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company, save as disclosed in the sections
headed “Corporate Information” and “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report, since the Company’s last
published interim report and up to the date of this annual report, the
changes in the Directors’ information are set out as follows:

Mr. Shiu Shu Ming, the executive Director, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and the chairman of audit committee
of Tianjin Construction Development Group Co., Ltd. on 16 August 2023,
whose shares are listed on main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2515) on 23 April 2024.

Mr. Siu Kin Wai, the independent non-executive Director, has resigned as
independent non-executive director, the chairman of audit committee and
member of each of nomination committee and remuneration committee
of Golden Century International Holdings Group Limited on 18 March
2024, whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 91).

Mr. Cheng Ching Fu, the independent non-executive Director, has
resigned as a non-executive director of CAQ Holdings Limited, whose
shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (stock code: CAQ)
on 5 February 2024.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no change in the Directors’

biographical details which required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the Directors do not have service contracts with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering Director’s
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”) and was in force throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director had material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors with reference to their responsibilities, workload, the time
devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group. The Directors
may also receive options to be granted under a share option scheme. The
Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme. The details
of the share option scheme are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Scheme” below.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which had been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

EERBESITTRAEBERERTREA
HBCEE KRG - HERO R EREE
RZEBEIARE

RZE-_WMF=A=+—H ' EFEADaK
BITBRABRARF LB ([BRE]) - AAR]
S EAMAEEZER (ERRBSFSRABKOE
XVER) 2 HEBARMN REREFHEEBREES R
HEEPIEXVERE 7 R8N EE ME AR A K
BT RA R (BREBEESF RAEK
Pl ZERGXEEHEIERR AR 2R
AR - RN IBIRE 5 R EEEH] % 352
BERARRIFE ZELMA 2 S RAR -
HARIE GEM E iR A ZE 548 £5.67 (RS 1T
HERRRI KBRS KRBT

Long positions in Shares: REBHRZHR :
Approximate
Number of Shares percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest held/Interested shareholding™
BE/BEREEZ
EEnE B REEUE KRG EE BRESELMES O
Mr. Shiu Shu Ming Interest of a controlled corporation® 10,280,000 8.26%
R E R EEER
Beneficial owner® 1,036,800 0.84%
EREAAC
Ms. Lee Nga Ching Beneficial owner® 518,400 0.42%
(duties suspended)

FHREALXE (BEFBE) BmEAAY

1. There were 124,416,000 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2024.

2. Mr. Shiu Shu Ming (“Mr. Shiu”) legally and beneficially owns the entire issued shares of
Wealthbase Global Limited and is its sole director. Accordingly, Mr. Shiu is deemed to be
interested in the 10,280,000 Shares held by Wealthbase Global Limited by virtue of the
SFO.

3. Mr. Shiu is interested in the 1,036,800 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to him upon full exercise of all the options granted to him under the share option
scheme of the Company (as defined below).

4. Ms. Lee Nga Ching is interested in the 518,400 underlying Shares which may be allotted
and issued to her upon full exercise of all the options granted to her under the share
option scheme of the Company (as defined below).
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none of the Directors or
the chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2024, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons/entities (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which would be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in Shares:
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Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest held/Interested shareholding™
BE BEREEZ

=% 55 RnttE R4 & B BREBNES LD

Wealthbase Global Limited Beneficial owner®? 10,280,000 8.26%

Wealthbase Global Limited Ez#EAB A

1. There were 124,416,000 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2024.

2. Mr. Shiu Shu Ming (“Mr. Shiu”) legally and beneficially owns the entire issued shares of
Wealthbase Global Limited and is its sole director. Accordingly, Mr. Shiu is deemed to be
interested in the 10,280,000 Shares held by Wealthbase Global Limited by virtue of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, the Directors were not
aware of any other persons (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which would be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

1. RZTE-_WF=ZA=1+—H BEBTEROHA
124,416,000 fi% °

2. BB L AL (WAL 6% REZHEA Wealthbase
Global Limited 2 5 B & 1Tl h s AEE —F = -
Eit  BEZFHFRAERD  BLEHEBERR
Wealthbase Global Limited #7 10,280,000 & A%
RIEA R o
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B EFUTABEMEMAL(EFRAR
BARETTIRABRIN RAR B I A8 R X
DR EARBEES R IEGGIFEXVEEE 2 &3
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OTHER INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Directors, there
was no other person who had interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares that is discloseable under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Year, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or
had been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for Shares (or
warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company and/or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

Save for the share option scheme of the Company which was adopted
by way of Shareholder’s written resolution passed on 19 December 2013,
at no time during the Year was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company to hold any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares, or debentures of the Company and/or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year ended 31 March 2024, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”)
has been adopted by way of Shareholder’s written resolution passed on 19
December 2013.
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Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and/or
reward to eligible persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of, the Group.

Eligible Person

Subject to the provisions in the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be
entitled at any time and from time to time within the period of ten (10)
years after the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme to make
an offer to any of the following classes of eligible person (the “Eligible
Person(s)”):

(@)  any employee of (whether full-time or part-time employee, including
any executive Directors but not any non-executive Director) the
Company and its subsidiaries;

(b)  any non-executive Director (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company and any of its subsidiaries; and

(c)  any account executive of the Group, and any person or entity acting
in their capacities as advisers or consultants that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

No option shall be granted to any Eligible Person (“Relevant Eligible
Person”) if, any further grant of options would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
to such person (including exercised and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including such further grant would exceed 1%
of the total number of Shares in issue, unless:

(@  such grant has been duly approved, in the manner prescribed by
the relevant provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules, by
resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting, at which the
Relevant Eligible Person and his associates shall abstain from voting;
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(b) a circular regarding the grant has been despatched to the
Shareholders in a manner complying with, and containing the
information specified in, the relevant provisions of Chapter 23 of
the GEM Listing Rules (including the identity of the Relevant Eligible
Person, the number and terms of the options to be granted and
options previously granted to such Relevant Eligible Person); and

(c)  the number and terms (including the subscription price) of such
option are fixed before the general meeting of the Company at
which the same are approved.

On 23 June 2022, the Company had granted share options to certain
eligible participants to subscribe for a total of 21,144,000 Shares under
the Share Option Scheme at the exercise price of HK$0.094 per Share for a
validity period from 23 June 2022 to 22 June 2032 pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme. The closing price of the Shares immediately before 23
June 2022, on which those options were granted, was HK$0.082.

Details of the above grant of share options are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 June 2022.

Following the share consolidation of the Company became effective on
11 October 2022, pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
the exercise price of the outstanding share options and the number of
shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise of the subscription rights
attaching to, will be adjusted to HK$0.47 per share and 4,228,800 shares.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 24 October 2022 for
details of the adjustment to the exercise price of the outstanding share
options.

The total number of options available for grant under the Share Option
Scheme at the beginning of the Year (i.e. 1 April 2023) was 2,808,000
options. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share
Option Scheme was expired on 19 December 2023. Thus, there is no share
options available for grant under the Share Option Scheme at the end of
the Year (i.e. 31 March 2024).

ORIENT SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2023/24

() AERLOBRHEIZRTE GEM LR
AIFE -+ =S HEGRXNTATE TR
R BZBHEERBHAEENE
H(BREEBESERALZSN KRR
BERAZFHBAERATROHNBK
REOEE RiEF) « &

© FHEBERENHEREX(BRERBEE)
REBEHENARBRRAGHEEE
=

RZEZ_—_FRNAZF+=H ARAIERE
EREFERNE TEER2EERHER
- AEBRRMITEME0.094B TRES H
21,144,000 B %17 - IR IEREARERTSE] - HA X
R —_F A AA-+t=-ARE-T==
FRAZTZHBARILE -BE-_FT-_—FA
Zt=H(AIREZEERERR) ARG 2
W8 A&0.082/8 T °

ERBHEREZ FERRAATDEMA T
T —ERNAZTZHMAE -

BARBRGBEHR_ZE__F+A+—A4%
WiE - IRIREARRE ST B 2 R - MARITERAR
W 2 AT 10 B R AR BT H B B 2 3R B R s S
FRRERBET RN E BEFARAERR0.47
77T 1% 4,228,800 % © B B AR I ARTTEER
B2ITEENFE  #2HAAFHEHASE
ZHETHAZTHEHERNAE -

REMB—_ZE-_=F1WA—\) BRIEFERE
FHEIA TR 2 B AR 48 205 2,808,000 17 i
iRt o ARIREEARMERT B 2 155K - AR ERT 2R
ZEZ=Ft+ZAthBER Bt REXR
(AIZZ=—mF=A=1+—8) BEREEKRE
FTEI AR 2 B AR o



The 3,192,000 Shares that may be issued in respect of options granted
under the Share Option Scheme during the Year represent approximately

Report of Directors
FERWE

RAFERIRIEERETSIE R B g &
ZE1TH9 3,192,000 5 - FBERAQRRMDR
FRZ IEFHIE 124,416,000 % 7 #12.57%

2.57% of the weighted average number of the Company’s Shares of

124,416,000 as at the end of Year.

As at 31 March 2024, the total number of shares available for issue under R-ZT-_WF=A=+—H  BIEHBERET
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme was 3,192,000. ZIERE 2 BEBREAHEBIT 2RO EHR B

Movement of share options during the Year are as below:

3,192,000f% - B ERAFE 2EBHU0T :

Lapsed/
Name of Director/ Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding
category of Date of Exercise Vesting at 1 April during the during the during the at 31 March
participant grant price Exercise period period 2023 period period period 2024
RZBZZF RZZ2=mF
329 mA-H RER RER  RER%H/ =A=1+-A
SEERR RAAH &R Ei: 2 SEH W RATE it % RY HRTE
Shiu Shu Ming 23 June 2022 HK$0.47 From 23 June 2022 to 22 June 2032 No 1,036,800 - - - 1,036,800
Ct —g-zf 04737 T--5RA-TZHZ &
~NAZTZH “E=-FxA-1ZH
Lee Nga Ching 23 June 2022 HK$0.47 From 23 June 2022 to 22 June 2032 No 518,400 - - - 518,400
(duties suspenceea)
ThA(ERRK) kSt 047%L  AZE-Z§RA-f=HZE &
~AZT=H ZE=_FXAZTZH
Employees 23 June 2022 HK$0.47 From 23 June 2022 to 22 June 2032 No 1,636,800 - - - 1,636,800
&8 Z3ICF 047%T  AZE--FXA-TZAE &
~NAZT=H “2=-FxA-1ZH
3,192,000 - - - 3,192,000

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, Senior Management and
five individuals with highest emoluments are set out in note 15 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had engaged in or had any interest
in any business which compete or may compete, directly or indirectly, with
the Group’s business.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, details of the significant related
party transactions undertaken in the normal course of business are set out
in the note 33 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group, and
none of which constitutes a disclosable connected transaction as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the largest customer of the Group
contributes approximately 26.99% of the revenue of the Group. The total
revenue of the 5 largest customers accounted for approximately 67.14%
of the revenue of the Group.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Director nor their
associates nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
these 5 largest customers of the Group.

Due to the nature of the Group’s business activities, the Group has no
suppliers.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent during the Year and remain so as of the date
of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the view that the Company has met the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix C1 to the GEM Listing Rules. A report on the
principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out from pages 30 to 52 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public at all times during the Year and
as of the date of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and key relationship with
employees are contained in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 53 to 93 of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group has over 595 active securities accounts and money borrowers
as at 31 Mach 2024.

In order to maintain relationships with customers, various means
have been established to strengthen the communications between
the customers including direct conservation to promote investment
opportunities and invitation to casual business development events. In
addition, the Group will continue to develop the customer base by utilising
the network we have and referrals from existing customers.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS

The Group does not have any supplier during the year ended 31 March
2024 and up to the date of this report.
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AUDITORS

BDO Limited (“BDO"), who was the auditor of the Group from 2015
to 2021, has resigned as the auditor of the Group with effect from 16
December 2022. BDO, in their letter of resignation, confirmed that there
were no matters in connection with their resignation that needed to be
brought to the attention of holders of securities of the Company. The
Board also confirmed that there was no disagreement or unresolved
matter between the Company and BDO, and that they were not aware of
any matters in relation to the resignation of BDO as auditor of the Group
that needed to be brought to the attention of holders of securities of the
Company.

The Company has appointed CL Partners CPA Limited (“CL Partners”)
as the auditors of the Company with effect from 16 December 2022.
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
and fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 have been audited by the CL
Partners. CL Partners will hold office until the conclusion of the AGM.
CL Partners, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of CL
Partners as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the board

Shiu Shu Ming
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ORIENT SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orient Securities
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 119 to 207, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
ERVE A G TR

BYRBE RS
BRFEMESERZRERITRR

(RESHEIMIA L BRAA])

=R

BB EZIENE 1198 EE207BRFE
MEHEBIERARAR ([EATF]) RENB
RNE(FTEBEE]) ZREMBRE - ERE
B mEABERN-—_E-_NF=A=1+—HBH4%&
AFBRRE BEZALFEZEABERK
Hih2mliak SEE=ZBRRGARS
RER  UREKEMBHRERMT(BEERS
AR ER R EAMRAER) o

BMRE  REVHRREREFTSSHEA
2([(ERSHMAS) BEMH BV BERSE
R (BB EREEN) EERAFHKR
B BEEER-_T_ME=ZA=+—HZ&AE
MRk BEEERZBIEFEZRENE
FARGEBESRE  WEIRRBRE B D REH
L EBEREZBRE

RRzER

BMERBEBBSAMAGRM 2 BBETE
A ([ERBEER D ETEZ - RANZFE
AR T 2 BERARE [ZHED B ZAER AR
BHRRAAEZEE] el - RIEFE
SR AR 2 [BESHEEE TR ([
Al BMABYLR BEXE - YEBESTAIE
TEMERET - HIHEE  RPIMESZE
ZBREBANNREEHARMAZEZERREHRE
B o

RTEN FHBIRIERABR AR / F3R 2023/24

113



114

Independent Auditor’s Report
AR A iR ey

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables

(Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policy information as set out in note 4.9 to the consolidated
financial statements)

Under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, impairment assessment of
loan and interest receivables is estimated based on an expected credit
loss model. As at 31 March 2024, the Group had net loan and interest
receivables of HK$196,732,000 arising from money lending business.
Impairment provision of HK$181,116,000 had been made over loan and
interest receivables as at 31 March 2024.

Assessing impairment of loan and interest receivables is a subjective area
as it requires application of significant judgement and uses of estimates.
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition by
comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis. Judgement
is applied in assessing customers that may default and identifying evidence
of impairment which include assessment on creditworthiness of customers,
their repayment history, and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.

We focused on this area as a key audit matter. Assessing the impairment

assessment performed by management involved critical judgement and
estimation as mentioned in the aforementioned paragraph.
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Our response

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment on
loan and interest receivables included:

- testing the appropriateness of the Group’s determination of
significant increase in credit risk and the basis for classification of
exposures into the 3 stages. Our testing included the checking to
loan overdue information and other factors determining the stage
classification as determined by the Group;

- reviewing debtors’ historical repayments and subsequent
settlements after year end date;

- evaluating whether the expected credit loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions and forward-looking
information; and

- evaluating the Group’s estimation methodology of expected credit
losses, and checking the parameters to external data sources where
available.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financing reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional  1RIBEE BT EBIEITEZIE - RIFIERRE
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We — #I# - N EEAEZBIEP NS HEIRREE -
also: BHAITT

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

CL Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

LEE Wai Chi

Practising Certificate Number: P07830

Hong Kong, 28 June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A

N

SERYNE el

For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

For the For the fifteen
year ended months ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
BE-—E-mE BT -=F
=HA=+—H =A=+—H
IEFE IE+EM@EA
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET

Revenue Y &5 94,878 49,125
Other income HadA 7 1,188 125
Employee costs B B A 9 (5,893) (10,175)
Administrative and other operating 1T R HE &8 E A

expenses (22,608) (11,486)
Impairment for trade receivables, net [EUE 5 KIBRE @ F5 (19,692) (6,456)
Impairment for loan and interest FEW B F R BORE - R

receivables, net (38,127) (143,107)
Impairment for other receivables, net ~ E b fEUR ZRIB R (E @ 558 - (3,563)
Loss on disposal of loan receivables & EUWE FE 1B (2,146) -
Finance costs B & A 10 (23) (165)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRAETEBANER (B18) 11 7,577 (125,702)
Income tax expense Frig%i M 12 (4,185) =
Profit/(loss) and total AATFREAELEEE

comprehensive income HEEF (B RE2E

(expense) for the year/period WA (BAX) #%5

attributable to owners of the

Company 3,392 (125,702)
Earnings/(loss) per share KATREEAEEFEE

attributable to owners of the HEEREF (&B)

Company for the year/period 14

— Basic and diluted (HK cent) —EARRESE BW) 2.73 (120.48)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e EIIR

As at 31 March 2024 A=ZZ ¥ =A=+—H

At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-ZE-mF - —-c
EETH =A=+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FBT THET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HWRREBE 16 483 1,466
Other assets HihEE 17 405 430
Loan and interest receivables EUREREFE 20 13,899 15,404
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBEEE 27 334 334
15,121 17,634
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables BUE 55 19 12,242 18,716
Loan and interest receivables U E R & FI B 20 182,833 207,220
Prepayments, deposits and other TERRIE -~ e REM
receivables JE W 5k I8 21 13,613 1,015
Trust bank balances held REFFE ZE7ERTT
on behalf of clients 44 22 8,197 8,903
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEY 23 41,654 5,769
258,539 241,623
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables BT E S 5RIE 24 8,200 9,660
Accruals and other payables st E A & EH b e 58 25 13,509 3,091
Lease liabilities HEaE 26 233 732
Tax payables FEAS IR 12,521 9,736
34,463 23,219
Net current assets REBEEFE 224,076 218,404
Total assets less current liabilities A& ER AT EE 239,197 236,038
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fre IR

As at 31 March 2024 A=ZF=—W&=A=+—H

At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-Z-@WF MIEZ=%F
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Non-current liability FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE 26 = 233
Net assets EERE 239,197 235,805
EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to owners ERREEA
of the Company PEfh R
Share capital f& 7 28 6,221 6,221
Reserves & 30 232,976 229,584
Total equity s 239,197 235,805
On behalf of the Board BEgRE
Cao Weimin Shiu Shu Ming
EER B
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

.—\-| e —!
7 \/\ i/)lbii‘%

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

For the For the fifteen
year ended months ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
=A= ‘l' =i :)EJ er i
IEFE IE+RM@EA
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FHT
Cash flows from operating REREETH2RERE
activities
Profit/(loss) before income tax BrETE R AE F), (E518) 7,577 (125,702)
Adjustments for: ELA T RE -
Depreciation of property, M - B REEITE
plant and equipment 11 262 126
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {# FAEEEITE 11 721 2,721
Impairment for trade EWE S IERE - F5E
receivables, net 8 19,692 6,456
Impairment for loan and FEWE F R F SRE - JFEE
interest receivables, net 8 38,127 143,107
Impairment for of other H e IE R E - F R
receivables, net 8 - 3,563
Finance costs s8R 10 23 165
Gain on derecognition of RIFTERGRAEEE W
right-of-use assets 7 - (30)
Share options expenses BARER X = 1,987
Loss on disposal of loan receivables & fE g E ZUE 18 2,146 =
Interest Income FEHA (82) =
Operating profit before working BESEERIKE R A
capital changes 68,466 32,393
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivablesf& Y 2 5 X 18 (3 40),/ 8 (13,218) 2,938
Increase in loan and interest U E SR B2 0
receivables (16,241) (39,628)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FBf7KIE « & R EAMD
deposits and other receivables JEUR kT8 ($An),/ S (12,598) 292
Decrease in other assets H & =R 25 =
Decrease in trust bank balances held RE S48 2 5L EIT4E %
on behalf of clients Rk 706 6,632
Decrease in trade payables B E ZE R (1,460) (5,938)
Increase in accruals and EEtE A KA
other payables JE 1~ 5RIEIE AN 10,418 1,668
Proceeds from disposal of loan & B B BT 15 38
receivables 1,860 -
Cash generated from/(used in) REFPEE /(A Z2HE
operations 37,958 (1,643)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNEH (1,400) (949)
Interest received B F & 82 -
Net cash generated fromAused in) A &5 B)E% " (HT/H).2
operating activities 5 HEE 36,640 (2,592)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN N =
meRie mE I}
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BE T -—MF=A=+—HILFE

For the For the fifteen
year ended months ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
=A= ‘l' =i =A= + i
IFFE IE+EM@A
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET

Cash flows from investing activity RE R EFZE 2HESHRE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWHE WRRRE

equipments = (431)
Net cash used in investing activity — &) E)FTFH .2 B £ F5E - (431)
Cash flows from financing REMETHZRERE

activities
Interest paid BAIFE (23) (165)
Repayment of principal amount of EEHE&BBEALHEE

lease liabilities (732) (2,710)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRAD 2 FTiS 5k I8 - 11,474
Share issue cost paid BN EITER - (610)
Repayment of debentures EEES - (1,000)
Net cash (used in)/from financing BETE (BT BrifsHe

activities JHER (755) 6,989
Net increase in cash ReRESEEYEMTFHE

and cash equivalents 35,885 3,966
Cash and cash equivalents at the F/ Pz BE KRS EEY

beginning of the year/period 5,769 1,803
Cash and cash equivalents FRHPMRZAERBESZEY

at the end of the year/period 23 41,654 5,769
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GABRBBE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

EAREBAELER
Share
Share Share Merger option  Retained
capital premium* reserve* reserve* profits* Total
B 12 &6t B RE
& e * fitiE > e * b #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAER FTAR FTHER FTART FTART FTAER
(note 28) (note 30(b))  (note 30(a)) (note 29)
(MtE28) (FIsE30()) (PiEE30@)  (PH&E29)
At 1 January 2022 R-E-_—§—-F—H 4,320 138,016 8 - 206,312 348,656
Loss and total HABEREZERS
comprehensive expense  #2%8
for the period - - - - (125,702) (125,702)
Issue of shares BTG 1,901 9,573 - - = 11,474
Transaction costs BTN FEMR
attributable to issue 2R G KA
of shares - (610) - - = (610)
Recognition of share TR R IR i 2
option expenses - - - 1,987 - 1,987
Share options lapsed e - = = (487) 487 =
At 31 March 2023 R=B==%
and 1 April 2023 =A=t—-HEK
—E-=fA—H 6,221 146,979 8 1,500 81,097 235,805
Profit and total FRHMEEEBA
comprehensive income ~ 42%8
for the year - - - - 3,392 3,392
At 31 March 2024 R-BE-F
=A=+-—H 6,221 146,979 8 1,500 84,489 239,197
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$232,976,000  * ZERERAK RS MR RERA Z 232,976,000 7%
(31 March 2023: HK$229,584,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. T (ZE2=Z=F=A=+—H : 229,584,000 T) 4%
AfhlE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Orient Securities International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability on 5 January 2009 under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands and acts as an investment holding company. The
shares of the Company have been listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 15
January 2014. The address of its registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and 8th Floor,
Hip Shing Hong Centre, 55 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of:

- brokerage services

- underwriting and placing services

- securities, initial public offering financing services

- money lending services

—  asset management services

There were no significant changes in operations during the year.

—REHR

RHEVEHFBEBZERBRAR ([RQ
ADR=ZZETNF—AAEREASH
SRaEEMA Y AEREBR AT
WHEAIREIER A TIENE - A ARRMDRA
—T--NE-—A+REREEEBARS
FIBRAR (TBRA]) GEM L « AR
RAIFE o S I B E i B 2 bk o
7l A& Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands & & 7 9 IR £2 i 38 9 55
SR RA AT 0 81 o

AAER—EREZERAR - KA AR
HIfBE AR (S ~EEH]) FZRER
fit -

- RER

—  BERESRS

— BHERERAAZRERMERD

—  WER®

- EEBER®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TS ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

2.1 New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatory
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts
the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform—Pillar
Two model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Except as disclosed below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatory
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments also clarify
that accounting policy information may be material because
of the nature of the related transactions, other events or
conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However,
not all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material. If
an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy
information, such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information. HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements (the “Practice Statement”)
is also amended to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-
step materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and
to judge whether information about an accounting policy is
material to its financial statements. Guidance and examples
are added to the Practice Statement. The application of the
amendments has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance but has affected the
disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies set out in Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements. In accordance with
the guidance set out in the amendments, accounting policy
information that is standardized information, or information
that only duplicates or summarises the requirements of
the HKFRSs, is considered immaterial accounting policy
information and is no longer disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements so as not to obscure the
material accounting policy information disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TS ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but are not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all the amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which
concern the preparation of consolidated financial statements.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new and amended HKFRSs and the impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention. The measurement bases are
fully described in the material accounting information below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

3. RAUEXE

3.1

3.2

3.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

3.4

Change of financial year end date

On 13 January 2023, the Board announced that the financial
year end date of the Company has been changed from 31
December to 31 March commencing from the financial period
ended 31 March 2023 in order to remove the uncertainty
arose from (i) a legal review of the existing loan arrangements,
which involves certain cross-border guarantee or security
provided by borrowers to guarantee or secure his/her/its
debt owed to the Group, by independent legal adviser; and
(i) an assessment on the practicability of the enforcement
procedures to take and cost in case of a debt recovery.

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for the current financial year covers a twelve
months period from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024. The
comparative figures, however, are for fifteen months from 1
January 2022 to 31 March 2023, and hence are not directly
comparable.

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

4.1

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the effective
dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.2

4.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the
reporting date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4.

INFORMATION (Continued)

4.3 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of goods or services transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

(a) Commission income
Brokerage commission income is recognised on a trade
date basis when the relevant performance obligation is
executed.

(b) Interest income
- Interest income from bank deposit is accrued

using effective interest method by reference to the
principal deposited and at the rate applicable.

- Interest income from client is accrued using
effective interest method by reference to the
outstanding balance and at the rate applicable.

(c) Underwriting and placing income

Underwriting and placing income are recognised at a
point in time when the obligation is completed.

(d) Service income

Service income is recognised at the time when the
services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =T - UG =A=+—H It FE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period
when incurred.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets represent trading rights of the Stock
Exchange, with which the holders have the right to trade on
the Stock Exchange. Intangible assets acquired separately
are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of trading rights is provided on straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives which are five years.

Amortisation commence when the intangible assets
are available for use. The asset’s amortisation method
and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts (see note
4.7).
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4. EREFTHERER (8)

INFORMATION (Continued)

4.6 Property, plant and equipment 46 YN HBREE

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided to
write off the cost less their estimated residual value, if any, over
their estimated useful lives, using straight-line method. The
depreciation rates per annum are as follow:

Right-of-use assets Over the lease term

Leasehold improvements 33.33%
Computer equipment 20%-50%
Office equipment 20%-33.33%
Furniture and fixtures 30%-33.33%
Motor vehicles 33.33%

The assets’ estimated residual value, depreciation method
and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.7

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the following assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and

- intangible assets with finite useful lives

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

4, EXRETHRESR (H)

47 FERMEERE

REREHR AREFHATE
ENRAENEEXFTEERDT
FERER RPN R 3 2 AR HRE
BEETBFEXDRED

- PE BEEkERER

- ERTACERAFHZELE
3

AT RREEZ AR E & 5 (B
R EREERANEREERE
mHEREE) BREREE MEE
FMREESHEESE KOS
REBEIRERARY -

R E R IRRE R B @ - 2B ERER
EERIE ZEIER] 2 et AT i m &
B MR NRAREENSEREE
BT B 1 F 2 3 SRR SRR (B S 1R A
REEETRREE - BREBEDN
BB BN i R R AU

ERBEDEREREEELNG
AARRBERE RRREFKTS
HECHREBENRZEENRTTER
RE AR AR R R HIR
8 o

RTEN FHBIRIERABR AR / F3R 2023/24

135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TS ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4. EREFTHERER (8)

INFORMATION (Continued)

4.8 Leases 48 HE

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for which at the commencement date have a
lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed in profit or loss on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at cost and comprise: (i)
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
(i) any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct
costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. The Group measures right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Lease liabilities

These are recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of
the lease. Lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.8 Leases (Continued)

4.9

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The following payments for right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liabilities by: (i) increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Financial instruments

(i)  Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

4, EXRETHEREHR (&)

48 WM& (&)

4.9

HERE (&)

THAER A ERFLS BB eHE
EMASARE EFE AR THR
AR RMEENF () Bl E M ZURE
AEKEEERE : (i) iFHEKE Az
BHIEMNERERGERNFBHEEN
R (BURRIEEHAZK) « (jii) FFHA
RIBRIBRMEEFERTA MR RO
B (WHABRAREREITERE
B REEROTEE D RO
e 70 & HA R BROAE AT (B R RE R
LHHRE - RIEAER SRR -

RFte BHIR - AREREB T
ARG EHRERE : ()BNKEE

AR IR (0T A0 ¢ 2 i)
375 8 A BN RIS
MBEY - DERRFE B EH
ARBERRED AEHED
8 AR AR B 30 B AR
BEMFELD -

E®MIA

(i) Z2HEE

TREE(XEEARE BN
B E 5 B UFRIRRR SN H) P42
NP EMERBRBTEE
EENRZXZRAGE - L&
ERBEBNDHE S B
BB HEIRE -

RTEN FHBIRIERABR AR / F3R 2023/24

137



138

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TS ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group
classifies all of its debt instruments as financial assets at
amortized cost.

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on trade
receivables and financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 BE T -—MF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables arising from cash clients, clearing
house margin clients and placing services using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
loan and interest receivables by using HKFRS 9 general
approach. ECLs are based on the 12-months ECLs.
However, when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due or there is a significant delay in fulfilling
contractual payments or significant change in the value
of collateral or credit enhancement.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired under the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer of the
borrower; or

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event; or

- securities, initial public offering financing services;
or

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

—  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at
a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at their
fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the
equity instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

4.10 Accounting for income tax
Income tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax.
Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non- assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using

tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., EREFTHERER (F)

INFORMATION (Continued)

410 ISR ETER (8)

4.10 Accounting for income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income tax expense are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the tax are also
recognised directly in equity.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

Accounting for income tax (Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if, (a) the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and (b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either (i) the same taxable entity; or (i) different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and cash
on hand.

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the issue of
share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium to the extent that
they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related service.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.13

4.14

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the Group and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the services are
rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4. EREFTHERER (8)
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.15 Foreign currency 4.15 s

Transactions entered into by the Company and the Group in

AKANBRAEB AT RBKEEMET

currencies other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entities operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items that are measured at

TRERFENEE ([Thee g% ) 1A
SN BEEETHRZ HIRR HHETTR
MERARR - INEBEREERBE
RWEHRERFNEZRRE o DN
BIRBE L AT ENIEEREIER I
REFILH o

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary EHEEMEEKIEREFRER =
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are BN EELHRNIESER T
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. BMERNTESRNIFEKIEE
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non- HH)E R ABRNER -

monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

4.16 Related parties 4.16 BEAL

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@) (WEBLATAL BIFZALTSNZ
related to the Group if that person: AT Z R B A R

() has control or joint control of the Company; () RSk HREHAD
al;

(i) has significant influence over the Company; or (i) BHARRBERTE:
54

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of (i) ABARBXARBETA

the Company or of the Company’s parent.

AT BEREKE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z —

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.16 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

the entity, of any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to the Company
parent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

4.16

4.17

4.18

Related parties (Continued)

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include (a)
that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (b)
children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and (c)
dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

Government grant

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Grants
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that the grants are
intended to compensate, whilst those relating to the purchase
of property, plant and equipment are included as deferred
income liability in the consolidated statement of financial
position and are recognised in profit or loss on straight-line
method over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other income” in profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of clients, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segment which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., EREFTHERER (8)

INFORMATION (Continued)

4.19 Share-based payments 419 URHBHEBRNTR

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Impairment allowance on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all
categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular,
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
and collateral or credit enhancement values when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis.

Income tax

The Group is mainly subjected to income tax in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision and the timing of payment. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax expense is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises taxes
based on estimates of the likely outcome with reference to current
tax laws and practices. Where the final outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were originally estimated, such
differences will impact the provision for income tax and deferred tax
in the period in which such determination is made.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

REVENUE 6. W=
The Group’s revenue represents: REE 2 WETE -
For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-B-_mF HBHE_T_=%
=A=+-—AH =A=+—H
LHEE IE+RM@EA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Revenue recognised under HKFRS 9 RIE B SB35 22 R 9 5%
TRz W
— Interest income from margin —FERBE RS 2 FEHA
financing services 2,033 3,905
— Interest income from money — B ERE 2 FEHA
lending services 21,241 43,237
Revenue recognised at a point in time BEBREBM G HREERZFE 1558
under HKFRS 15 MR F B RER s
— Commission income from — &R lRB 2 ARKA
brokerage services 567 1,119
— Underwriting and placement income — B REERA 70,349 714
— Income from asset management services — & &= & RIS UL A 688 150
94,878 49,125
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HglgA

For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-Z-_NF HBE_T_=F
=ZA=+—H ==+=H
LHFE IE+REA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Government grant (Note) BT 48 B (B 3E) 1,092 =

Gain on derecognition of RICHEREREEE 2 K
right-of-use assets - 30
Bank interest income RITHIE YA 22 =
Interest income from a director RKE—BEZZHERA 60 17
Sundry income HIBIA 14 78
1,188 125

Note: Subsidies of HK$1,092,000 were granted from the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government’s Grant Scheme for Open-ended Fund
Companies and Real Estate Investment Trusts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following five reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form any of the following reportable segments.

Brokerage —  Provision of brokerage services
Underwriting and

Provision of underwriting and placing

placing services
Margin financing —  Provision of securities and initial public
offering financing services
Money lending —  Provision of money lending services
Asset management -  Provision of asset management services

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the revenue, results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all non-current and current assets with
the exception of deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities include all
current liabilities and non-current liabilities with the exception of tax
payables.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from
the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group's material accounting policy information described in
note 4.18. Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned and loss
incurred by each segment without allocation of sundry income and
income tax expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE TSR AN

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment revenue, results and capital expenditure for the year ended
31 March 2024 and the segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March

2024 are as follows:

8. K&

i

(&)

BESTNF=_H=+—HILFEZ

R

—HE=ZA=+—HoBEEERABEN

T
Underwriting Margin Money Asset
Brokerage  and placing financing lending management Total
g8 AHRRE HFREE BE BEEE st
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z-_ME=A=t+-HLEE TET TR TR TR TR TER
Reportable segment REHMBEFZ
revenue from external RS BlE
clients 567 70,349 2,033 21,241 688 94,878
Reportable segment (loss) B {2 &
profit (E18) %=A (118) 46,190 (18,747) (21,624) 688 6,389
Depreciation of property, ¥ » 2 Rk
plant and equipment nE 131 26 105 - = 262
Depreciation of right-of-use  FFAEEENE
assets 361 72 288 - - 21
Impairment for trade BN E 5508
receivables, net wE R - - 19,692 - - 19,692
Impairment for loan and BREFR RS
interest receivables, net wE R - - - 38,127 - 38,127
Loss on disposal of loan HERKER
receivables BB - - - 2,146 - 2,146
Reportable segment assets AR HHEEE 32,279 17,965 25,829 196,897 356 273,326
Reportable segment Bk Vil =
liabilities 12,523 1,347 1,707 365 - 21,942
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BE T -—MF=A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8. KWeEHE (&)
Segment revenue, results and capital expenditure for the fifteen BHE_ZT_=F=HA=+—HIETA#
months ended 31 March 2023 and the segment assets and liabilities RzoEls RFEREARAX - KR
as at 31 March 2023 were as follows: TEC=F-RA=T—HOBEEEKRSE

BT
Underwriting Margin Money Asset

Brokerage  and placing financing lending  management Total
ge BHEEEE FREE BE BEER et
For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE_Z-_=F=A=+—HILth{EA THT TET THET THT THET THT

Reportable segment REHMBEFZ
revenue from external AHRRD EKE
clients 1,19 714 3,905 43,237 150 49,125

Reportable segment loss ™ B 3R 7 B E (3,181) (2,274) (18,114) (102,258) - (125,827)

Depreciation of property, MmE - BER
plant and equipment ZENE 63 13 50 - = 126

Depreciation of right-of-use & FEEEHE

assets 1,360 272 1,089 - - 2,721
Impairment for trade FEWE 55

receivables, A FE

net 2,494 1,001 2,961 - - 6,456

Impairment for loan and ERERRFL

interest receivables, net BEFE - - - 143,107 - 143,107
Impairment for other H it B IBRE

receivables 1,232 985 246 1,100 - 3,563
Reportable segment assets AR HHEEE 17,465 147 16,804 224,507 = 258,923

Additions to non-current REFREDE
segment assets BE 976 195 781 - - 1,952

Reportable segment Bk Vil =
liabilities 9,727 97 3,622 270 - 13,716
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments are

reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the

consolidated financial statements as follows:

8.

rRESE(E)
REEFT25EE D E 2 ME BRAY

BHREMZINAEE T B KR
HERWT :

For the For the

year ended fifteen months

31 March ended 31 March

2024 2023

BE-_Z-_E BE_ZT_=F

=A=+—H =HA=+—8H

IEFE IEt+HE@EA

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET
Reportable segment profit/(loss) AIERRA T, (EE) 6,389 (125,827)
Other income E A A 1,188 125
Profit/(loss) before income tax BET SR RS R, (EE) 7,577 (125,702)
Reportable segment assets AR{YBEE 273,326 258,923
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE 334 334
Consolidated total assets REBEAE 273,660 259,257
Reportable segment liabilities ARBSEAE 21,942 13,716
Tax payables FERI AR IR 12,521 9,736
Consolidated total liabilities A BaERE 34,463 23,452

All activities of the Group are carried out in Hong Kong and all its

revenue for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the period ended 31

March 2023 are derived from Hong Kong. Accordingly, no analysis

of geographical information is presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted to 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue, is set out below:

8.

e (|
ABEERFNES

KEEX2EP WS (REEARE KRS
10% A £) #HIn T -

For the year ended
31 March 2024

BE-ZT-_MmF
=EA=+—-HLEE
Percentage
Revenue of revenue
W 2% HEE S
HK$'000
THET
Customer A! EEA 25,610 26.99%
Customer B! =B 13,725 14.47%
Customer C! HFPCO 10,310 10.87%

! Revenue from underwriting and placing segment.

Save and except for the above, no other single customer contributed
10% or more to the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March
2024. For fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, no single customer
contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue.

! KB EHREED RIS -

BrLiaiEN REBEEZT-_NF = A
=T—HIEEE SIEEMSE -KPh
AEBHRZE10%HALE - FHE_T—_=
F=RA=+T—HI+A@EA  BIEE—
BEEAREEREE10% 3 A L -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TS ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

9. EMPLOYEE COSTS 9. EERAK
For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-2-mF HE_ZT_=F
=A=+—H =A=+—H
IFFE IE+REM@A
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Directors’ emoluments (note 15) ZEEZWE (FE15)
— Fees, salaries, allowances and bonuses —#& ¥4 2 RES 1,959 2,091
— Equity-settled share based expense — AR E ARG BERER
< - 1,218
— Retirement benefits scheme — R RAEFIET B K
contributions 54 44
2,013 3,353
Other staff HEMET
— Commissions paid —BftfEe 62 227
— Salaries, allowances and bonuses —Fe  RMRES 3,642 5,248
— Equity-settled share based expense — AR A B AR ) R A TR Y
X - 769
— Mandatory provident fund contributions — 38 i 14 A f& & £ 7% 149 212
— Medical and insurance — B kiR 23 359
— Staff welfare and recruitment —BIEM KRB 4 7
Total employee costs 1B B AN 4B5T 5,893 10,175
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10. FINANCE COSTS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRk MR

10. I EH

ZECNF=A=T—HIEFE

For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-_ZT_WF HE-_T-=%
=A=+—H —A=+—H
L“HFEE EETHEEA
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEMERZ 23 76
Interest expenses on debentures (EERESNE BT - 89
23 165
11. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 1. BRATEBATNER,(B18)
For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-F-_RFE BE_T_=F%
=HA=+-—H =A=+—H
ILFE IE+AEA
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at BR RS R BE Fl - (E518)
after charging: BBk -
Auditor's remuneration (Note) ZE A< (%) 600 540
Depreciation charge (Note): FERX () -
— property, plant and equipment — W% - W REE 262 126
— right-of-use assets —EREEE 721 2,721
Marketing and business development I R RS R R s (P T)
expenses (Note) 8,467 -
Note: These expenses are included in “administrative and other operating expenses” in Misk . ZERIFTAGE B REMEEKERZ

[T REMEER] o

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
both year/period, except for one subsidiary of the Group which
is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
effective from the year of assessment 2018/2019. The first
HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at
8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

12.

Fr S ®iB

BEBMNER DIBEFANHRNEER B R
B0l 5T FE SR A A2 16.5% B BT 1E
B EAREERN— KB A RIBRIN
ZARABEZZE— N2 NBRBF
ERAMZMBHFNESTHREHE T 2
REWRER - ZM B2 5 &% 2,000,000
W T 2 FE AR 5 i ) 12 8.25 % it R AR A -
HERFE R s F RI1Z 16.5% T R4 FL -

For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE_ET-_NMF BHE_T_=F%
=A=+-—H =RA=+—H
“HEE IETREA
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVERTiTE — BB RS
— Current year —ARFE 4,185 -
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

Reconciliation between income tax expense and profit/(loss) before
income tax at consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

12.

P& ik < ()

HeBRalkEtEERaRAMSHRA
XERRPIERANE R, (BR) 2 MiRE

comprehensive income at applicable tax rate is as follows: AMEEL 2HEAT :
For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-B-_RFE BE_T_=%
=A=+-—AH =A=+—H
IEFE Itt+AEA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER T
Profit/(loss) before income tax BrET S H AE F, (E518) 7,577 (125,702)
Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits BREBNEHE16.5%TH
Tax rate of 16.5% IR 1,250 (20,741)
Tax effect on application of two-tiered FERAFS TR RS 2 RIS 2
profit tax regime (165) (165)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARTR M 2 HIE & (180) =
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses DRI 2 2 BT o & 813 2,020
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIIAEE 2 R 2 4,249 20,879
Utilisation of tax loss previously not B SRR ERTIEE R
recognised (1,782) (1,993)
Income tax expense FRSHiF 4,185 -

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$154,983,000 (31
March 2023: HK$141,122,000), as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do

not expire under current tax legislation.

The Group had no significant unprovided deferred tax assets or
liabilities during the year/period and at the end of the reporting

period.

DIVIDENDS

13.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the period

ended 31 March 2023.

R-_ZE-_WNE=ZA=+—H R EH
M iR REEBBRERTAEEER
Tty A AT A DA K SH 5 18 - AN SR B I 4
BLERFTHIEE 1 154,983,000 T (= F
—=F=ZA=+—H:141,122,000%T)
HRELERIBEE - REBERATE W
B R 18 TR o

REN/BARRBERR  AEEL

BEEARARKMELBHBZELERHBAEE
HAfE-

BE
ARAREETRBRNHE_B_MF
A=t BLFERBE-T-=F
ZA=+—ALSEZEFRE
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e TS ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the
year ended 31 March 2024 and the period ended 31 March 2023 is
based on the following data:

BREFN (EBE)

BT -_WE=ZA=1+—HIFERK
BE-_Z-_=F=A=+—HI-8Bx
ERERRESER,(EEB) JIRE
TERTE

For the For the

year ended fifteen months

31 March ended 31 March

2024 2023

BE-ZB-_RF HBHE_T_=%

=H=+—H =A=+—H

tHEE IE+REA

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THTT

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners ViN/NEIE7 P =IN
of the Company MR F(EBE) 3,392 (125,702)
Weighted average number
of ordinary shares
EERZMEFLHH

For the For the

year ended fifteen months

31 March ended 31 March

2024 2023

BE-B-_RFE BE_T_=F%

=H=+—H =A=+—H

L“HEE LEETAEA

For purpose of basic and diluted ARG ESRER RS

earnings/(loss) per share &aF,/ (E18) 124,416,000 104,333,222

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic loss per share for the period ended 31 March 2023 has been
adjusted for the consolidation of shares on 11 October 2022.

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2023, the computation of
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
options since their assumed exercise would result in a decrease in
loss per share.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the computation of diluted
earning per share does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
options because the exercise price of the options was higher than the
average market price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

15. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE 15. EE A EEEFALIRER
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR EEECZHME
MANAGEMENT
Directors’ emoluments EEMS
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the ENRENTARRARBIESZMe @2
directors of the Company are as follows: T

Salaries, Retirement Equity-
allowances benefits settled
and benefits Discretionary scheme  share based
Fees in kind* bonuses contributions expense Tota
CED . NRELE
. ZHE @WE@ WR%B & N
we | BUEA BERL TEER  ERNEY @t
HKJ000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
THL FHL THL THL THL THL
For the year ended BE-Z-ME
31 March 2024 ZREt-RALFE
Executive Directors JTEE
Lee Nga Ching £y 120 420 - 18 - 558
Shiu Shu Ming? a2 - 540 - 18 - 558
Suen Tin Yan® BAR - 479 - 18 - 497
Chung Kar Ho Carol? EZ 5 70 - - - - 70
Independent Non-Executive ~ BUEHTES
Directors
Chan Man Yi ReE 120 - - - - 120
Sju Kin Wai mEE 120 - - - - 120
Luk Huen Ling? Eek 50 - - - - 50
Cheng Ching Fu’ s 40 - - - - 40
520 1439 - 54 - 2,013
For the fifteen months HE-Z-=£=A=1-H
ended 31 March 2023 Lt+EEA
Executive Directors JTES
Lam Shu Chung' TR - 303 - - 487 790
Lee Nga Ching £y 225 525 - 3 244 1,017
Shiu Shu Ming? T 8 380 - 14 487 889
Suen Tin Yan’ NS - 200 = 7 - 207
Independent Non-Executive ~ BYFHTES
Directors
Chan Man Yi BRaE 150 - = = - 150
Tang Chung Wai* Hr(E 136 = = = = 136
Siu Kin Wai HiEE 150 - - - - 150
Luk Huen Ling? e 14 - - - - 14
683 1,408 - 44 1,218 3,353
1 Resigned on 19 August 2022. g » ——FNATNBEIME-
2 Appointed on 10 June 2022 as a non-executive Director and redesignated to an 2 i —FANATEEREZEERFNTES
executive Director on 5 July 2022. & L ARAATHRITES -
3 Appointed on 18 November 2022 and resigned on 31 March 2024. 3 » —F+—AT/\BEZERR=-F
—ME=A=+—HEE-
4 Resigned on 17 February 2023. 4 » =FZA+tEHEE-
5 Appointed on 17 February 2023 and retired on 31 August 2023. g R-ZE_=F_A+tABZAERR=F
—=FNA=t—HEEFE-
e Appointed on 17 May 2023 and retired on 31 August 2023. ® R-BE_=ZFRAA+LtBEZIRR_-Z
—=FN\A=1+—HEE-
7 Appointed on 30 November 2023. 7 RZE_=F+—A=1+HBEZE-
w Being “salaries, allowances and benefits in kind” paid or payable to executive S AREEARAATRAKBAR 2 EBHEE sk
directors in connection with the management of affairs of the Company and its AR TESZ (e  RBEEYER] -
subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

15. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March
2024 and the period ended 31 March 2024.

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and the period ended
31 March 2024, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

Emoluments of five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included three (period ended 31 March 2023:
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(period ended 31 March 2023: two) individuals during the year are

15.EF - ABBEHFALIRER
EEECHME (B&)

EEME (8

BE_ZTZ-_NFE=A=+t—HILEEK
BHE_ZT_ME=A=+—H 5B
MEEERELREREAANE 2L
B o

BE_ZNWF=A=+—HULFER
BE_T_HWE=A=t+—RHILHH "
AEEYVEAEETINME  AFER
FMARERIMAREE R 2 BB KA
RBERAE

EEBREHFATZHE

AEEBFARLERSHFAL BE=%
(BE-ZFT-_=F=-A=t+—HIHH:
ZR)EF EMESCRRELA LD
FRARNESHME (BE-_ZT_=F=
A=1+—B1LHHE: m&) AL zMEan

as follows: I
For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-—T-—mE BHE_T—_=F
=A=+—H =A=+—H
“HFEE IE+R@EA
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET

Salaries, commission, allowances and e Ae FEMNEYWEAF

benefits in kind 954 1,015
Equity-settled share based expense VAR HE 45 8 DARR (0 A EFE R RS2 - 487
Retirement benefits scheme contributions & k4@ Kl 5t 21 7% 36 36
9290 1,538
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

15. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Emoluments of five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of these remaining two (period ended 31 March
2023: two) highest paid individuals fell within the following bands:

15. EE - ABBREHFALTRER

EEEzME (&)

EEBREHFALTZHE (F)
BRTIME(BE_T-_=F=A=+—H
EHAM : MR REHALZBMEN F A
THEE

Number of individuals

EE®E
For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-2-MF @HE_T_=%
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
L“HFEE IE+RM@EA
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 = % 1,000,0007%8 7T 2 2

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and the period ended 31
March 2023, no emolument was paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

Emoluments of senior management

Senior management of the Group included one (period ended 31
March 2023: one) individual whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments paid or payable to senior
management fell within the following bands:

BE_T_NF=A=1+—HLFER
BE_T_=—F=-A=1t—HIHHE K
SEYERAAIERSFALTIAME
AT EREMATIERMAREE R Z
HRE A DBERAR(E
BREEENE
AEEZERERERE—& (BEC
T_=F=-A=t+—HIHE: —B)A
T EMEERBRER LS - B3k
ENEREEEOMEN FIATEHE

Number of individuals

EE®E
For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-Z-_WF BE_ZT-=%F
=A=+-—AH =A=+—H
IEFEE IE+AaEA
Below HK$ 1,000,000 4> 1,000,000 7 7T 1 1
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. ¥ - BBERRE

Leasehold ~ Computer Office Furniture Motor Right-of-
improvements  equipment  equipment  and fixtures vehicles use assets Total
RENREE BERE BOERE  HBAREE RE  RRAREEE At
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TAL TAL TERL TERL TR
At 1 January 2022 R=B-Z%-5-8
Cost KA 1,740 5211 793 1,800 3 6,205 16,210
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (1,740) (5.211) (193) (1,800) (371) (1,574) (11,489)
Net carrying amount FHE - - S S - 41 41
For the fifteen months ended HE-R-ZEZf
31 March 2023 =t-HLEtEER
Opening net carying amount BOREFE - - - - - 471 471
Addition HE = 310 = 121 200 1,321 1,952
Derecognition BIERR - - - - - (2,360) (2,360)
Depreciation ik - 90) - (19) (17) m) 2,847)
Closing net carrying amount AREEFE - 20 - 102 183 9% 1,466
At31 March 2023 it Sty
Er=F
Cost B 1,740 5,521 7193 1,921 571 1,321 11,867
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (1,740) (5,301) (793) (1,819) (389) (360) (10,401)
Net carrying amount RHAE - 20 - 102 183 91 1,466
For the year ended HE-S-mE=R
31 March 2024 Zt-BLEE
Opening net carrying amount ANREFE - 20 - 102 183 961 1,466
Depreciation & - (155) - (40) (67) (121) (983)
Closing net carrying amount AREEFE - 65 - 62 116 240 483
At 31 March 2024 R-R-ME=R
=t+-A
Cost B 1,740 5,521 193 1,921 5N 1321 11,867
Accumulated depreciation ZithiE (1,740) (5,456) (793) (1,859) (455) (1,081) (11,384)
Net carrying amount RHAE - 65 - 62 116 240 483
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17.

18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRk MR

(Continued)

The analysis of the net carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class

of underlying asset is as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

16. 13 - #BRRRAE (F)

FEA T -

HHEBEERRNE D < ERREEERA

Lease contract

HEEHD

HK$'000

FHET

As at 1 January 2022 R-E-_—F—H—H8 4,721
Addition NE 1,321
Derecognition RIETER (2,360)
Depreciation e (2,721)

As at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 RZE_=F=A=+—AHK

—E-=FpA—H 9261
Depreciation e (721)
As at 31 March 2024 RZEZWEFE=A=+—H 240
For the For the

year ended fifteen months

31 March ended 31 March

2024 2023

BE-Z-F HE-T=-—-F

=H=+—H =A=+—H

LFE IE+AEA

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Interest on lease liabilities (note 10) HESERBE (H:E10) 23 76

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis of lease
liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from leases that are
not yet commenced are set out in notes 26 and 36.3 respectively.

OTHER ASSETS

The balances represent statutory and other deposits which are
placed with various exchanges and clearing houses at the end of the
reporting period. These balances do not bear interest.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets represent trading rights on the Stock Exchange. The
cost of intangible assets is HK$3,680,000 and the said amount had
been fully amortised in prior years.

17.

18.

HEZHEE R4 HAEAEDHA
DT REARIBZHAEELANRKR S
B RIS R M 26 % 36.3

HthEE
REEHK  HEEREFRTRR S

P EEROEEREMES - ZFR
ERRE -

BEE
A B R FTR SE  WIAERK

7R /53,680,000 75 7T 1 _F it 4 58 2 FE LA B
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

19. BWE 5 KA

At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-ZB-F i —
=A=+-—H —F=T—x
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B FET FHET
Trade receivables arising from the BHfRmERELRE
business of margin financing and EIGFTE £ 2 B
brokerage services: B 5538
— Cash clients —BERP (a),(b),(d) 4,540 4,241
— Margin finance loans —HHERMEER (a),(d) 46,090 44,691
— Clearing house —4EEFT (a),(b),(d) 108 480
Trade receivables arising from the B8 8 &L E IR % 75
business of underwriting and FIEE 2 RWE S
placement services SKIE (0),(d) 12,537 1,001
Trade receivables arising from the BEEBERBERA
business of asset management EAZEWE S8
services (0),(d) 356 =
Trade receivables, gross JEWE ZFIE - 2% 63,631 50,413
Less: provision on trade receivables & : fEUK & 5 F I8 B & (0),(d) (51,389) (31,697)
Trade receivables, net JEUE ZF A - FEE 12,242 18,716

Notes:

B EE

(@) FHEERTFEERAZRIEERAKE (—

(a)

These balances are required to be settled on the settlement dates of their
respective transactions (normally one or two business days after the respective
trade dates). The trade receivables from cash clients bear interest at commercial
rates (normally at HK$ Prime Rate plus a spread), and are secured by clients’
pledged securities, and repayable on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed,
as in the opinion of the directors of the Company, this analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of business of securities margin financing.
As at 31 March 2024, total market value of securities pledged as collaterals in
respect of the margin finance loans were approximately HK$282,000 (31 March
2023: HK$9,268,000). The collaterals held can be repledged and can be sold
at the Group’s discretion to settle any outstanding amounts due from margin
clients. The amount of credit facilities granted to them is determined based on a
discount on the market value of securities accepted by the Group. Any excess in
the lending ratio will trigger a margin call which the clients have to make good
the shortfall.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =T - UG =A=+—H It FE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Trade receivables arising from cash clients and clearing house, if any, with
the following ageing analysis, presented based on the trade date which is the

19.

PN & 5 I8 (&)

BeE - ()

() REEHR BREFPREEMELZRE
WE 5HIE (B ER 5 A 8 (AR s iR

revenue recognition date, as at the end of the reporting period: HE) 25| 2REBESTAT :
At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-ZB-m&E P ——s
=R=+—8 ER=r—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Current BNER 4,648 4,721

(a] The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables arising from the business
of underwriting and placement services and asset management services, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice dates:

@  HUTHREEHRIEERSAREEEERRE
EBELEZERKRE SR (NREEEBERR
B REZAHEI 2 RE DT

At 31 March At 31 March

2024 2023

R-Z-OmF RZEZ=F

=A=+-—H =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Within three months =EAA 11,892 -

RTEN FHBIRIERABR AR / F3R 2023/24

169



170

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
el

Uy

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

The following table provide information about the Group’s exposure to credit
risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables arising from cash clients and
clearing house, trade receivables arising from underwriting and placement

services and trade receivables arising from asset management services:

19.

W E S HRE (&)
B ()

d TERBIERAKEERE 2 EERRRERE
ReBFPREEMEKRESFIA  KREBH
REERBEEE S RBARKEEEERE
REEWE S TR AHEEBRNER

Gross Loss
carrying amount allowance
AR E EiERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER F#ExT
As at 31 March 2024 R-B-OF=A=+—-H

Current BNEA 12,069 (46)
Past due not more than 6 months BT Z BN EA 254 (172)

Past due more than 6 months but not more ~ #HiZ @/ E A AT Z B —F
than a year 632 (610)
Past due more than a year BEZ R —F 4,586 (4,582)
17,541 (5.410)
Gross Loss
carrying amount allowance
BEAREE EEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT

As at 31 March 2023 RZZEZ=F=A=+—8H

Current BNEA 589 (17)
Past due not more than 6 months AETZ B NEA 735 (237)

Past due more than 6 months but not more ~ #HIZ@E/NE A ETZ B —F
than a year 1,584 (622)
Past due more than a year BEZBE—F 2,814 (2,347)
5,722 (3,223)
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =T - UG =A=+—H It FE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

Movement of ECLs allowance of trade receivables arising from cash clients
and clearing house, trade receivables arising from placing services and trade
receivable arising from asset management services is as follows:

19. B E 5 FE (&)

Wi

(d)

(&)

(%)

KEREFFPREEMEKRE SR - KB
FLERB R E TR MR B B EEERY
MENE SRR BHREEBRREZEH N

T
For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
HE-ZT-mE BE_Z_=F
=Z=A=+—H EF=EF—=E1lE
LHEE +A@EA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Balance at the beginning of the year/period W& 41, 4 &4 3,223 1,493
Impairment losses recognised, net EERRERIEFE 2,187 1,730
Balance at the end of the year/period RER,/HIAR A 5,410 3,223

Movement of ECLs allowance of trade receivables arising from margin loan

KB REFREREKREZHIRZEHE

receivables is as follows: EEABEZHNT
For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-Z_MF BE_T_=F
=R=+—8H =A=+—Hik
IEFE +H@EA
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Balance at the beginning of the year/period R 4E ¥,/ Ei ¥ 45 £ 28,474 23,748
Impairment losses recognised, net BRI EEEFE 17,505 4,726
Balance at the end of the year/period RER/HIR 45,979 28,474
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

20. EWERKRFE

At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-Z-@WmF MRZTE_=4%F
=ZA=+—AR =H—T—F8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Money lending services B8R
Loan receivables JE W & 3R 241,704 248,099
Interest receivables JE U FI] 8. 136,144 119,932
Total loan and interest receivables, gross  #2fEURE X K& F| 8 - 4258 377,848 368,031
Less: provision on loan and interest B EAE R R A BB E
receivables (181,116) (145,407)
196,732 222,624
Less: Portion due within one year included & : BIEE RS EE 2
under current assets —FRE|E D (182,833) (207,220)
Non-current portion included under non- BIEFEIERENEE 2
current assets FEBNEREL 13,899 15,404

Notes:

The balances of the loan and interest receivables are secured with collateral
or with custodies of credit enhancement by customers as at both period ends,
except for balances of HK$14,873,000 (31 March 2023: HK$18,841,000)
which were not secured by any collaterals and any credit enhancement. Due
to significant deterioration of the financial position, repayment ability and
quality of related collaterals of the Group’s debtors, following the COVID-19
outbreak, social unrest in Hong Kong and the trade war between China and the
United States of America, ECL allowance of HK$181,116,000 (31 March 2023:
HK$145,407,000) was made against the gross amount of loan and interest
receivables as at 31 March 2024.

All loan receivables are interest bearing at effective interest rates ranging from
7.34% to 41.28% (31 March 2023: 7.34% to 41.28%) per annum and with
repayment periods ranging from one year to seven years (31 March 2023: one
year to seven years).
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20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Zﬁﬂ

N

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &%

20.

Analysis of the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs allowance of
loan and interest receivables is as follows:

BWRER

BieE - ()

& PR MI

ZECNF=A=T—HIEFE

% RE (&)

(b) ERERRMNEZEEREEREEBHE
BEEBREGITOT :

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E Rl 1= B B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET FET
Gross carrying amount as at RZT-_—F—HA—Bz
1 January 2022 1B AREE = 326,986 1,417 328,403
New assets originated or purchased B E4SKEHEERHEE - 43,237 - 43,237
Assets repaid BEENEE - (3,609) - (3,609)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 HE_RREBEE=[ER - (366,614) 366,614 =
Gross carrying amount as at R-BE-=4F
31 March 2023 and =ZA=+—HBK
1 April 2023 —E-=mA—B2
1B ARE A = - 368,031 368,031
New assets originated or purchased B E4SEEERFHEE - - 21,241 21,241
Assets disposed or repaid (Note) EHEXEEENEE () - - (11,424) (11,424)
Gross carrying amount as at RZZ-WFE=A
31 March 2024 =+—HZREKAEE = - 377,848 377,848
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2024, loan receivables with gross B 5 E*L —E-WNFE=A=+—HILFE  EHK
amount of HK$6,424,000 and ECL allowance of HK$2,418,000 were TRAEEE 6,424,000 78 T MBS EEEREE
disposed at a discount to third parties for HK$1,860,000, resulting from 2,418,000%755%::& 1,860,000/ T HH & F
a loss on disposal HK$2,146,000 (for fifteen months ended 31 March F=7 EHHEEIE2,146,0008 T (FZE
2023: nil). “E_=F=A=+—HLET+EEA: )
(©) Analysis of ECLs allowance of loan and interest receivables is as follows: (c) EWER LA E Z BHREEREEREGD TN
T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—RER ERR F=RER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FAT FHET FHExT
ECLs allowances as at R=ZT=-_=—F—A—AH2
1 January 2022 ?EHHT‘EEE%TEﬁﬁﬁ% - 883 1,417 2,300
Increase in credit risk sERR 7 - - 143,107 143,107
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 ] %:5%&@?55%5%5& - (883) 883 =
ECLs allowances as at RZZTZ=%=A8
31 March 2023 and =t+—BRZZTZ=F
1 April 2023 mA—BzESEE
%E%% - - 145,407 145,407
Increase in credit risk =ER R 7 - - 38,127 38,127
Assets disposed or repaid B EYE BENEE - - (2,418) (2,418)
ECLs allowances as at R-_ZT-WE=A
31 March 2024 =t+—BzEHEE
BEEE - - 181,116 181,116
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21.

22,

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

21. ENRE  RERHEMBERK
|

At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-ZF-MF R-ZT-=F
=A=+-—A8 ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current assets RBEE

Other receivables H fth pE YR IE 656 119
Prepayments TERT FRIE 1,611 404

Prepaid marketing and business TART & R EBERMAX
development expenses 10,845 -
Rental and other deposits HekHEMES 76 69
Amount due from a director (note 33) el — = =78 (MYsE33) 425 423
13,613 1,015

TRUST BANK BALANCES HELD ON BEHALF OF
CLIENTS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with authorised
institutions to hold clients’ monies in accordance with the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. These clients’” monies are maintained in three trust bank
accounts, bear interest at commercial rate with original maturity
of three months or less. In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the Group has classified the clients’ monies as bank
balances held on behalf of clients in current assets and recognised
the corresponding trade payables (note 24) to the respective clients
and other institutions as current liabilities as it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’” monies. The Group is not allowed to use
the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. RERBEEEY
At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
H-s-—m&E R-B_=F
=A=+-A =A=+—8
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FHET FABT

Cash at bank RITH® () 41,653 5,768

Cash on hand FHERSE 1 1

Cash and bank balances B RIB1T4H 41,654 5,769

Note: BiEE -

(a) During the year, interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits with banks of (@) FAAEEZRITRERFRAFNETE
the Group ranged from Nil to 0.001% (at 31 March 2023: Nil to 0.001%) per 0001%stB(R-_E-_==A=+—H:
annum. ZTF0.001%) °

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. EREFZRE
At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R=-ZB-NF MRZEZ=4%F
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Trade payables arising from the business B B & &5 ¥ FTE S 2
of dealing in securities: FEfE 508 :

— Cash clients —BERF 2,317 6,324

— Margin clients —-HFREP 5,785 3,236

— Clients’ deposits —BPEe 98 100

8,200 9,660

Notes:

(a) The settlement terms of trade payables arising from the business of dealing in
securities are two days after trade date. Trade payables to clients bear variable

interest at commercial rates.

(b) Trade payables included payable to clients and other institutions in respect of the
trust and segregated bank balances received and held for clients in the course of
conducting the regulated activities. However, the Group currently does not have
an enforceable right to offset these payables with the deposits placed.

(@] No ageing analysis in respect of trade payables attributable to dealings in
securities transactions is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, this analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of business of dealing in

securities.

B

() EBEESHFEBHELZERNESIFRAZAR
HRARXZARMAE - BRNEF & Z7A
TEBEEMERZZEHBFE

(b) HELETEREXRBHBESTRETP R EFF
BZERRBILRITERME  BNBESK
BERERNEE REMEERE - A > A
SERFWEAMFRZ R EHZFEN
FIRZ A SR b TTHE

(@ HBREERR ENEEEFRBHED -
EREEESFRIMELEZENESFIAN
BRi DT I B R EEIMEE  MERKEARH
AT o
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25. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 EtERARHEMENSRE
At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-ZZE-WF R=T=—=%F
= ASRSH e —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TFAT
Accruals ExrEH 10,511 2,668
Other payables o E < FRIE 1,268 223
Amount due to a director (note 33) JEN —RZEEFHIA (M15E33) 1,730 200
13,509 3,091

26. LEASES 26. HE

The Group leases office premises. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The present value of future lease payments of the Group’s leases are

AEERERLEDE HEANAET

BBl HR - HE K

BE &R’ RGN
e AN AE AT 2256 -
e B e

R AE R B2
K fgtt - HMEHZEIL
HEHEEETSRE

AREBEBEE 2 RKBERBRED T

analysed as: T:
At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-ZE-ME RZTE_=F
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Current BN EA 233 732
Non-current FEBNHA - 233
233 965
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

26. LEASES (Continued) 26. HE (&)
Movement of the Group’s leases liabilities is analysed as follows: REBEHEAGEHIMEOT
HK$'000
FHET
As at 1 January 2022 RN-ZE-_—_F—H—H 4,744
Addition NE 1,321
Derecognition R IETER (2,390)
Interest expenses MEFRX 76
Lease payments FHEE (2,786)
As at 31 March 2023 and RZE-_=F=A=+—8xk
1 April 2023 —E_=FMA—H 965
Interest expenses MEFZ 23
Lease payments e A (755)
As at 31 March 2024 RZTE-_MF=A=+—H 233
The future lease payments of the Group’s leases were scheduled to AEEBE 2 R RBEFRIBEERBAT ¢
repay as follows:
Minimum
lease payments Interest Present value
REHERE FIE BRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHETT T
As at 31 March 2024 R-B-WF
=A=+—H
Not later than one year —FR 234 (1) 233
As at 31 March 2023 R-B-=%F
=A=+-—H
Not later than one year —FR 754 (22) 732
Later than one year and not later ~—F & {ERF K
than two years 234 (1) 233
988 (23) 965
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27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The movement of deferred tax assets are as follows:

27. EERIEBEEE

EXERBEEEBNT ¢

Provision

for receivables

W RERE

HK$'000

FHET

As at 1 January 2022 R-E-_—_F—HF—H 334

Charge for the period (note 12) BRAR S (FFsE12) -
As at 31 March 2023 and RZBEZ=F=A=+—H8BXK

1 April 2023 —E-=FpmA—H 334

Charge for the year (note 12) FRRX (FEE12) -

As at 31 March 2024 RZTE_MF=A=+—H 334
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. A

At 31 March 2024
R-E-ME=A=1+-H

e MRk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

At 31 March 2023
R-Z-=#=R=+—H

Number HK$ Number HK$
#H BT 8 BT
Authorised share capital ZEERA
At the beginning of the year/period REY/ B 4,000,000,000 200,000,000 20,000,000,000 200,000,000
Share consolidation (Note a) BRiAE 5 (HsEa) - - (16,000,000,000) =
At the end of the year/period RER/BR 4,000,000,000 200,000,000  4,000,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid EZTREE
At beginning of the year/period REH /841 124,416,000 6,220,800 432,000,000 4,320,000
New shares issued (HK$0.01 each) (Note b) ~ Z57# 7 (FREE
0.01%57) (FizEb) - 86,400,000 864,000
New shares issued (HK$0.05 each) (Note ©) 47 #1 A% 7 (B EE
0.0557T) (FizEc) - 20,736,000 1,036,300
Share consolidation (Note a) BiAE 5 (HzEa) - (414,720,000) =
At the end of the year/period WER/BXK 124,416,000 6,220,800 124,416,000 6,220,800

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets and in all other respects.

Note a:

Note b:

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed on 7 October 2022, the Company
implemented the share consolidation whereby every five issued and unissued
ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company were consolidated into one consolidated ordinary share of par value
of HK$0.05 each of the Company effective on 11 October 2022.

On 13 May 2022, the Company entered into shares subscription agreements
with Instant Idea Limited and Wealthbase Global Limited for the subscription
of 86,400,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of nominal value of
HK$0.01 each (“Subscription Share(s)”) at a subscription price of HK$0.08
per Subscription Share (“Shares Subscription”).

The Shares Subscription completed on 27 May 2022 with net proceeds of
approximately HK$6,612,000 raised.

BB A AGRUDRAEERZKS -
Y EERARRAREG LABR—RETT
TR FIAEBBRRARRFBREEM
EREZBEMTEMLZRS -

Fizka :

DR

BERZZE_=F+A+tHBBANTER
B ARREITRME M - KL - AAA]
BATFERARSREE0.01 BT ZEET
RARBATERAREHAERRR —RERE
BB TZAaHEAR BT -2—F
+A+—BREK-

R-Z-_—FHA+=H ' KAQF)HInstant
Idea Limited & & Lt IR Bk A IR A Al 7] 32 AR 15
REEE - LARIEZA AR 86,400,000 fE &A%
EE0.01 B LK LB ([REe ) -
BIRBIERD 2 REER0.085 T (R
R -

BORRBER—_E_—_FRA-t+tHEHR
BX - Fr & & K FT1S 7RI )$ %8 R 476,612,000
TT ©
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note c:  On 1 November 2022, the Company entered into the placing agreement with
Gransing Securities Co., Limited (“Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the
Company agreed to place through the Placing Agent up to a maximum of
20,736,000 placing shares (“Placing Shares”) to not less than six placees
at the placing price of HK$0.22 per Placing Share on a best effort basis
("Placing”).

The Placing completed on 16 November 2022 with net proceeds of
approximately HK$4,250,000 raised.

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme"”) by an ordinary resolution duly passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 19 December 2013 for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date. At 31 March 2024 and 2023,
the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Scheme was 3,192,000
representing 2.6% of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of
all options to be granted under the share option scheme must not,
in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) provided
that options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the share
option scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the Scheme Mandate Limit. The Company may seek approval by its
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the Scheme Mandate
Limit. However, the total number of shares which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company under the limit as refreshed must not exceed 10% of the
total number of ordinary shares in issue as at the date of passing the
relevant resolution to refresh such limit.
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Eligible persons under the Share Option Scheme include any
employee (whether full-time or part-time employee, including
any director) of the Company and any of its subsidiaries and any
account executive of the Group, and any person or entity acting in
their capacities as advisers or consultants that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option Scheme
may be accepted within a period of 21 days from the date of which
the option is granted, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 by the grantee.

The subscription price for the shares subject to the options will be
a price determined by the Board and shall be the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of grant of the options, which must be
a trading date; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

On 23 June 2022, options comprising 21,144,000 shares were
granted under the Share Option Scheme. All of the share options
were fully vested on the respective date of grant.

29. LR AERNIRRS ()

BREFIBETNAEBALERAR
AINEEMAMBARNENES (TRE
BRBES  RRIAES) RAKHE
EAEPEIEURABERKEADAF D
AN SR B ER (AT 55 - PSS SR EL i i X
EOEAALRERE -

REBRESSRIBREZZONA
RHBEEE REE21 BEER - K&
BAXNZERBIETETAEMR -

BREMSMENORBESSHES
SEEZER XARTIZERE )
BOEBRMERRERMIINE LB
hEER (ZBARXSRH) ZWTHE :
(i B B X P8 B ME RN EE
REBREERAAERS A2 FHK
B+ (i) RO EE

RZE_—_FNA=-+=Z=H ' # R
21,144,000 i B f7 #Y i Az # B AR 1% 8 Ak
BERTEIED - AEERERS KL B
HMEEHERE -
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The following table shows the movement of the outstanding number
of the share option during the period ended 31 March 2023:

At Granted
beginning  during the
of period period
REYN  HRRE

29. AR A EBRNNRR S ()

TRENBE—_FT_=F=A=+—H
IEEARARITEBRERE 2 8

Exercised Lapsed Adjusted
during the  during the  during the Atend
period period period of period
Brmg Hri¥  Hr#RE RER

(Note)

(FaE)

Executive directors HITES

- (5,184,000) = =
= - (2,073,600) 518,400
= - (4,147,200) 1,036,800

- (5,184,000) (6,220,800) 1,555,200

= - (6,547,200) 1,636,800

—Lam Shu Chung —PREHA - 5,184,000
— Lee Nga Ching = 4] - 2,592,000
— Shiu Shu Ming — R - 5,184,000
Subtotal e - 12,960,000
Employees &S - 8,184,000
Total Bt — 21,144,000

- (5,184,000) (12,768,000) 3,192,000

Note: The exercise price and the number of the outstanding share options granted
under Share Option Scheme have been adjusted for the Share Consolidation and
the Change in Board Lot Size on 11 October 2022.

There was no movement of outstanding number of the share option
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

All of the Company’s share options are exercisable as at 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2023. The weighted-average remaining
contractual life of the options outstanding at the end of reporting
period is 8.23 years. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would result in the issue of 3,192,000 additional shares of
the Company and additional share capital and share premium of
approximately HK$159,600 and HK$1,340,640 (before issuance
expense), respectively.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted was estimated as at the
respective date of grant, using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.
The following key inputs were used in the valuations:

Risk-free rate 3.08%
Contractual life 10 years
Expected volatility 171.31%
Dividend yield 0%
Number of options 21,144,000

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$1,987,000 for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2023 in relation to share options
granted by the Company (2024: nil).

RESERVES

Group

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Notes:

(a) Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital of Capital Business International Limited acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the
Company and the nominal value of share capital of the Company issued in
exchange thereof.

(b) Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, share premium of the
Company is distributable to the owners of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

29.

30.

RGO RERNNYRI S (F)

ERGBERENAFEDIRE KL B
ER_—EREEEEANGEL - [E

FrAEZH ASBEBNAT :

3 e ) X 3.08%
& #4F 5 104
T8 HA R I8 171.31%
SN ES 0%
B EE B 21,144,000

REBREBEE-_TE-_=F=A=+—H
T AREAFAR TR HHERERER
[ 1,987,000 8T (ZE_HF &) o

&
EX

AEEGAED S EKRDRENRE
REHOHRIN G EEREDHEK

B EE -

@ AEEZEHRFEEEREREEHELAATL
T i 3 17 2 & B = 48 I i Capital Business
International Limited Z AR ZRTEI B B 7R A R 354 T
ERBZRAEEME 22 ZER -

(b) REFSHEZQEE  MARRKNERE
BEOIKKEERRIDAENNAEEKB
RPBEEIBEY - AR BARBRDEE
DIRFARRAHERE
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30. RESERVES (Continued) 30.

Company

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of

it ()

RATH

BERRRBERERNRED/POE

equity between the beginning and the end of the year/period are set FRBRZZEHFBEHINGT -
out below:
Share
Share option Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RGEE BRERKE RitEE #gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHET FHT
At 1 January 2022 MR-ZEZZF—H—H 138,016 - (37,832) 100,184
Loss and total comprehensive BrEBEBEREERATAE
expense for the period - - (2,834) (2,834)
Issue of new shares FATEIR D 9,573 = = 9,573
Shares issue cost RinE17& R (610) = = (610)
Recognition of share option expenses i 52 i A% A B 52 - 1,987 - 1,987
Share options lapsed B R AR = (487) 487 -
At 31 March 2023 and R-E-=%
1 April 2023 =A=t+—-HK
—E_=-FNA—H 146,979 1,500 (40,179) 108,300
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMNREENRESE
income for the year - - 2,566 2,566
At 31 March 2024 R-B-R#F
=A=+—H 146,979 1,500 (37,613) 110,866
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 31. XA TEEMRREK
COMPANY
At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-ZE-ME RZEZ=%F
=ZA=+-—H =A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZEE - =
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables — F8 15 738 & H b & Uk
HIE 671 609
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE Uk B B8 2 ) 508 127,067 125,426
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEED 121 2,006
127,859 128,041
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FE T & PR B B At & A~
RIE 7,904 1,825
Amount due to a subsidiary & 1t — el Bf /88 1 B RKIE 2,868 11,695
10,772 13,520
Net current assets REBEEFE 117,087 114,521
Total assets less current HEERRBERE
liabilities 117,087 114,521
Net assets EEFHE 117,087 114,521
EQUITY Em
Share capital fi& 7R 28 6,221 6,221
Reserves fFE 30 110,866 108,300
Total equity ERETE 117,087 114,521
On behalf of the Board FERE
Cao Weimin Shiu Shu Ming
= e
Director Director
EZ EE
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32. RBARIZKRE

RZE-_WNF=A=+—HER=-ZZT==
FZA=+—BHFEMBEIRFBUOT:

32. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024 and 31
March 2023 are as follows:

Place of Principal
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of issued capital activities and
Name operation issued capital held by the Company place of operations
AL/ ARAfREL
£ EXuE BRTRAZHE BRTRARD IERBREXNY
At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023 At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
R-2-RE R-B-ZH R-B-QRE RZBZZ%
ZR=+-H =R=1-H ZR=1-H =R=1-H
Directly Indirectly ~ Directly  Indirectly
E# (3 BE% k3
Capital Business International ~ The British Virgin -~ Ordinary shares of ~ Ordinary shares of 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Limited Islands/ US$1,000 US$1,000
Hong Kong
Capital Business Intemational  XBREL#HE/ 1,000% T2 1000%7T2 REER
Limited & EER LaR
Orient Securities Holdings Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares of ~ Ordinary shares of - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong HK$18,832 HK$18,832
RAENESERERAT BE/BR 18,832/ 712 18832872 RERR
EER Eak
Orient Securities Limited Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares of ~ Ordinary shares of - 100 - 100 Provision of brokerage
Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 HK$20,000,000 service, undenwriting
and placing service and
securities and initial public
offering margin financing
service
RHENESERAT BE/ Bk 20,000,000 20,000,000 REALRS BHREE
LER ZEBR REURESRERAR
REARRERK
Orient Securities Finance Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares of ~ Ordinary shares of - 100 - 100 Provision of money lending
Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 service
RN ENHHEARAT BE/BR 10,0007 10,0007 REBERE
EER LERR
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In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere
in these consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following balances with directors and material transactions with the

directors during the year/period:

BEALXRS

RAMBERREMM T I ZR
SRR REBFRN/ HRNERES
BUATHBREARS

»
w
8

SZ
7/

At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-ZZ-@WmF MRZEZ=4F
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iE=s FET FHET
Directors £F
Lee Nga Ching — amount due from  Z=7 & — JE Y78 (0 425 423
Shiu Shu Ming — amount due to ERAORR — et RE (d) 1,730 200
For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-Z-_NF BE_ZT_=F
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
IEFE IEt+HM@EA
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHT
Directors =
Lam Shu Chung N IRV
— Brokerage commission income — Bl LA BA
received (a) - 14
Shiu Shu Ming EEGLE
— Purchase of a motor vehicle —BE )RR (b) - 200
Lee Nga Ching FHE
— Interest income —FE U A (0 60 17

Notes:

(@) The commission income was calculated at staff rates which ranged from 0.025%
t0 0.1% (subject to minimum charge of HK$100).

(b) The price is determined with reference to market transactions.

(0 The amount is unsecured, carrying interest at 17.0% and repayable in three

years.

(d) The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

B EE -

(@ AERATIZETER0025%E0.1%E
(HIEWKE A 100BTT) °

(b) FHEERDEZEMSRHREE -

@  BERELAEER  RAE17.0%E8REA
R=FRNEE -

d) EEFREREER RERAREREE -
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. BEA XX 5 (&)

Compensation of key management personnel FTEEBEABZHE
For the For the
year ended fifteen months
31 March ended 31 March
2024 2023
BE-ZB-RE HE_T-=F
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
LHEE IE+RM@EA
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET T
Short-term employee benefits 5 E SR A 2,628 3,983
Post employment benefits BEER 1B R A 72 133
Equity-settled share based expense VARG 45 8 DARR () A EFER R - 1,705
2,700 5,821

34. CREDIT FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the Group had a bank
overdraft facility with a bank to the extent of HK$20,000,000.
Interest is charged at prime lending rate per annum as quoted by the
bank. The bank overdraft facility is subject to a repayable on demand
clause.

As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the banking facilities
were guaranteed by a corporate guarantee to the extent of
HK$20,000,000 executed by the Company.
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e
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
as recognised at the reporting dates are categorised as follows. See
note 4.9 to the consolidated financial statements for explanations
about how the category of financial instruments affects their
subsequent measurement.

35. BERIE T cERMEERERE
S

REBRBEANBRCEMEERS
EREESELNT EREeMmIAZRE
BnREEEBERIEZRE  BRE
Bk izE 4.9

At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-B-NF R-ZF_=FF
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Financial assets TRMEE
Financial assets measured at BB EA A EZ
amortised cost THEE
— Other assets —HEMEE 405 430
— Trade receivables —ERE 5 5IR 12,242 18,716
— Loan and interest receivables —ERERKEFE 196,732 222,624
— Other receivables — E i fE Y SRIE 1,157 542
— Trust bank balances held on behalf —REFFEZEERITHERS
of clients 8,197 8,903
— Cash and cash equivalents —RekBeFEY 41,654 5,769
260,387 256,984
Financial liabilities EA =R
Financial liabilities measured at B K22
amortised costs THEE
— Trade payables —JENE 5 IE 8,200 9,660
— Accruals and other payables —FEET B R & A FE < 5RIE 13,509 3,091
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 233 965
21,942 13,716
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. ©RIAREEBEEREE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include other assets, loan
and interest receivables, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables and lease liabilities. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these risk
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

36.1 Market risk

(a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk of losses due to adverse
changes in foreign exchange rates mainly relating to
bank deposits denominated in foreign currency. The
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arises. The policies to manage
foreign currency risk have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to be effective.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. SRIEMEEEERBEK (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

36.1 Market risk (Continued) 36.1 ™5 E M (&)

s B ()

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a)

It is the Group’s policy for each subsidiary to transact
business in local currencies as far as possible to minimise
currency risk. Most of the Group’s principal business are
conducted and recorded in HK$, the functional currency
of the companies now comprising the Group, with
certain bank deposits mainly denominated in United
States Dollars (“US$”) and Renminbi (“"RMB"). As HK$ is
pegged to US$, there is no significant exposure expected
on US$ transactions and balances. For presentation
purpose, the following tables summarise the Group’s
financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the entities to
which they relate, as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2023.

AEERSHE R AHER 2
BER BB AIRENE B &
EEG AR EBRBRER
N REB I REHEBER
AT (REEREET AR
2 EEE) EIT R - &
FRITHEREZUET ([E
T RARE(TARYE]D 5
B - ARETEETTHME - T8
HIETLEZR 5 ks &
BrEEHEARR -2
s TREBHETRZZ
—WNFEZA=FT—HBE=-Z
—=F=RA=+—HAKXER
RIEREEENINEEER
BEGENSREEMARE -

Expressed in HK$"000

BAF & olm
RMB us$
AR =e
As at 31 March 2024 R-ZES_-_mE
=R=+-—H
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 1 1
As at 31 March 2023 R-—ZE_-=
=A=+-—H
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEY 1 1
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

36.1 Market risk (Continued)

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

36. TRIAMEEBBERBEK (8)

36.1 ™5 E M (&)

The following tables indicate the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit or loss for the period and equity in
response to reasonably possible changes in other foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure as at the reporting date. As US$ is pegged to
HK$, the Group does not expect any significant changes
in US$/HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity analysis in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
denominated in US$ is disclosed as in the opinion of
the directors, such sensitivity analysis does not give
additional value in view of insignificant change in the

US$/HK$ exchange rates as at the reporting date.

(@)

S E R ()

TRINERBEBPAEE AT
BERREMR 2 EINEE R HIRE
IR R AT - AREHAEGE N
R 2 AT E) - MINETTEE T
B AREERBET B TEX
TEEEMNERES HRESFR
R EREREBHET BTE
KNEHMTRE  AEBAET
AHENEREERARRRESNT
WESREEIMEE - BORA R
BHREDN -

Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) in Increase/(Decrease)

in foreign exchange rates loss/profit for the period/year in equity

HEER Bh/ ERER/ B Rz

L#/(TH) Bm/(BD) Bm/(BD)
At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
RZB-@E R-T-=F R-Bo@E  R-T-o=F RSBC@E RCTCZF
ZAZ+-B =A=+-H ZA=t-R =A=t-B ZBZt+-B Z=A=t-H
% % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% % TR TR THER TR
RVB ARE 5 5 - - - -

Decrease in the above foreign exchange rates at each
reporting date would have the equal but opposite effect
to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other
variables were held constant.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by assuming
that the changes in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the reporting date and that all other variables were
held constant.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

36.1 Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(b)

36. TRIEEERE

=R BUR ()

36.1 ™5 E M (&)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a) SEREE (B
The stated changes represent management’s assessment Ffr FA Eﬂ 2B HIEERER
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates BEET—EFEHRERHILE
over the period until the next annual reporting date. 2 F'EJ $Y HINE P& 2= 7] g
In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is Wz EEZEEL 25T -
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency risk as ERERA BREDNIL
the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not TRERKER 2N AR -
reflect the exposure during the period. J"?'_ I 7S AR 2 @ B
B I Bt HA 7 @B o
Interest rate risk (b) FIEEE
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk primarily AEBFZZRABRIZZHA
through the impact of interest rate changes on bank R B2RITER  FREK
balances, margin and cash client receivables and trade IR & B R FE U R M B
payables carrying interests at variable rates. BOFE L NEE G EM
A T 2 [ B o
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the T2k B & A R 1% KOR
profit or loss for the year/period to a change in interest 1% (ZE=Z=F=H=+—
rates of +1% and -1% (31 March 2023: +1% and B 121% &R 1%) B - i/
-1%). The calculations are based on the Group’s bank HIANERENHRE - fTE =
balances, margin and cash client receivables held at each AEBEEESEREB Hﬂ?ﬁv
reporting date. All other variables are held constant. ZRITHERR FFREBREER
In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is E’]FE%Z?AI@%%‘V% FrAE EH A
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the SERFETE -BEERRS
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not &F&FQ ST RER KR E A
reflect the exposure during the period. ZHNERE - REARE BN
Z BB T BE R R
At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R=-T-MF R-ZBE_=F
=A=+-—H =Z=A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
If interest rates were 1% ANEEIN%
(31 March 2023: 1%) higher (ZE==%=H
=t—H:1%)
Decrease in profit/(loss) for the FRERRRN, (EE)
year/period > (502) 334
If interest rates were 1% B MER A 1%
(31 March 2023: 1%) lower (ZB=—=%= H
=+—H:1%)
Increase in profit/(loss) for the year/ A,/ HAR ﬁi'/(l’éﬂ@
period N (502) 334
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. tRIEMREEBERBEK (8)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

36.2 Credit risk 36.2 =EREM

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to
the Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables due from clients and clearing house and loan
receivables from clients. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an
on-going basis.

In respect of trade receivables due from clients, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all clients including cash
and margin clients. Cash clients are required to place deposits
as prescribed by the Group’s credit policy before execution of
any purchase transaction. Receivables due from cash clients
are due within the settlement period commonly adopted by
the relevant market convention, which is usually within two
days from the trade date. Because of the prescribed deposit
requirements and the short settlement period involved,
credit risk arising from the trade receivables due from cash
clients is considered small. The Group normally obtains liquid
securities and/or cash deposits as collateral for providing
margin financing to its clients. Margin finance loans due from
margin clients are repayable on demand. Market conditions
and adequacy of securities collateral and margin deposits of
each margin account are monitored by management on a
daily basis. Margin calls and forced liquidation are made where
necessary.

In respect of trade receivables due from clearing house, credit
risk is considered low as the Group normally enters into
transactions with clearing house which are registered with
regulatory bodies and with sound reputation in the industry.
In respect of trade receivables due from corporate clients
associated with placing services, the credit risk is considered
low as the credit risk of these clients are clearly monitored and
there are no significant default in the past.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. SRIEMEEEERBEK (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

36.2 Credit risk (Continued) 36.2 =EEM (&)

In respect of loan and interest receivables from clients, the
objective of the Group’s measures to manage credit risk is to
control potential exposure to recoverability problem. It is the
Group’s policy that all clients who wish to obtain loans from
the Group are subject to management review. Receivables
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis, management
makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of loans, loans receivables
based on historical payment records, the length of the overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and any other
qualitative factors and ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each client rather than the
industry or country in which the clients operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the
Group has significant exposure to individual clients. As at 31
March 2024, 7% (31 March 2023: 7%) and 27% (31 March
2023: 25%) of the total trade and loan receivables due from
clients were from the Group’s largest client and the five largest
clients.

Further quantitative data in respect of the collaterals and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
loan receivables are disclosed in notes 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Bank balances are placed in various authorised institutions and
the directors of the Company consider the credit risk for such
is minimal.

Impairment and provisioning policies
The Group's policy requires the review of individual

outstanding amounts at least monthly or more regularly
depending on individual circumstances or market condition.

HREREFP2ERRMEME &
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. TR EEEERBER (E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

36.2 Credit risk (Continued) 36.2 =EREM (&)

Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 are based on
an expected credit loss model. The Group applies simplified
approach to measure ECLs on trade receivables from cash
clients and clearing house and trade receivables arising
from the business of placing services; and general approach
to measure ECLs on trade receivables from margin loans
receivables, loans and interest receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trust bank balances held on behalf of client
and other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost.
Under the simplified approach, the Group measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Under
the general approach, financial assets migrate through the
following three stages based on the change in credit risk since
initial recognition: Stage 1: 12-months ECLs, Stage 2: Lifetime
ECLs — not credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECLs — credit-
impaired.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis
based on the Group’s historical experience and internal credit
risk assessment, including forward-looking information. The
loan and advances use the number of days past due and
loan-to-collateral value or loan-to-credit enhancement value
to determine significant increase in credit risk. Credit risk is
deemed to have increased significantly if there is a significant
deterioration of the above factors at the reporting date relative
to that at the date of initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. SRIEMEEEERBEK (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

36.2 Credit risk (Continued) 36.2 =EEM (&)

Calculation of expected credit losses

The ECLs are assessed by the Group on regular basis. Based
on the aforesaid factors, margin loan receivables and loan and
interest receivables are classified into 3 stages.

ECLs for margin receivables, loan and interest receivables
under stage 1 is calculated on collective basis. Form margin
loan receivables and loan and interest receivables under stage
2 and stage 3, the lifetime ECLs is calculated.

The ECLs of non-standard financing Group has pre-defined
loss rate reference to the default rate for from external rating
agencies.

If there is material decrease in collaterals and credit
enhancement values and the full recovery of the loan is in
doubt, the loan will be classified into stage 3. For the loans
classified as stage 3, the Group may further calculate the
ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the
expected credit loss. Each scenario is associated with different
exposure at default and probability.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

When estimating the ECL on margin loan receivables and loans
and interest receivables, the Group has incorporated forward-
looking economic information through the experienced credit
judgement to reflect the qualitative factors.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to be effective in limiting the Group’s
exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. tRIEMREEBERBEK (8)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

36.3 Liquidity risk 36.3 RBELEAK

Internally generated cash flows is the source of funds to
finance the operations of the Group. The Group’s liquidity
risk management includes making available standby banking
facilities and diversifying the funding sources. The Group
regularly reviews the major funding positions to ensure
adequate financial resources are available to meet their
respective financial obligations.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has available banking and
other financing facilities of approximately HK$20,000,000 (31
March 2023: HK$20,000,000) and nil (31 March 2023: nil)
respectively, which were not utilised (note 34).

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to be effective in managing
liquidity risks.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. SRIEMEEEERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

36.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 363 MBELRAR (&)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the RBERH  AEBEZ2RAGER
reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted cash BOERBRBESREZFEER

flows, is as follows: R

Total

contractual
Carrying undiscounted On demand or Within
amount cash flow  within 1 year 2-5 years

BENE

RER EER
HREE HeRE FR1ER 2E5ER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT FHT
As at 31 March 2024 R-B-RE
=B=t-H
Trade payables ENE H5E 8,200 8,200 8,200 -
Accruals and other payables FEEtE R R E At FE R 5IR 13,509 13,509 13,509 -
Lease liabilities HERE 233 234 234 -
21,082 21,943 21,083 -
As at 31 March 2023 R-BZ=F
=ZA=t—H

Trade payables ERE A 9,660 9,660 9,660 -
Accruals and other payables fEFTE B R A FUR 3,091 3,091 3,091 =
Lease liabilities HEaR 965 988 754 234
13,716 13,739 13,505 234
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

37.

38.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost as disclosed under non-current
assets, current assets, current liabilities and non-current liabilities
respectively, approximate their fair value.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
Continuous Net Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivables and
payables with the clearing house, Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC") and it intends to settle on a net basis
as trade receivables from or trade payables to HKSCC. For the net
amounts of CNS money obligations receivables or payables and
other receivables and payables (such as deposits included under
other assets), they do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the
consolidated financial statements since the right to set-off of the
recognised amount is only enforceable following an event of default
and the Group does not intend to settle the balance on a net basis.

(a) Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangement and similar arrangements

37.

38.

AFEHE
RBHERATECEMIAQTE

TREEREBBEREEZEHNK
A& - DRINERDEE  -RBEE
MBBEAKRERSBAETRE  BH
NFERS -

BEETREERTHMEE

REE B RIS A AR SATHER 5
BETFREEARAR(EBEE]D W
FEFBERIM (FEFEIM) BURIA
EENFIR - WHRZFBEEIEREW
HENEEEERAGEE - FEFER
Ugt 78 U 3ok T e 8 A< SRR )RR Ko EL At FE
Wk Ia B A 3R (AP AR B B 2 1%
T ANEHEERCRIENETRE
MEBRENT A TTFEREE P BR
RABHOITE - REETBHIZFRE
REEERER -

(a) EHREE TEHHITZERR
HEHFNEC R z2EMEE

Amounts due from HKSCC

EWREBEHESE
At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R=Z-MmF MR_TE_=%F
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Gross amount of recognised EERemMEEMLTE
financial assets (net of (0B mE)
impairment) 1,351 2,732
Gross amount of recognised e MR KREIEZ
financial liabilities offset in ERRCHEERE
the consolidated statement of
financial position (1,243) (2,252)
Net amounts of financial assets ST AR A MR R 2
included in the consolidated SREEFRE
statement of financial position 108 480
Net amounts SRR 108 480
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =T - UG =A=+—H It FE

38. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangement and similar arrangements

(b)

38. HEEHMEERTRAE (H)

ZHRIEE  TEHRNITZERR
HEHFNECRFzERMEAE

Amounts due to HKSCC

EREBEESE
At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-oZE-—m&g RZTZ=4F
=ZA=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHEIT
Gross amount of recognised ERemAEEeE
financial liabilities 1,243 2,252
Gross amount of recognised iR M BIR R 2
financial assets offset in the EEREMEEAE
consolidated statement of
financial position (1,243) (2,252)

Net amounts of financial liabilities

HABARBRRR

included in the consolidated SHRBEFHE
statement of financial position
Net amounts F
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

38. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 38. HETHMEEREHMAE ()

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation to trade receivables and trade payables () HEHEHBRAREIZEKES
as presented in the consolidated statement of financial MEREMEZRELHER
position

At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2023
R-B-WF R-B_=F
=ZA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables EWE 5RE
Net amounts of financial assets AT E BRI KR 2
included in the consolidated EREEFHE
statement of financial position 108 480
Trade receivables not within the TEREIHEERHE
scope of offsetting disclosure FEW & 5 5k I8 12,134 18,236
Trade receivables presented in 2| EFE BRI ERZ
the consolidated statement of FEWE 5 5/ IE
financial position 12,242 18,716
Trade payables ENESRE
Net amounts of financial liabilities &t A4R& F B RE Z
included in the consolidated SREREFE
statement of financial position - -
Trade payables not within the scope 7~ 1> # $5 3% 52 &0 B =
of offsetting disclosure B2 Z I8 8,200 9,660
Trade payables presented in the 2R E IR K2
consolidated statement of FET & 53/ IE
financial position 8,200 9,660
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 2~ - UG =A=+—HItFE

39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of capital
and reserves, which include issued share capital and reserves as set
out on the consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and respective notes. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged.

The management reviews the capital structure by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. In
view of this, the Group manages its overall capital structure through
the drawdown and repayment of bank borrowings, payment of
dividends and issuance of share capital.

A subsidiary of the Group, Orient Securities is licensed with Securities
and Futures Commission (“SFC") for the business it operates in.
Orient Securities is subject to liquid capital requirements under
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R")
adopted by the SFC. Under the SF(FR)R, Orient Securities must
maintain a liquid capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as determined
by SF(FR)R) in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of its total adjusted
liabilities, whichever is higher. The required information is filed with
the SFC on a monthly basis.

Orient Securities has complied to maintain the required amount of
liquid capital throughout the period.

39. EXEHE

AEBEBLAR  HRERAEELE
B RMBER S EE TS [
BE BB EBRESEREERER
REH - AEE EABBOEERR
B (BIERABTEIRE  GAERNE
B3 & BT B BT R b
) - AEE Y RBERERSTE -

EEEEBEREAKNANREHEANN
MR EAGRE - BENLE - K
SEFEERMEEERTER MK
ERBTRAEEABRENERE -

AEBMZHNBARR A EMBZEFRAELE
BrEBKMRAZFRBEEBERES
e ((BEG)EE RHENZSFEE
THRESHRMAZEZLHLPE (FHE
JR) A (TSF(FRIR ) 2 BN E S HE ©
RIESFFRR + R EM B HBHEFER
FES (ESFFRRZETHABRZEERE
f&) #B3%3,000,000/8 T EE AR EE
BEZ 5% (AREERE) -FTERTEER

HARBEEERER °

REESRE  RTEMESCETHS
ERDESSEIRE °

RTEN FHBIRIERABR AR / F3R 2023/24

203



204

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE TSR AN

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 =~ - UF=A=+—HILFE

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash

. BEERHELEEZHK

TRANAREEREEDELERENE

B AEReRERSED -

BEEH

FELRABEREERGRERERA H

flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the consolidated HeERBWEHERKBERESHHHE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. ARAMEEH HeREZABE -
Lease
Debentures Liabilities Total
&% HEERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT FHET
(note 26)
(Bzx26)
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_%—HF—H 1,000 4,744 5,744
Financing cash outflows: RMERESME :
Repayment of principal amount of (EEHE&EALEE
the lease liabilities - (2,710) (2,710)
Repayment of debentures BEESH (1,000) = (1,000)
Interest paid EHE (89) (76) (165)
Other changes: Hip 25 :
Addition IN=T = 1,321 1,321
Derecognition IR = (2,390) (2,390)
Interest expenses FEFRX 89 76 165
At 31 March 2023 and R-ZBE-=%=8
1 April 2023 =E+—BRZ=ZE==
A—H - 965 965
Financing cash outflows: MERSRE -
Repayment of principal amount of EEHEBEALHE
the lease liabilities - (732) (732)
Interest paid EAHLE - (23) (23)
Other changes: Hin# 5 :
Interest expenses MEF - 23 23
At 31 March 2024 R-ZF-F
=A=+—H - 233 233
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &%

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

42,

On 22 September 2022, OSL, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as a defendant (the “Defendant”) received a writ of
summons (the “Writ”) issued in the Court of First Instance of the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region by a
solicitor acting for Ms. Dong Yun as a plaintiff (the “Plaintiff”)
against the Defendant. As stated in the statement of claim attached
to the Writ, the Plaintiff, who was a client of the Defendant, claim
(the “Claim”) against, the Defendant, for (i) damages for unlawful
means conspiracy; (ii) interest; (iii) costs; and (iv) further and/or other
relief in connection with a series of alleged unlawful acts carried out
by the Defendant with other defendants as stated in the Writ.

After seeking professional advice from the legal advisor engaged
by the Company (the “Legal Advisor”), and to the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made
all reasonable enquiries, the Board believes that the Claim for
conspiracy and/or fraud against the Defendant is weak to the
extreme and could hardly stand up to an argument for overcoming
the hurdle of time barred. By reason of the facts and analysis
conducted by the Legal Advisor, the Board is of the view that the
Claim will not have any material impact on the Group’s financial

position.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Application for a review by the GEM Listing Review
Committee

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 21 March
2024 in relation to, among other things, the GEM Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange had decided to uphold the decision (the
“"GEM Listing Committee Decision”) of the listing division of the
Stock Exchange to suspend trading in the Company’s shares under
Rule 9.04(3) of the GEM Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule 4.06(2) of
the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has the right to have the GEM
Listing Committee Decision referred to the GEM Listing Review
Committee of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Review
Committee”) for a further and final review.
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42. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

Application for a review by the GEM Listing Review
Committee (Continued)

On 3 April 2024, the Company filed an application for a review
by the GEM Listing Review Committee in relation to the GEM
Listing Committee Decision. For more details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 21 March 2024 and 3 April
2024.

Subscription of Fund

On 3 May 2024, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with Orient Global Master SPC (the “Fund”), an
exempted company incorporated with limited liability and registered
as a segregated portfolio company under the laws of Cayman
Islands. Pursuant to which the Company agreed to subscribe for the
participating shares attributable to the segregated portfolio in the
capital of the Fund, at a total subscription amount of US$300,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,340,000). For more details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 3 May
2024 and 7 May 2024.

Suspension of duties and powers of an executive Director

After conduct a comprehensive assessment throughout the year
regarding the internal control, ongoing monitoring, and loan
recovery of the Group’s money lending business (the “Money
Lending Business”) by the Board. The findings of the said
assessment reveal an oversight in registering loan collaterals in China
and limited progress in the management'’s loan recovery efforts.
Consequently, the Group continues to bear impairment losses on the
loan receivables.

After careful consideration of the above circumstances and with the
aim of addressing any concerns that the Company’s management,
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), or potential
investors may have regarding the responsibilities of Ms. Lee Nga
Ching (“Ms. Lee”), an executive Director overseeing the Money
Lending Business, the Board has resolved the decision to suspend
Ms. Lee’s duties with effect from 18 June 2024 until further notice
(the “Suspension”).
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

Suspension of duties and powers of an executive Director
(Continued)

The Board considers that the Suspension would not affect the daily
operation of the Group in any material respects and the current
operation of the Group is normal and stable. The Company will
closely monitor any further information relating to Ms. Lee and will
make further announcement(s) in accordance with the requirements
of the GEM Listing Rules as and when appropriate.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28 June 2024.
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Financial Summary

=z &hH
e =
RESULTS E
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
Year ended 31 December 31 March 31 March
BZ=A=+—-H HBZ=A=t-H
HEt-HA=t-BiL=E t+EREA LEE
2019 2020 2021 2023 2024
—“E-hE —E-FTEFE -—FE-—F —E-=E “E-ME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FAET TER FAET FHET TRET
REVENUE I3 34,747 59,292 46,704 49,125 94,878
Other income Higl A 7 1,539 4 125 1,188
Employee costs BEMA (11,606) (10,946) (9,340) (10,175) (5.893)
Administrative expenses THER (12,305) (12,882) (10,444) (11,486) (15,141)
Other operating expenses A 2ER% (2,546) (15,604) (3,524) (153,126) (67,432)
Finance costs HBER (429) (257) (155) (165) (23)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE BRATEH AR,/ (B8
INCOME TAX 7,868 21,142 23,245 (125,702) 7,577
Income tax expense FERRZ (3,695) (4,282) (5,270) = (4,185)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FORTHE YEAR/  AARBEEAEEEE/
PERIOD, ATTRIBUTABLE TO HERR/ (58
OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY 4173 16,860 17,975 (125,702) 3,392
Other comprehensive income ERHEMEERE
for the year - - - - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE ADRAFEEANEGEE/
INCOME FOR THE YEAR/ HE2AKEEE
PERIOD, ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY 4173 16,860 17,975 (125,702) 3,392
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ERER/(BE)
Basic and diluted ERREE 097 centsfll 390 centsfll 416 centsfll  (120.48) centsill 2.73 cents
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December As at 31 March
Rt=A=t+-H R=A=t-H
2019 2020 2021 2023 2024
—E-NEF —T-TF —To—F —E_=F —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TET TET THET
Total assets EEMGE 345,393 354,023 381,906 259,257 273,660
Total liabilities AERE (31,572) (23,342) (33,250) (23,452) (34,463)
Net assets BEFE 313,821 330,681 348,656 235,805 239,197
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